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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Board has been ordered and called 
for 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, November 16, 2016 at the Board office, for the purpose to 
wit: 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes official. 

Revised 11-13-2016 
 
1. Call to Order 
2. Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Quorum Call 
4. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
5. Consideration of Minutes from Previous Meeting – August 10, 2016 
6. Report on Action Items 
7. Confirmation of Acts 
8. Opportunity for Public Comment 
9. Annual Election of Board Officers 
10. Special Presentations 

A. Pharmacist Gold Certificates 
  PST.009154 – Edmond James Doucette 

PST.009175 – Ralph Charles Daigle 
B. Distinguished Service Awards 
  Clovis S. Burch 

11. Committee Reports 
A.  Finance – Mr. Pitre  

• Review of Interim Report for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
• Consideration of Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 

B. Application Review – Mr. Soileau 
• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Applications 

C. Reciprocity – Ms. Hall 
• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Applications 

D. Violations – Mr. Bond 
• Consideration of Proposed Voluntary Consent Agreements 

E.  Impairment – Mr. Rabb 
• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Applications 

F.  Reinstatement – Ms. Melancon 
• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Applications 
• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Policies & Procedures 

G. Tripartite –  
H. Regulation Revision – Mr. McKay 
I. Executive – Mr. Aron 

• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Rules 
• Consideration of Committee Recommendations re Policies & Procedures 

12. Staff Reports 
 J. Assistant Executive Director – Mr. Fontenot 

• Consideration of Requests for Waivers from PMP Reporting Requirement 
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12. Staff Reports (continued) 

K. General Counsel – Mr. Finalet 
• Consideration of Proposed Voluntary Consent Agreements 
• Review of Draft Report from SCR 65 Task Force on Meaningful Oversight 

L. Executive Director – Mr. Broussard 
• Consideration of Annual Report 

13. Request for Information from University of South Carolina – Columbia  
14. Announcements 
15. Recess 
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M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Board Members & Staff     
 
From:  Malcolm Broussard 
          
Date:  November 11, 2016 
 
Re:  Board Meeting Schedule & Arrangements 
 
 
The next quarterly meeting of the Board and certain of its committees will be held at the Board 
office on November 15-17, 2016.  The schedule of events is as follows: 
 
Tuesday, November 15, 2016 

1000   Reinstatement Committee  Boardroom 
1200   Committee Luncheon   Kitchen & Lounge 
1300   Impairment Committee  Boardroom 

 1500   Finance Committee   Boardroom 
1630   Executive Committee   Boardroom 

 
Wednesday, November 16, 2016 

0800   Reciprocity Committee  Boardroom 
0900   Board Meeting    Boardroom 

 1400   Administrative Hearing  Boardroom 
 
Thursday, November 17, 2016 
 0730   Annual Board Portrait Session Boardroom 

0830   Administrative Hearing  Boardroom 
 
 

You should have received your hotel reservation confirmations from Ms. Kelley 
Villeneuve via email last week.  That same information has been posted to the Board’s Reading 
Room next to the link for the meeting next week.  If you have any questions about those 
arrangements, please contact her directly at kvilleneuve@pharmacy.la.gov or 225.925.6498. 

Most of your meeting materials have been posted in the Boardroom Library.  You may 
enter the library by visiting our website at www.pharmacy.la.gov, selecting the Login link at the 
right-sided margin of the horizontal menu bar, and entering your log-in and password 
information.  At the Boardroom Library Lobby, select the link for the Main Reading Room, and 
then the 11-16-2016 link for the board meeting.  I anticipate completion of all the committee and 
board meeting materials by Sunday afternoon; we will advise you when all of the materials have 
been posted. 

Please take note of the portrait session on Thursday morning.  As you wish to be 
remembered, so should you dress. 
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Acronyms 
 
AACP  American Association of Colleges of Pharmacy 
AAPS  American Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists 
AAPT  American Association of Pharmacy Technicians 
ACA  American College of Apothecaries 
ACCME  Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education 
ACCP  American College of Clinical Pharmacy 
ACE  Advisory Committee on Examinations (NABP) 
ACPE  Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education 
ADA  American Dental Association 
ADC  automated dispensing cabinet 
ADS  automated dispensing system 
AFDO  Association of Food & Drug Officials 
AFPE  American Foundation for Pharmaceutical Education 
AIHP  American Institute of the History of Pharmacy 
AMA  American Medical Association 
AMCP  Academy of Managed Care Pharmacy 
AMS  automated medication system 
APEC  Australian Pharmacy Examining Council 
APhA  American Pharmacists Association 
APPE  advanced pharmacy practice experience 
ASAE  American Society of Association Executives 
ASAP  American Society for Automation in Pharmacy 
ASCP  American Society of Consultant Pharmacists 
ASHP  American Society of Health-System Pharmacists 
ASPL  American Society for Pharmacy Law 
AVMA  American Veterinary Medical Association 
AWARxE NABP consumer protection program 
BNDD  Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs 
BPS  Board of Pharmacy Specialties 
CAC  Citizen Advocacy Center 
CCAPP  Canadian Council for Accreditation of Pharmacy Programs 
CCGP  Commission for Certification in Geriatric Pharmacy 
CDC  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
CDER  Center for Drug Evaluation and Research 
CDTM  collaborative drug therapy management 
CDS  controlled dangerous substances 
CE  continuing education 
CFR  Code of Federal Regulations 
CHPA  Consumer Healthcare Products Association 
CLEAR  Council on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation 
CMI  consumer medication Information 
CMS  Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
CPD  continuing professional development 
CPhA  Canadian Pharmacists Association 
CPPA  Center for Pharmacy Practice Accreditation 
CPSC  Consumer Product Safety Commission 
DEA  Drug Enforcement Administration 
DEQ  La. Department of Environmental Quality 
DHH  La. Department of Health and Hospitals 
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DME  durable medical equipment 
DMEPOS durable medical equipment, prosthetics, orthotics, and supplies 
DNV  Det Norske Veritas (Norwegian accreditation organization) 
DSM  disease state management 
EDK  emergency drug kit 
ELTP  Electronic Licensure Transfer Program (NABP) 
EPA  Federal Environmental Protection Agency 
EPCS  Electronic Prescribing of Controlled Substances (DEA) 
ETS  Educational Testing Service 
EU  European Union 
ExCPT  Examination for the Certification of Pharmacy Technicians 
FARB  Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards 
FBI  Federal Bureau of Investigation 
FD&C  Federal Food, Drug & Cosmetic Act 
FDA  Federal Food & Drug Administration 
FIP  Federation Internationale Pharmaceutique 
FMI  Food Marketing Institute 
FPGEC  Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Examination Committee (NABP) 
FPGEE  Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination (NABP) 
FSBPT  Federation of State Boards of Physical Therapy 
FSMB  Federation of State Medical Boards 
FRC  Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination Review Committee (NABP) 
FTC  Federal Trade Commission 
GPhA  Generic Pharmaceutical Association 
GPO  US Government Printing Office 
gTLD  generic top level domain (Internet addresses) 
HCFA  Health Care Financing Administration 
HDMA  Healthcare Distribution Management Association 
HIPAA  Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (of 1996) 
HIPDB  Healthcare Integrity and Protection Data Bank 
HMO  health maintenance organization 
IACP  International Academy of Compounding Pharmacists 
ICANN  Internet Corporation for Assigned Numbers and Names 
ICPT  Institute for the Certification of Pharmacy Technicians 
IDOI  Internet Drug Outlet Identification (NABP) 
INEOA  International Narcotic Enforcement Officers Association 
IOM  Institute of Medicine 
IPPE  introductory pharmacy practice experience 
ISMP  Institute for Safe Medication Practices 
JCPP  Joint Commission of Pharmacy Practitioners 
LAMP  Louisiana Academy of Medical Psychologists 
LANP  Louisiana Association of Nurse Practitioners 
LAPA  Louisiana Academy of Physician Assistants 
LBP  Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
LDA  Louisiana Dental Association 
LIPA  Louisiana Independent Pharmacies Association 
LPA  Louisiana Pharmacists Association 
LPTA  Louisiana Physical Therapy Association 
LPTB  Louisiana Physical Therapy Board 
LSBD  Louisiana State Board of Dentistry 
LSBME  Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners 
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LSBN  Louisiana State Board of Nursing 
LSBOE  Louisiana State Board of Optometry Examiners 
LSBPNE  Louisiana State Board of Practical Nurse Examiners 
LSBVM  Louisiana State Board of Veterinary Medicine 
LSBWDD Louisiana State Board of Wholesale Drug Distributors 
LSHP  Louisiana Society of Health-System Pharmacists 
LSMS  Louisiana State Medical Society 
LSNA  Louisiana State Nurses Association 
LTC  long term care 
LTCF  long term care facility 
LVMA  Louisiana Veterinary Medical Association 
MPJE  Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (NABP) 
MRC  MPJE Review Committee (NABP) 
NABP  National Association of Boards of Pharmacy 
NABP-F  National Association of Boards of Pharmacy Foundation 
NABPLAW National Association of Boards of Pharmacy – Law Database 
NACDS  National Association of Chain Drug Stores 
NAMSDL National Alliance for Model State Drug Laws 
NAPLEX  North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NABP) 
NAPRA  National Association of Pharmacy Regulatory Authorities (Canada) 
NASCSA  National Association of State Controlled Substance Authorities 
NASPA  National Alliance of State Pharmacy Associations 
NASPER  National All Schedules Prescription Electronic Reporting Act 
NCC MERP National Coordinating Council for Medication Error Reporting and Prevention 
NCPA  National Community Pharmacists Association 
NCPDP  National Council for Prescription Drug Programs 
NCPIE  National Council on Patient Information and Education 
NCPO  National Conference of Pharmaceutical Organizations 
NCSBN  National Council of State Boards of Nursing 
NCVHS  National Committee on Vital and Health Statistics 
NDC  National Drug Code 
NDMA  Nonprescription Drug Manufacturing Association 
NIPCO  National Institute for Pharmacist Care Outcomes 
NISPC  National Institute for Standards in Pharmacist Credentialing 
NOCA  National Organization for Competency Assurance 
NPA  National Pharmacy Association 
NPC  National Pharmaceutical Council 
NPDB  National Practitioner Data Bank 
NPTA  National Pharmacy Technician Association 
NRC  NAPLEX Review Committee (NABP) 
  Federal Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
OAL  Optometry Association of Louisiana 
OBRA  Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
OIG  Office of Inspector General 
ONDCP  Office of National Drug Control Policy 
ONDD  Office of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs 
OSHA  Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
PARE  Pharmacy Assessment, Remediation and Evaluation (NABP) 
PBM  pharmacy benefit management 
PCAB  Pharmacy Compounding Accreditation Board 
PCCA  Professional Compounding Centers of America 
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PCMA  Pharmaceutical Care Management Association 
PCOA  Pharmacy Curriculum Outcomes Assessment (NABP) 
PDMA  Prescription Drug Marketing Act 
PEBC  Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada 
PhRMA  Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America 
PMP  Prescription Monitoring Program 
PMP-i  Prescription Monitoring Program Interconnect (NABP) 
PTCB  Pharmacy Technician Certification Board 
PTCE  Pharmacy Technician Certification Examination 
PTEC  Pharmacy Technician Educators Council 
RFID/EPC Radio Frequency Identification / Electronic Product Code 
SAMSHA Federal Substance Abuse & Mental Health Services Administration 
TJC  The Joint Commission 
TOEFL  Test of English as a Foreign Language 
TOEFL iBT Test of English as a Foreign Language Internet-based Test 
TSE  Test of Spoken English 
URAC  Utilization Review Accreditation Commission 
USP  United States Pharmacopeia / United States Pharmacopeial Convention 
USP DI  US Pharmacopeia Dispensing Information 
USP-NF  US Pharmacopeia – National Formulary 
VAWD  Verified-Accredited Wholesale Distributors (NABP) 
Vet-VIPPS Veterinary-Verified Internet Pharmacy Practice Sites (NABP) 
VIPPS  Verified Internet Pharmacy Practice Sites (NABP) 
VPP  Verified Pharmacy Practice (NABP) 
WHO  World Health Organization 
WHPA  World Health Professions Alliance 
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A regular meeting of the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy was held on Wednesday, 
August 10, 2016 in the Boardroom of the Board’s office, located at 3388 Brentwood 
Drive in Baton Rouge, Louisiana.  The meeting was held pursuant to public notice, each 
member received notice, and notice was properly posted.  
 
1.  Call to Order 
Mr. Carl Aron, President, called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
2.  Invocation & Pledge 
Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Brian Bond, and he delivered the invocation.  Mr. Ronald 
Moore then led the group in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.  Quorum Call 
Mr. Aron called upon the Secretary, Mr. Bond, to call the roll to establish a quorum.   
 
Members Present: 

Mr. Carl W. Aron 
 Mr. Brian A. Bond 
 Mr. Clovis S. Burch  

Ms. Jacqueline L. Hall 
Mr. Richard M. Indovina, Jr. 
Mr. Marty R. McKay 
Ms. Chris B. Melancon   
Ms. Diane G. Milano 
Mr. Ronald E. Moore 
Mr. Blake P. Pitre 

 Mr. T. Morris Rabb 
 Ms. Pamela G. Reed 
 Mr. Don L. Resweber 
 Dr. Deborah H. Simonson 
 Mr. Richard A. Soileau 
 Mr. Rhonny K. Valentine   
 
Members Absent: 
 Mr. Ryan M. Dartez 
 
Staff Present: 
 Mr. Malcolm J. Broussard, Executive Director 
 Mr. Carlos M. Finalet, III, General Counsel 
 Mr. M. Joseph Fontenot, Assistant Executive Director 
 
Guests: 
 Mr. C. Bevan Callicott – Nuclear Pharmacist 
 Ms. Catherine T. Tang – Pharmacy Intern, Xavier College of Pharmacy 
 Mr. Loudon Yantis – Pharmacist Gold Certificate Recipient 

Mr. Charles Abbott and family – Guests of Loudon Yantis (Gold Certificate) 
Ms. Samantha Brent – Guest of Loudon Yantis (Gold Certificate) 
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 Ms. Penny Scruggins, CPA – Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Co. 
 Mr. Russell Champagne, CPA – Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Co. 
 Dr. William R. Kirchain – La. Pharmacists Association 
 Mr. Harold Engle – Gold Certificate Recipient 
 Mr. Andre Stolier – La. Independent Pharmacies Association 
 Mr. Ben J. Sims – Brookshire Grocery Company 
 Ms. Kelley Henderson – La. Pharmacists Association 
 Mr. Nick Cahanin – National Association of Chain Drug Stores 
 Mr. Eric Torres – La. State Board of Medical Examiners 
 Ms. Linda Spradley – Spradley & Spradley 
 Mr. Tom Spradley – Spradley & Spradley 
 Mr. Sal Pace 
 Mr. Ken Bickford 
 Mr. Matt Moreau – La. Cannabis Association 
 Mr. Wes Hataway – La. State Medical Society 
 
Mr. Bond certified 16 of the 17 members were present, constituting a quorum for the 
conduct of official business. 
 
4.  Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
Mr. Aron asked if there were any additional agenda items, and Mr. Rabb requested the 
opportunity to add a discussion about the new legislation relative to naloxone.  He 
reported the Executive Committee’s consideration of Act 370 of the 2016 Legislature, 
which authorizes pharmacists to distribute naloxone pursuant to non-patient specific 
standing orders issued by medical practitioners, but only according to rules 
promulgated by the Board of Pharmacy.  Mr. Rabb then moved, 

Resolved, to add two proposed documents to the meeting agenda for our 
consideration during the report of the Executive Committee: 
(1)  Regulatory Proposal 2016-G ~ Standing Orders for the Distribution of 
      Naloxone; and 
(2)  Declaration of Emergency for Standing Orders for the Distribution of 
      Naloxone. 

The motion was approved after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Aron added 
the two new documents for consideration during the report of the Executive Committee. 
With no further requests for amendment, and with no objection, the Board adopted the 
posted agenda dated July 26, 2016 as amended that day.  Mr. Aron then requested 
authority from the Board to reorder the agenda as necessary for the purpose of 
accommodating certain guests.  There were no objections to that request. 
 
5.   Consideration of Minutes 
Mr. Aron reminded the members they had received the draft minutes from the Regular 
Board Meeting on May 4, 2016 and the Administrative Hearing on May 5, 2016, both of 
which were held in Baton Rouge, Louisiana.  With no objections, he waived the reading 
of the draft minutes.  With no requests for amendment or any objection to their 
approval, Mr. Aron declared the minutes were approved as presented. Mr. Bond 
reminded the members to sign the Minute Book. 
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6.   Report on Action Items 
Mr. Aron called on Mr. Broussard for the report.  Mr. Broussard reviewed the action 
items contained in the report which was posted in the meeting binder.  There were no 
questions from the members. 
 
7.   Confirmation of Acts 
Pursuant to Mr. Aron’s declaration that the officers, committees, and executive director 
had attended to the business of the Board since the last meeting in accordance with 
policies and procedures previously approved by the Board, Mr. Moore moved,   

Resolved, that the actions taken and decisions made by the Board 
officers, Board committees, and Executive Director in the general conduct 
and transactions of Board business since May 5, 2016 are approved, 
adopted, and ratified by the entire Board. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 
 
8.   Opportunity for Public Comment 
Mr. Aron reminded the members and guests the Open Meetings Law requires all public 
bodies to provide an opportunity for public comment at all meetings and for each 
agenda item upon which a vote is to be taken.  He solicited general comments on non-
agenda items from the guests present, but none were offered. 
 
*    Statement of Purpose 
Mr. Aron reminded the members of the purpose and mission of the Board of Pharmacy 
by reciting the relevant portion of the Louisiana Pharmacy Practice Act.  He urged the 
members to keep their mission in mind as they considered all the matters before them. 
 
At this point, Mr. Aron announced that two of the members present had been honored 
at the La. Pharmacists Association Annual Meeting in July; in particular, Mr. Blake Pitre 
received the ULM School of Pharmacy’s Alumnus of the Year Award, and Mr. Marty 
McKay received the Bowl of Hygeia Award.  The members and guests present 
congratulated the two award recipients with a round of applause. 
 
Mr. Aron then announced Mr. Clovis Burch was celebrating a birthday that day; the 
members and guests present congratulated him with a round of applause.  
 
9.   Special Order of the Day – Presentation of Pharmacist Gold Certificates 
Mr. Aron reported the Board issued 142 new pharmacist licenses during 1966, and of 
that number, 50 pharmacists had maintained their license for 50 years and were eligible 
to receive their Pharmacist Gold Certificates.  He then informed the members that two 
of those pharmacists were present that day to receive their certificates.  Mr. Aron then 
recognized Mr. Loudon D. Yantis and Mr. Harold G. Engle.  He briefly reviewed 
highlights of their professional careers, presented their certificates, and encouraged 
them to offer their own comments.  The members and guests present congratulated 
each of the recipients with a generous round of applause.  
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10.   Committee Reports 
 A.   Finance Committee 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Pitre for the committee report.  Mr. Pitre 
recognized Ms. Penny Scruggins, CPA and Mr. Russell Champagne, CPA, 
both from Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Co.  The Board has contracted with 
the firm since the late 1990s to provide accounting services for the Board; 
those services include their presentation of an annual review to the Board, 
and that visit is typically provided when the Board considers the final report 
for a fiscal year, typically in the August meeting. 

Mr. Champagne reviewed the Final Report for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
which ended June 30, 2016.  He then responded to questions from the 
members.  Mr. Pitre then moved, 

Resolved, that the Board accept the Final Report for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016, subject to legislative audit. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Pitre 
then directed the members to a proposed amendment for the current fiscal 
year budget, which was reviewed by the Finance Committee the previous 
day.  He then moved, 

Resolved, that the Board approve, in globo, Proposed Budget 
Amendment No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 
 Mr. Aron expressed his appreciation to Mr. Champagne for his service to 
the Board since 1997. 
 Finally, Mr. Pitre closed his report with appreciation for his fellow 
committee members for their work the previous day. 

 
 B.    Application Review Committee 
  Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Soileau for the committee report.  Mr. Soileau 

reported the committee met on June 28 to consider eight referrals from the 
staff.  Following their interviews of the applicants and subsequent 
deliberations, the committee authorized the issuance of one PST license, 
both intern registrations, and two of the pharmacy technician candidate 
registrations.  Mr. Soileau then presented the following files to the Board for 
their consideration of the committee recommendations. 
 
Eagle Pharmacy, Inc. d/b/a Eagle Pharmacy (Applicant for PHY Permit) 
Mr. Soileau moved to deny the application and refuse to issue the credential. 
The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The 
Board denied the application and refused to issue the permit. 
 
Shantale Marie Woods (Applicant for PTC Registration) Mr. Soileau 
moved to deny the application and refuse to issue the credential.  The motion 
was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board denied 
the application and refused to issue the registration. 
 
Roshaan Demond Roberson (Applicant for PTC Registration) Mr. Soileau 
moved to deny the application and refuse to issue the credential.  The motion 
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was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board denied 
the application and refused to issue the credential. 
 
 Mr. Soileau reported the resolution of a case from a prior committee 
meeting and presented that file for the members’ consideration. 
 
Cartina Robinson Alford (Applicant for PTC Registration) Mr. Soileau 
moved to deny the application and refuse to issue the credential.  The motion 
was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board denied 
the application and refused to issue the registration. 

 
Finally, Mr. Soileau expressed his appreciation to the other members of 

the committee for their ongoing efforts. 
 

C.   Reciprocity Committee 
Mr. Aron called upon Ms. Hall for the committee report.  She reported the 

staff had evaluated 47 applications for pharmacist licensure by reciprocity 
since the last Board meeting and than none of them contained information 
that warranted a committee level review.  In conformance with policies and 
procedures previously approved by the Board, the staff approved the 
applications and issued the credentials. 

Ms. Hall then reported staff had referred one applicant to the committee, 
and the committee had interviewed that applicant earlier that same day.  
Following their interview and deliberation, the committee recommended the 
approval of the application and the issuance of a license without restriction.  
On behalf of the committee, Ms. Hall moved, 

Resolved, that the Board approve the application for a pharmacist 
license by reciprocity and authorize the issuance of a pharmacist 
license, without restriction, to Nitesh Ambalal Patel. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 
Finally, she closed the report with appreciation to the other committee 

members for their ongoing efforts. 
 
 D.   Violations Committee 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Bond for the committee report. Mr. Bond 
reported the committee held preliminary hearings on June 8-9, 2016 to 
consider their posted agenda, which included 25 cases:  eight pharmacists, 
one pharmacy intern, five pharmacy technicians, four pharmacy technician 
candidates, and seven pharmacy permits.  Prior to the meeting date, the 
chair granted continuances for four of the respondents.  After interviews and 
deliberations at the meeting, the committee granted three additional 
continuances and took no formal action against four of the respondents.  Six 
of the respondents failed to appear and the committee did not offer any 
proposals to them; of those six respondents, five have been scheduled for 
the formal hearing the following day and the sixth case has been deferred 
until a later hearing date.  The committee issued non-disciplinary letters of 
non-compliance to three of the respondents and then offered proposed 
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voluntary consent agreements to the remaining five respondents.  All of the 
respondents accepted their proposed consent agreements, and Mr. Bond 
presented those proposed agreements to the members for their 
consideration. 
 
Wal-Mart Louisiana, LLC d/b/a Wal-Mart Pharmacy No. 10-7241 
(PHY.007050) Mr. Bond moved to approve the proposed voluntary consent 
agreement.  The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the 
affirmative.  The Board assessed a fine of $25,000 plus administrative and 
investigative costs. 
 
Gina Renee Dimattia (PST.018306) Mr. Bond moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand 
and ordered the publication thereof, and further, assessed a fine of $1,000 
plus administrative costs. 
 
LaTanya Chenell Frazier (PTC.021807) Mr. Bond moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board assessed administrative costs. 
 
Wal-Mart Louisiana, LLC d/b/a Wal-Mart Pharmacy No. 10-1193 
(PHY.004793) Mr. Bond moved to approve the proposed voluntary consent 
agreement.  The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the 
affirmative.  The Board assessed a fine of $2,500 plus administrative and 
investigative costs. 
 
Shelette Marie Wade (PST.014865) Mr. Bond moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board suspended the license for five 
years and stayed the execution thereof, then placed the license on probation 
for five years, effective August 10, 2016, subject to certain terms enumerated 
in the consent agreement, and further, assessed administrative and 
investigative costs. 

 
 Mr. Bond reported the committee will meet on September 21-22 to 
consider that docket of 29 cases, which includes eight pharmacists, one 
pharmacy intern, seven pharmacy technicians, two pharmacy technician 
candidates, and eleven pharmacy permits. 
 Finally, Mr. Bond concluded his report with appreciation to the other 
committee members for their ongoing efforts. 

 
 E.   Impairment Committee 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Rabb for the committee report.  Mr. Rabb 
reported the committee met the previous day to consider seven referrals from 
the staff.  Following their interviews of the applicants and subsequent 
deliberations, the committee took no action for two of the respondents.  Mr. 
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Rabb then presented the following files to the members for their 
consideration. 
 
Ricky Thomas Guidry (PST.013683) Mr. Rabb moved to accept the 
voluntary surrender of the credential.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board accepted the voluntary 
surrender, resulting in the active suspension of the license for an indefinite 
period of time, effective June 15, 2016. 
 
Ashley Elizabeth Reynolds (PST.020382) Mr. Rabb moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted the respondent’s 
request for reinstatement of the previously suspended license, converted the 
duration of the suspensive period from an indefinite term to a term of five 
years and stayed the execution of the suspension, then placed the license on 
probation for five years, effective August 10, 2016, subject to certain terms 
enumerated in the consent agreement. 
 
Kacey Dore Keith (PST.020248) Mr. Rabb moved to approve the proposed 
voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a unanimous 
vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted the respondent’s request for 
reinstatement of the previously suspended license, converted the duration of 
the suspensive period from an indefinite term to a term of five years and 
stayed the execution of the suspension, then placed the license on probation 
for five years, effective August 10, 2016, subject to certain terms enumerated 
in the consent agreement. 
 
Ginger Allen Teekell (PST.016606) Mr. Rabb moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for reinstatement of the previously suspended license, converted the duration 
of the suspensive period from an indefinite term to a term of ten years and 
stayed the execution of the suspension, then placed the license on probation 
for ten years, effective August 10, 2016, subject to certain terms enumerated 
in the consent agreement. 
 
Ronald Allen Barrett (PST.011925) Mr. Rabb moved to grant respondent’s 
request for early termination of the probationary period.  The motion was 
adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board terminated the 
probationary period, originally scheduled to conclude on February 15, 2021, 
and then restored the license to active and unrestricted status. 
 
 Finally, Mr. Rabb closed his report with appreciation to his fellow 
committee members for their work the previous day and for the ongoing staff 
support. 
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 F.   Reinstatement Committee 
Mr. Aron called upon Ms. Melancon for the committee report.  Ms. 

Melancon reported the committee met the previous day to consider the eight 
referrals from staff.  She then presented the following files to the members for 
their consideration. 
 
Sumitra B. Patel (PST.010943) Ms. Melancon moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for reinstatement of the previously suspended license, then immediately 
placed the license on voluntary inactive status (which is not valid for practice 
in Louisiana), and further, required the respondent to meet with the Board at 
some future date before practicing pharmacy within the State of Louisiana. 
 
Koya George Williams (CPT.006473) Ms. Melancon moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for reinstatement of the previously lapsed certificate, contingent upon the 
successful completion of certain requirements identified in the consent 
agreement. 
 
Stephanie Ann Doyle (CPT.006096) Ms. Melancon moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for reinstatement of the previously lapsed certificate, contingent upon the 
successful completion of certain requirements identified in the consent 
agreement. 
 
Robin Kaye Kelly (PST.013109) Ms. Melancon moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for reinstatement of the previously lapsed license, contingent upon the 
successful completion of certain requirements identified in the consent 
agreement. 
 
LueShanda Anise Freeman (CPT.002681) Ms. Melancon moved to approve 
the proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for reinstatement of the previously lapsed certificate, contingent upon the 
successful completion of certain requirements identified in the consent 
agreement. 
 
Charles Jude Mitchell, Jr. (PST.016284) Ms. Melancon moved to approve 
the proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board granted respondent’s request 
for an extension of the deadline for the completion of certain requirements in 
his previous probationary order. 
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Aaron Wayne Nash (PST.010983) Ms. Melancon moved to grant 
respondent’s request for early termination of the probationary period.  The 
motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board 
terminated the probationary period, originally scheduled to conclude on 
August 12, 2017, and then restored the license to active and unrestricted 
status. 
 
Marco Bisa Moran (PST.016442) Ms. Melancon moved to rescind the 
previous order issued on February 24, 2016.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board rescinded the previous order 
issued on February 24, 2016. 
 

 Ms. Melancon closed her report with appreciation to the other committee 
members for their work the previous day. 

 
G. Tripartite Committee 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Burch for the committee report.  Mr. Burch 
reported the committee had not met since the last Board meeting. 

 
At this point, Mr. Aron re-ordered the agenda by skipping over the final two committee 
reports, advanced to Staff Reports on the agenda and requested the Report from 
General Counsel. 
 
11.   Staff Reports 
 K.   Report of General Counsel 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Finalet for his report.  Mr. Finalet then presented 
      the following files to the members for their consideration. 

 
Wickliffe Pharmaceuticals, Inc. d/b/a Wickliffe Veterinary Pharmacy 
(PHY.006255) Mr. McKay moved to approve the proposed voluntary consent 
agreement.  The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the 
affirmative.  The Board suspended the permit for two years and stayed the 
execution thereof, then placed the permit on probation for two years, 
effective October 23, 2016, subject to certain terms, and further, assessed 
administrative costs. 
 
Mark Anthony Carlson (PST.021483) Ms. Melancon moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand, 
and further, assessed a fine of $1,000 plus administrative costs. 
 
Emma Osiris Dolmo (PST.017273) Mr. McKay moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand, 
and further, assessed a fine of $1,000 plus administrative costs. 
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Lee Eric Ori (PST.018721) Mr. McKay moved to approve the proposed 
voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a unanimous 
vote in the affirmative.  The Board suspended the license for two years, ten 
months, and thirteen days and stayed the execution of the suspension, then 
placed the license on probation for the original suspensive period, effective 
August 10, 2016 (to run concurrently with the probationary period imposed by 
the Missouri Board of Pharmacy), subject to certain terms enumerated in the 
consent agreement, and further, assessed administrative costs. 
 
Nacho Nanette Hill (CPT.007175) Ms. Milano moved to approve the 
proposed voluntary consent agreement.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board revoked the certificate, and 
further, permanently prohibited the acceptance of any future application for 
the reinstatement of the certificate or any other application for any other 
credential issued by the Board. 
 
Kevin Trenouth Kellow (PST.019095) Mr. Indovina moved to accept the 
voluntary surrender of the credential.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board accepted the voluntary 
surrender, resulting in the active suspension of the license for an indefinite 
period of time, effective July 6, 2016. 
 
Martha Lynn Coppage-Hoover (CDS.023811-MD) Mr. Pitre moved to 
suspend the controlled dangerous substance (CDS) license on the basis of 
the state medical board’s suspension of the medical license.  The motion 
was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  The Board 
suspended the CDS license for an indefinite period of time, effective April 11, 
2016. 

 
  Finally, Mr. Finalet indicated the completion of his report. 
 
At this point, Mr. Aron requested the Report from the Assistant Executive Director. 
 
 J.    Report of Assistant Executive Director 

Mr. Fontenot directed the members to the requests for exemption from the 
PMP reporting requirements.  Mr. McKay moved, 

   Resolved, to authorize the issuance of PMP reporting waivers to: 
   > PHY.006117-NR – ARJ Infusion Services (KS); 
   > PHY.007276-NR – Aureus Pharmacy (MO); 
   > PHY.007311-NR – BeneVi Health (NC); 
    > PHY.007339-NR – Biologics (NC); 
   > PHY.007314-NR – BiologicTx (NJ); 
   > PHY.004441-HOS – DeQuincy Memorial Hosp. Pharmacy (LA); 
   > PHY.006662-NR – Eagle Pharmacy (FL); 
   > PHY.007325-NR – Elwyn Specialty Care (PA); 
   > PHY.005609-NR – Homescripts (TX); 
   > PHY.004280-HOS – Lakeview Reg Med Ctr Pharmacy (LA); 
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   > PHY.006464-HOS – La. Med. Ctr. & Heart Hosp. Pharmacy (LA); 
   > PHY.006684-IR – LSU Health Baton Rouge – MidCity (LA); 
   > PHY.007225-NR – McKesson Patient Care Solutions (LA); 
   > PHY.006565-NR – Medex BioCare (TN); 
   > PHY.007319-NR – Mint Pharmacy & Skin Clinic (FL); 
   > PHY.005220-IN – ORTCA (LA); 
   > PHY.007309-NR – Reliable Pharmacy (FL); 
   > PHY.007324-NR – Revival Animal Health (IA); 
   > PHY.001048-HOS – St. Charles Parish Hospital Pharmacy (LA); 
   > PHY.006428-NR – SVP MEDS (TX); and 
   > PHY.007208-NR – Y Medical Associates (TX) 

once they have executed the standard consent agreement for that 
purpose. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Aron 
directed Mr. Fontenot to advise Diamond Pharmacy Services the Board 
declined to grant their request for an exemption. 
 Mr. Fontenot reviewed the history of the Board’s contract for the vendor to 
manage the state PMP.  He then reported on the recent transition from the 
previous platform to the upgraded platform. 
 He also notified the members that the Texas PMP is in transition from 
their Dept. of Public Safety to their Board of Pharmacy.  He reported he had 
already been working with the Texas Board of Pharmacy, and when the 
Texas Board of Pharmacy assumes responsibility for the Texas PMP on 
September 1, 2016, data sharing with the Texas PMP should be operational 
from the first day. 
  He then reported on the staffing of the Board’s Credentials Division.  He 
acknowledged some previous staffing issues, reported some changes, and 
indicated there is no backlog of unprocessed applications. 
 He reported the Board’s compliance officers had been working with a new 
inspection form in those pharmacies engaged in interstate practice activities. 
In reply to questions from a member, he reported that all of the Board’s 
compliance officers have received intensive training in the inspection of 
sterile compounding facilities.  He also reported that CriticalPoint has a 
certification program for state board compliance officers for USP Chapters 
795, 797, and 800.  The Board’s newest compliance officer, Mr. Daniel 
Dennis, had just completed the certification course, and the other compliance 
officers were being scheduled to attend as opportunities arose. 
 Finally, Mr. Fontenot indicated completion of his report. 

 
At this point, Mr. Aron declared a luncheon recess.  It was noted the members recessed 
at 11:55 a.m. and then reconvened at 1:05 p.m.  Mr. Aron returned to the committee 
reports on the agenda and elected to begin with the Executive Committee’s report. 
 
10.   Committee Reports 
 I.    Executive Committee 

Mr. Aron reported the committee had met the previous day to consider the 
items on their posted agenda.  The committee developed several 
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recommendations for the Board’s consideration.  Mr. Aron requested Mr. 
Rabb to offer those motions.  Mr. Rabb moved, 

Resolved, to refer Act 310 (HB 671), relative to re-dispensing of 
drugs in correctional center pharmacies, to the Regulation Revision 
Committee, for their review of the new law and development of a 
proposal to revise the Board’s current rule relative to penal 
pharmacy permits. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to approve Regulatory Proposal 2016-G ~ Standing 
Orders for the Distribution of Naloxone (Draft #1), and further, to 
authorize the Executive Director to promulgate the proposed rule 
upon the instruction of the President, and further, to authorize the 
President to approve any acceptable amendments as may become 
necessary during the promulgation process. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to approve the proposed Declaration of Emergency for 
Standing Orders for the Distribution of Naloxone, and further, to fix 
the effective date for the new rule today, August 10, 2016. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to request the Executive Director comply with the 
directives of HCR 113 relative to the Louisiana Commission on 
Preventing Opioid Abuse. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to refer Act 189 (SB 56), relative to the establishment of 
standards for the retention, archiving, and destruction of 
prescription monitoring program (PMP) information to the 
Regulation Revision Committee, for their review of the new law and 
development of a proposal to amend the Board’s PMP rules. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to request the Executive Director comply with the 
directives of SCR 65 relative to the Task Force on Meaningful 
Oversight of Healthcare Licensing Boards. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to refer SCR 87, relative to a study of the terms 
“specialty drug” and “specialty pharmacy” to the Regulation 
Revision Committee, to comply with the directives of the resolution. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to direct the utilization of the new inspection forms for 
those pharmacies performing sterile compounding and nonsterile 
compounding services for the benefit of Louisiana residents no 
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later than September 1, 2016.  For those nonresident pharmacies 
whose resident board inspection forms do not satisfactorily 
document compliance with the relevant USP standards, by means 
of an equal or greater level of detail as the Louisiana Board of 
Pharmacy inspection form as determined by Board staff, the 
pharmacy shall be inspected by the Board or the Board’s agent 
(NABP VPP inspection). 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Rabb 
then moved, 

Resolved, to notify all pharmacy permits prior to January 1, 2017 
of the new inspection requirement that will become effective with 
the renewals of pharmacy permits for the January 1, 2018: the 
pharmacy shall document a satisfactory inspection report dated 
less than two years prior to the date of the renewal application. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 
 Mr. Aron then asked Mr. Broussard to elaborate on the new staffing 
allocation that was approved as part of the budget amendment approved by 
the full Board earlier that day.  Mr. Broussard started by reminding the 
members of the current organizational chart for their office and reminded 
them of the absence of an incumbent in the Chief Compliance Officer 
position.  He reminded them of the evidence of credential growth as reflected 
in the credential production reports as well as the financial reports.  He 
suggested the propriety of filling the vacancy in the Chief Compliance Officer 
as well as hiring a new staff Pharmacist Compliance Officer.  He also reported 
the plan to hire two administrative personnel, one to work with the prescription 
monitoring program, and the other to assist the three administrative officers.  
He indicated the office would begin the personnel activities required by the 
state civil service necessary to fill those positions during the fall of 2016. 
 Finally, Mr. Aron closed his report with appreciation for the other 
committee members and their work the previous day. 

 
H. Regulation Revision Committee 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. McKay for the committee report.  Mr. McKay 
noted the committee met on June 28 as well as the previous day.  He 
reported the committee had one new regulatory proposal for the Board’s 
consideration but first the members needed to consider the comments and 
testimony from the May 25 public hearing on a previous regulatory project. 
 
Consideration of Comments & Testimony from May 25 Public Hearing re 
Regulatory Project 2016-2 ~ Pharmacist-in-Charge in Nonresident 
Pharmacies 
 Mr. McKay began by reminding the members of their work on the 
proposed rule relative to pharmacists-in-charge in nonresident pharmacies. 
He reviewed the single commentator’s remarks objecting to the inclusion of 
the requirements for two years of practice and for a minimum number of 
hours of presence in the pharmacy.  He noted the difficulty cited by the 
commentator is applicable to all pharmacies, not just the nonresident 
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pharmacies.  With no request from any member to revise the proposal, Mr. 
McKay moved, 

Resolved, to instruct the executive director to transmit an 
appropriate reply to the letter from CVS Health offered at the May 
25 public hearing, to then compile and transmit the Second Report 
to the Joint Legislative Oversight Committee on Health & Welfare, 
and to then publish the original proposal as a Final Rule in the 
Louisiana Register. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.   
 
Regulatory Proposal 2016-A ~ Marijuana Pharmacy (Draft #5) 
 Mr. McKay began by reminding the members of Act 261 of the 2015 
Legislature establishing the statewide medical marijuana program, as well as 
the subsequent Act 96 of the 2016 Legislature.  He noted the Board referred 
the matter to the committee in August 2015 and reported the committee held 
multiple meetings with stakeholders during the previous twelve months, 
including a special meeting the previous day where additional amendments 
were made.  He then moved, 

Resolved, to approve Regulatory Proposal 2016-A ~ Marijuana 
Pharmacies (Draft #5), and further, to authorize the Executive 
Director to promulgate the proposed rule upon the instruction of the 
President, and further, to authorize the President to approve any 
acceptable amendment as may become necessary during the 
promulgation process. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 
 
Mr. McKay then identified the remaining issues on the committee’s agenda.  
He closed his report with appreciation to the other committee members as 
well as for the staff support of their efforts. 

 
At this point, Mr. Aron declared a brief recess.  It was noted the members recessed at 
2:40 p.m. and then reconvened at 3:10 p.m.  Mr. Aron then requested the single 
remaining report. 
 
11.   Staff Reports 
 L.   Report of Executive Director 

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Broussard for the report.  Mr. Broussard directed 
     the members to his report which was posted in the Boardroom Library prior 
     to the meeting; it was also included in the meeting binder.  He reviewed the 
     following topics: 

• Meeting Activity 
• Reports 

Census Reports – Credentials & Compliance Divisions 
Production Reports – Credentials Division 
Exceptions Report 
Annual Statistical Summary for Compliance Division 

• Examinations 
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MPJE 
NAPLEX 
PARE 
PTCB 

• Operations 
Credentials Division 
Compliance Division 
Administrative Division 

• State Activities 
           2016 Regular Session of Louisiana Legislature 

• National Activities 
National Association of Boards of Pharmacy (NABP) 
NABP-AACP District 6  
MALTAGON 

• International Activities 
         International Pharmaceutical Federation (FIP) 
 
 Finally, Mr. Broussard indicated the completion of his report. 
 
12.   Request for Approval of Immunization Training Program 
Mr. Aron requested Mr. Broussard review the request from the Arizona Pharmacy 
Association.  The members asked Mr. Broussard to review the list of existing approved 
providers.  Having considered the list of approved providers, the members questioned 
the necessity of approving additional providers.  In the absence of a motion from the 
members, Mr. Aron directed Mr. Broussard to advise the petitioner the Board did not 
disapprove their request, but merely declined to approve their request. 
 
13.   Announcements 
Mr. Aron directed the members to the announcements in their meeting binder.  Several 
of the members requested consideration of changing the hotel used by the Board.  Mr. 
Aron indicated he would ask the office manager to investigate the proposed location 
and their ability to offer state rates to the members and staff.  
 
14.    Recess 
Having completed the tasks itemized on the posted agenda, with no further business 
pending before the Board, and without objection, Mr. Aron recessed the meeting at 3:15 
p.m. 
 
 
*    *   *   *   * 
 
An Administrative Hearing was convened on Thursday, August 11, 2016 in the 
Boardroom of the Board’s office, located at 3388 Brentwood Drive in Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana.  The hearing was held pursuant to public notice, each member received 
notice, each respondent received notice (unless specifically stated otherwise in the 
official transcript), and notice was properly posted. 
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A.   Call to Order 
Mr. Aron called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 
 
B.   Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 
Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Bond for the invocation, and then Ms. Milano led the group in 
the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C.   Quorum Call 
Mr. Aron called upon Secretary Bond and he called the roll.  After doing so, he certified 
Mr. Valentine was absent; however, the remaining 16 members were present, 
constituting a quorum for the conduct of official business.  
 
D.   Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
Mr. Aron asked if there were any additional agenda items, and none were requested.  
With no objection, the Board adopted the posted agenda for the meeting.  He then 
requested authority to re-order the agenda as may become necessary, and there was 
no objection to that request. 
 
*    Statement of Purpose 
Mr. Aron reminded the members of the purpose and mission of the Board of Pharmacy 
by reciting the relevant portion of the Louisiana Pharmacy Practice Act.  He urged the 
members to keep their mission in mind as they considered all the matters before them. 
 
E.  Opportunity for Public Comment 
Mr. Aron reminded the members and guests the Open Meetings Law requires all public 
bodies to provide an opportunity for public comment at all meetings and prior to the 
vote on each agenda item.  He solicited comments from the guests, but none were 
offered. 
 
Appearances 
Mr. Aron indicated he would serve as the Hearing Officer, Ms. Celia R. Cangelosi and 
Mr. Carlos Finalet as the Prosecuting Attorneys, Ms. Susan Erkle as the Official 
Recorder, and Mr. Malcolm Broussard as the Hearing Clerk.  Without objection, Mr. 
Aron waived the reading of the posted agenda and instead directed the insertion 
thereof into these minutes.  The posted agenda is re-created here. 
 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes official. 

Revised 08-07-2016 
 
A. Call to Order 
 
B. Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance  
 
C. Quorum Call 
 
D. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
 
E. Opportunity for Public Comment 



- 20 – 
 

 
F. Formal Hearings 
 

01. PST.016442 – Marco Bisa Moran    Case No. 15-0346 
   
 02. CPT.012478 – Latoya Ranisha Robinson   Case No. 16-0027 
 

03. CPT.010966 – Sarah Elizabeth Kiley    Case No. 16-0068 
 
04. CPT.009432 – Christine Annette McGraw   Case No. 16-0103 
 
05. PTC.022001 – Debra Ann Mercadel    Case No. 16-0074 
 
06. PTC.022223 – Kenyeta Rashun Graham    Case No. 16-0043 

 
G. Adjourn 
 
 
F.   Formal Hearings 

 
Latoya Ranisha Robinson (CPT.012478) Mr. Finalet appeared for the Board 
and noted the absence of the respondent or counsel.  After verifying the absence 
of the respondent, Mr. Aron ruled the hearing would proceed as scheduled in the 
form of a default proceeding.  Mr. Finalet presented an opening statement, no 
witnesses, and five exhibits.  He then offered a closing statement, proffered 
proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law, and board order, and then 
tendered the matter to the hearing panel for its consideration.  Mr. Moore moved 
to enter into executive session for the purpose of deliberating the disciplinary 
matter and discussing the respondent’s professional competency.  The motion 
was adopted after a unanimous roll call vote in the affirmative. 

 
It was noted the hearing panel entered executive session at 8:45 a.m. and then 
reconvened in open session at 8:50 a.m. 
 
 Ms. Hall moved, 

Resolved, that the Board’s hearing panel, having heard the 
testimony and considered the evidence, accept the Findings of 
Fact as proposed by the Prosecuting Attorney, adopt them as our 
own, and then enter them into the hearing record. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Ms. Hall then 
moved, 

Resolved, that the Board’s hearing panel accept the Conclusions 
of Law as proposed by the Prosecuting Attorney, adopt them as 
our own, and then enter them into the hearing record. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Ms. Hall then 
moved, 

Resolved, that the hearing panel enter the following order at this 
time: 

It is ordered, adjudged, and decreed that Louisiana 
Pharmacy Technician Certificate No. 12478, held by Latoya 
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Ranisha Robinson, shall be and is hereby revoked, effective 
on the entry of this order, and further, the respondent shall 
pay the following assessments: 
(1) A fine of $1,000; 
(2) The administrative hearing fee of $250; and 
(3) The investigative and hearing costs, including the 

costs of the prosecuting attorney, and the official 
recorder; and 

It is further ordered the acceptance of any future application 
for the reinstatement of this certificate, or any application for 
any other credential issued by the Board, shall be 
conditioned upon the satisfaction of the following terms: 
(1) Respondent shall have paid all assessments levied 

      herein; and   
(2) Respondent shall have no pending legal or 

      disciplinary actions against her in any jurisdiction. 
The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 
 

Immediately following the conclusion of the first case, Mr. Aron informed the members 
and guests of a change in the membership of the hearing panel.  In particular, the 
members of the Reinstatement Committee meeting on February 23, 2016 were recused 
from the hearing on the next case due to their prior knowledge of the case.  All of the 
remaining members of the Board present served as the hearing panel for the case.  In 
addition, Mr. Aron recused himself from the case, and appointed Mr. McKay – the 
ranking board officer not recused – as the hearing officer for the case. 
 

Marco Bisa Moran (PST.016442) Ms. Cangelosi appeared for the Board.  Ms. 
Jennifer Thomas appeared for the respondent, and the respondent Marco Bisa 
Moran, was also present.  Ms. Cangelosi offered an opening statement.  At the 
outset of her opening statement, Ms. Thomas filed an objection to the 
composition of the hearing panel, noting the panelists were active market 
participants, and further, such a composition was contrary to the holding of the 
U.S. Supreme Court in the North Carolina State Dental Board Examiners v. 
Federal Trade Commission, but agreed to participate in the hearing.  Mr. McKay 
noted her objection and requested she continue with her opening statement.  At 
the conclusion of the respondent’s opening statement, Ms. Cangelosi offered a 
rebuttal to the objection to the composition of the hearing panel; she noted an 
opinion from the Four Circuit Court of Appeal which held a board’s composition 
of active market participants was not a barrier to disciplinary proceedings against 
a single licensee, but was relevant in the issuance of opinions and orders 
affecting scope of practice of multiple licensees.  Mr. McKay requested Ms. 
Cangelosi present her case.  Ms. Cangelosi presented one witness and 23 
exhibits.  During the presentation of Ms. Cangelosi’s exhibits, Ms. Thomas filed a 
motion requesting Board’s Exhibit C be placed under seal.  Ms. Cangelosi 
suggested the record was in the public domain, but offered to allow the decision 
on the motion to be made after the hearing but before any potential appeal 
proceeding.  Ms. Thomas presented one witness (respondent) and 9 exhibits.  
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Both attorneys offered closing statements, then proffered proposed findings of 
fact, conclusions of law, and proposed orders.  The case was then tendered to 
the hearing panel for its consideration.  Mr. Moore moved to enter into executive 
session for the purpose of deliberating the disciplinary matter and discussing the 
respondent’s professional competency.  The motion was adopted after a 
unanimous roll call vote in the affirmative. 

 
It was noted the hearing panel entered executive session at 3:00 p.m. and then 
reconvened in open session at 4:40 p.m. 

 
Mr. Moore moved, 

Resolved, that the Board’s hearing panel, having heard the 
testimony and considered the evidence, accept the Findings of 
Fact as proposed by the Respondent’s Attorney, modify them by:  
 Amending Item 8 to read “On January 31, 2008, the 

Mississippi Board of Pharmacy investigated Delta Pharmacy in 
Cleveland, Mississippi for discrepancies in the records of receipt 
and disposal of controlled substances listed in Schedules III, IV, 
and V, as well as carisoprodol, and for shipping prescription 
drugs to other states without the pharmacy permits required to 
engage in that activity.  Mr. Moran was the Pharmacist-in-
Charge at the time of the investigation.  The Mississippi Board 
of Pharmacy ordered Mr. Moran to pay a cost of the 
investigation, but held a one year suspension and monetary 
penalties in abeyance.  Mr. Moran’s Mississippi license 
remained on probation without any additional time added to the 
original ten year term. [Board Exhibit J]”; 

 Deleting Items 10, 12, 13, 30, and 34; and further, 
To accept the Findings of Fact as proposed by the Prosecuting 
Attorney, modify them by: 
 Amending Item 5-u to delete the words “met with Marco B. 

Moran, and”; 
 Amending Item 9 to reflect the presence of the respondent 

at these proceedings; and 
 Amending Item 10 to reflect the respondent’s representation 

by Jennifer Thomas; and further, 
To enter the amended findings as our own and then enter them 
into the hearing record. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Moore 
then moved, 

Resolved, that the Board’s hearing panel accept the first 
Conclusion of Law as proposed by the Prosecuting Attorney, adopt 
it as our own, and then enter it into the hearing record. 

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.  Mr. Moore 
then moved, 

Resolved, that the hearing panel enter the following order at this 
time: 
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It is ordered, adjudged, and decreed that the application for 
the reinstatement of Louisiana Pharmacist License No. 
16442, held by Marco Bisa Moran, shall be, and is hereby, 
denied, effective on the entry of this order; and further, the 
respondent shall pay the following assessments: 
(1) The administrative hearing fee of $250; and 
(2) The investigative and hearing costs, including the 

      costs of the prosecuting attorney and the official 
      recorder; and 

It is further ordered, the acceptance of any future application 
for the reinstatement of this license, or any application for 
any other credential issued by the Board, shall be 
conditioned upon the satisfaction of the following terms: 
(1) Respondent shall have paid all assessments levied 

      hearing; and 
(2) Respondent shall have no pending legal or 

      disciplinary matters against him in any jurisdiction. 
 The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. 

 
Mr. McKay relinquished the chair to Mr. Aron.  Mr. Aron asked Mr. Finalet about the four 
remaining cases scheduled for hearing that day.  Mr. Finalet suggested that due to the 
lateness of the hour, the impending severe weather system in the area, and the fact 
that the credentials at issue are no longer active, it would be wise to defer the four 
remaining cases until the November session.  Mr. Aron agreed. 
 
Mr. Aron expressed his appreciation to Ms. Cangelosi and Ms. Erkle for their services 
that day. 
 
G.  Adjourn 
Having completed the tasks itemized on the posted agenda, with no further business 
pending before the Board, and without objection, Mr. Aron adjourned the meeting at 
2:45 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Brian A. Bond 
Secretary 



 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
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November 16, 2016 
 
 
Agenda Item 6:  Report on Action Items 
 
During the report from the Executive Committee at your last Board meeting, you adopted a regulatory 
proposal relative to the distribution of naloxone and other opioid antagonists pursuant to standing orders 
from practitioners with prescriptive authority for those drug products, and further, you approved a 
declaration of emergency to implement the rule immediately, effective on August 10, 2016.  That night, we 
filed the Notice of Emergency Rule with the report with the administrative and legislative officers required 
to receive such notices, filed the insertion order with the state register, and sent an electronic notice of 
rulemaking activity to all pharmacies, pharmacists, pharmacy interns, pharmacy technicians, pharmacy 
technician candidates, and the electronic List of Interested Parties. 
 
During that same report, you adopted a motion directing utilization of a new pharmacy inspection form, no 
later than September 1, 2016, in those pharmacies performing sterile or non-sterile compounding for the 
benefit of Louisiana residents.  Our compliance officers have begun using that expanded inspection form, 
focusing initially on those compounding pharmacies shipping sterile prescription products across state 
lines. 
 
During that same report, you adopted a motion directing the formal notice to all pharmacies licensed by 
the Board of the inspection requirement that will become effective for the Calendar Year 2018 renewal – a 
satisfactory inspection report dated no later than two years prior to the date of the renewal application.  
We mailed hard copy notices to all the pharmacies licensed by the Board on October 26, 2016, thus 
providing more than one year’s notice to all pharmacies of the new requirement. 
 
During the report from the Regulation Revision Committee, you considered the comments and testimony 
from the May 25, 2016 public hearing relative to Regulatory Project 2016-2 ~ Pharmacist-in-Charge in 
Nonresident Pharmacies.  You directed an appropriate reply to the single commentator, as well as the 
submission of the Second Report to the Joint Legislative Oversight Committee on Health & Welfare.  We 
replied to the commentator and filed the legislative report on November 14.  Subject to further review by 
the legislative committee, we anticipate publication of the Final Rule in the January 20, 2017 edition of the 
Louisiana Register, with an immediate effective date.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Malcolm J Broussard 
Executive Director 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present 
and voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or 
physical or mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or 
negotiations with respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
  

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Finance Committee has been 
ordered and called for 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 15, 2016 in the Board office, 
for the purpose to wit: 
 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes final. 

Revised 10-25-2016 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Quorum Call 
 
3. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
 
4. Opportunity for Public Comment 
 
5. Consideration of Interim Report for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
 
6. Consideration of Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
 
7. Adjourn 
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Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017

Statement of Assets, Liabilities, Equity
FY 15-16 FY 16-17

Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2017
ASSETS

> Current Assets
      *     Cash

General Operations
Whitney Bank 160,674 160,715
Iberia Bank 977,494 753,448

Hurricane Relief Fund - Whitney Bank 83,305 83,326
Reserve Funds

General Account 1,250,999 1,247,702
OPEB Account 1,113,112 1,109,819
Pension Account 992,198 989,025

     *     Total Cash 4,577,782 4,344,035

     *     Prepaid Expenses 29,900 6,600

     *     Accounts Receivable 330 0

Total Current Assets 4,608,012 4,350,635

> Fixed Assets
Land: Lot 5-A, Towne Center Business Park 709,080 709,080
Land: Lot 1-A-2, Leonard Place Subdivision 295,860 295,860
Office Building - 3388 Brentwood Drive 1,057,861 1,057,861
Office Equipment 222,949 222,949
Furniture 156,785 156,785
Software: Licensure & Website 408,560 408,560
Accumulated Depreciation (826,997) (842,534)

Total Fixed Assets 2,024,098 2,008,561

TOTAL ASSETS 6,632,110 6,359,196

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 598,982 598,982

TOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 7,231,092 6,958,178

LIABILITIES
> Current Liabilites

Accrued salaries and benefits 27,169 0
Unemployment taxes payable 69 15
State taxes withheld 4,820 2,998
State retirement withheld 0 0
Accounts payable 5,097 0
Compensated absences (ST) 43,997 43,997

Total Current Liabilities 81,152 47,010



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017

Statement of Assets, Liabilities, Equity
FY 15-16 FY 16-17

Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2017
LIABILITIES (cont.)

> Long Term Liabilities
Compensated absences (LT) 76,420 76,420
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Payable 1,172,029 1,172,029
Net Pension Liability 4,545,653 4,545,653

Total Long Term Liabilities 5,794,102 5,794,102

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,875,254 5,841,112

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 61,980 61,980

EQUITY
Fund Balance at End of Prior Fiscal Year (1,844,591) (898,629)
Fund Balance - designated 184,290 184,290
Invested in Fixed Assets 2,024,098 2,008,561
Net Income/Loss 930,061 (239,136)
TOTAL EQUITY 1,293,858 1,055,086

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, & EQUITY 7,231,092 6,958,178



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Budget Performance

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17
Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2016 Budget (A#1)

Licenses & Permits
Pharmacist Renewals 811,750 1,900 815,000
New Pharmacist Licensing Fee 183,600 27,600 185,000
Technician Renewals 334,150 9,600 335,000
Technician Candidate Registrations 36,000 9,825 35,000
Lapsed Credential Fees 46,400 5,400 30,000
Student Registrations 2,890 960 3,000
Permits - Pharmacies 301,175 10,025 300,000
Permits - CDS 466,580 92,715 465,000
Permits - Emergency Drug Kits 11,875 950 12,000
Permits - Automated Medication Systems 20,100 600 20,000
Permits - Durable Medical Equipment 84,275 74,625 85,000

Examinations
Reciprocity 54,000 10,950 55,000
Technicians 63,500 14,400 60,000

Penalties
Licenses and Certificates 8,450 800 9,000
Permits 11,815 6,112 12,000

Administrative Fees
Documents: Copies and Certification Fees 5,686 1,066 5,000
Duplicate Credentials 5,450 1,190 5,000
Silver Certificates 300 200 300
Original Certificates 8,560 2,550 7,500
NSF Fees 550 125 500
Handling & Mailing Fees 270 121 200

Sale of Goods & Services
Law Books 2,445 105 3,000
Official Lists of Licensees 12,450 2,700 12,000
USCPSC Inspection Fee 2,400 0 2,000
Disposal of Assets 0 0 0

Enforcement Actions
Hearing Fees 22,250 4,750 22,000
Fines 448,000 30,500 300,000
Investigative Costs 14,246 1,275 20,000

Prescription Monitoring Program
Assessments 512,000 98,225 510,000

Miscellaneous 2,205 3,453 1,000

TOTAL REVENUE 3,473,372 412,722 3,309,500

Revenue



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Budget Performance

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17
Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2016 Budget (A#1)

Operations Rentals - Office & Equipment 15,218 3,688 17,000
Equipment Maintenance 2,754 2,165 3,000
Telephone 19,029 3,621 20,000
Printing 23,951 8,432 25,000
Postage 56,467 20,016 50,000
Civil Service Assessment 6,323 5,805 6,500
Office Insurance (ORM) 8,931 10,595 9,000
Dues & Subscriptions 5,832 7,631 7,500
Office Supply Expenses 19,008 3,786 21,000
Financial Service Charges 50,755 2,725 50,000
Depreciation of Fixed Assets 64,639 15,537 64,000
Interest Payments on Building Loan 11,296 0 0
Office Meeting Expenses 829 170 1,000
Utilities 9,714 1,922 10,000
Miscellaneous 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 380 25,000

Personal Services Salaries 1,257,374 275,609 1,582,000
Payroll Taxes (FICA + FUTA) 22,653 4,409 32,000
Retirement Contributions 384,560 97,882 594,000
Health Insurance (SEGBP) 139,728 38,094 175,000
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 76,029 0 100,000
Board Member Per Diem 29,850 4,950 30,000

Professional Services     Accounting 26,143 9,009 30,000
Legal 14,489 0 25,000
Information Systems 108,316 78,931 125,000
Property Management 18,745 5,389 40,000
Temp. Labor 9,240 1,028 20,000
Prescription Monitoring Program 76,100 12,600 90,000

Staff Expenses ED - Travel 9,204 635 10,000
GC - Travel 9,483 4,321 10,000
AED - Travel 6,025 4,795 10,000
CO - Travel 6,268 110 7,000
CO - Rental Cars & Fuel 16,227 1,763 17,500
CO - Education 4,669 1,550 14,000
House Staff - Travel 75 0 1,000
Mileage 13,009 3,881 20,000

Board Expenses
Meeting Expenses 12,760 4,423 15,000
Committee Expenses 6,720 92 8,000
Conventions 17,742 1,760 20,000
Mileage 13,411 1,822 15,000
President's Expenses 9,063 2,742 10,000

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,582,629 642,268 3,309,500

Expenses



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017

Summary of Income Fund Balance Changes

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17
Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2016 Budget (A#1)

Income Statement

Total Revenue 3,473,372 412,722 3,309,500

Total Expenses 2,582,629 642,268 3,309,500

Net Ordinary Income 890,743 (229,546) 0

Other Income & Expenses

Investment 39,318 (9,590) 0

Net Income 930,061 (239,136) 0

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17
Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2016 Budget (A#1)

Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance 363,796 1,293,857 1,293,857

Total Income 3,512,690 403,132 3,309,500

Total Expenses 2,582,629 642,268 3,309,500

Ending Fund Balance 1,293,857 1,054,721 1,293,857

Reservations of Fund Balance 772,000 1,237,000 1,750,000

Unreserved Fund Balance 521,857 (1,080,671) (456,143)

Notes on Reservation of Fund Balance
Net Pension Liability 0 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other Post Employment Benefits 572,000 500,000 500,000
Continuing Payroll Obligations 150,000 150,000 150,000
Land & Building Maintenance 50,000 100,000 100,000

Total 772,000 1,750,000 1,750,000

Summary



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017

Schedule A - Hurricane Katrina/Rita Pharmacy Relief Fund

Statement of Assets, Liabilities & Equity FY 15-16 FY 16-17
Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2016

ASSETS
Current Assets

Hancock Bank - Checking Account 83,305 83,326

TOTAL ASSETS 83,305 83,326

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites 0 0

EQUITY
Retained Earnings 83,221 83,305
Net Income 84 21

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 83,305 83,326

Statement of Receipts & Disbursements FY 15-16 FY 16-17
Q4 06/30/2016 Q1 09/30/2017

RECEIPTS
FEMA - Funds for payment of claims 8,920,812 8,920,812
FEMA - Administrative allowance 81,103 81,103
Pharmacies - reversal of claims 430,138 430,138
Interest income 22,230 22,251

TOTAL RECEIPTS 9,454,283 9,454,304

DISBURSEMENTS
Claims paid to pharmacies 8,920,812 8,920,812
Reversed claim funds returned 430,138 430,138
Reversed administrative allowance returned 7,338 7,338
Interest earned on reversed admin. allowance returned 12,690 12,690

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 9,370,978 9,370,978

FUND BALANCE 83,305 83,326

Note: These funds are held in an account separate and apart from the Board's
operating funds.  Further, all recordkeeping is kept separate from the Board's
general fund records.  At the conclusion of the audit exposure period, any
funds remaining will be transferred to the Board's operating account.



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2016-2017

Summary of Board Actions

Date Action

11/17/2015 Original Budget - Finance Committee Approval

11/18/2015 Original Budget - Board Approval

8/9/2016 Budget Amendment #1 - Finance Committee Approval

8/10/2016 Budget Amendment #1 - Board Approval

Budget Amendment #2 - Finance Committee Approval

Budget Amendment #2 - Board Approval

Acceptance of Final Report
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Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2017-2018 ~ Original Budget Worksheet

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
Actual (A) 9/30/2016 Budget (A#1) Proposed Notes

Licenses & Permits
4201 Pharmacist Renewals 811,750 1,900 815,000 815,000 1
4206 New Pharmacist Licensing Fee 183,600 27,600 185,000 185,000 2
4204 Technician Renewals 334,150 9,600 335,000 335,000 3
4208 Technician Candidate Registrations 36,000 9,825 35,000 35,000 4
4205 Lapsed Credential Fees 46,400 5,400 30,000 30,000 5
4350 Student Registrations 2,890 960 3,000 3,000 6
4301 Permits - Pharmacies 301,175 10,025 300,000 300,000 7
4302 Permits - CDS 466,580 92,715 465,000 466,000 8
4303 Permits - Emergency Drug Kits 11,875 950 12,000 12,000 9
4304 Permits - AMS 20,100 600 20,000 20,000 10
4306 Permits - Durable Medical Equipment 84,275 74,625 85,000 85,000 11

Examinations
4153 Reciprocity 54,000 10,950 55,000 54,000 12
4152 Technicians 63,500 14,400 60,000 61,000 13

Penalties
4252 Licenses and Certificates 8,450 800 9,000 9,000 14
4251 Permits 11,815 6,112 12,000 12,000 15

Administrative Fees
4460+62 Documents: Copies & Certification Fees 5,686 1,066 5,000 5,000 16

4452 Duplicate Credentials 5,450 1,190 5,000 5,000 17
4453 Silver Certificates 300 200 300 300 18
4459 Original Certificates 8,560 2,550 7,500 7,500 19
4454 NSF Fees 550 125 500 500 20
4463 Handling & Mailing Fees 270 121 200 200 21

Sale of Goods & Services
4402 Law Books 2,445 105 3,000 2,500 22
4461 Official Lists of Licensees 12,450 2,700 12,000 12,000 23
4458 USCPSC Inspection Fee 2,400 0 2,000 2,000 24
4457 Disposal of Assets 0 0 0 0

Enforcement Actions
4102 Hearing Fees 22,250 4,750 22,000 22,000 25
4501 Fines 448,000 30,500 300,000 200,000 26
4502 Investigative Costs 14,246 1,275 20,000 15,000 27

Prescription Monitoring Program
4660 Assessments 512,000 98,225 510,000 515,000 28

4455 Miscellaneous 2,205 3,453 1,000 1,000 29

TOTAL REVENUE 3,473,372 412,722 3,309,500 3,210,000 30

Revenue



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2017-2018 ~ Original Budget Worksheet

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
Operations Actual (A) 9/30/2016 Budget (A#1) Proposed Notes

5321 Rentals - Office & Equipment 15,218 3,688 17,000 17,000 31
5330 Equipment Maintenance 2,754 2,165 3,000 3,000 32
5370 Telephone 19,029 3,621 20,000 23,000 33
5305 Printing 23,951 8,432 25,000 27,000 34
5300 Postage 56,467 20,016 50,000 57,000 35
5125 Civil Service Assessment 6,323 5,805 6,500 6,500 36
5230 Office Insurance (ORM) 8,931 10,595 9,000 11,000 37
5190 Dues & Subscriptions 5,832 7,631 7,500 10,000 38
5280 Office Supply Expenses 19,008 3,786 21,000 20,000 39
5381 Financial Service Charges 50,755 2,725 50,000 52,000 40
5180 Depreciation of Fixed Assets 64,639 15,537 64,000 64,000 41
5385 Interest Payments on Building Loan 11,296 0 0 0 42
5260 Office Meeting Expenses 829 170 1,000 1,000 43
5390 Utilities 9,714 1,922 10,000 10,000 44
5270 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 45

5106 Acquisitions 0 380 25,000 25,000 46

5350 Personal Services      Salaries 1,257,374 275,609 1,582,000 1,471,000 47
5290 Payroll Taxes (FICA + FUTA) 22,653 4,409 32,000 29,000 48
5340 Retirement Contributions 384,560 97,882 594,000 547,000 49
5220 Health Insurance (SEGBP) 139,728 38,094 175,000 162,000 50
5400 Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 76,029 0 100,000 100,000 51
5152 Board Member Per Diem 29,850 4,950 30,000 30,000 52

5110 Professional Services     Accounting 26,143 9,009 30,000 30,000 53
5250 Legal 14,489 0 25,000 25,000 54
5295 Information Systems 108,316 78,931 125,000 125,000 55
5297 Property Management 18,745 5,389 40,000 40,000 56
5296 Temp. Labor 9,240 1,028 20,000 20,000 57
5600 Prescription Monitoring Program 76,100 12,600 90,000 90,000 58

5361 Staff Expenses      ED - Travel 9,204 635 10,000 10,000 59
5365 GC - Travel 9,483 4,321 10,000 10,000 60
5373 AED - Travel 6,025 4,795 10,000 10,000 61
5363 CO - Travel 6,268 110 7,000 7,000 62

5371+72 CO - Rental Cars & Fuel 16,227 1,763 17,500 17,500 63
5368 CO - Education 4,669 1,550 14,000 12,000 64
5366 House Staff - Travel 75 0 1,000 10,000 65

5362++ Mileage 13,009 3,881 20,000 20,000 66

Board Expenses
5153 Meeting Expenses 12,760 4,423 15,000 15,000 67
5155 Committee Expenses 6,720 92 8,000 8,000 68
5154 Conventions 17,742 1,760 20,000 20,000 69
5151 Mileage 13,411 1,822 15,000 15,000 70

5286++ President's Expenses 9,063 2,742 10,000 10,000 71

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,582,629 642,268 3,309,500 3,160,000 72

Expenses



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2017-2018 ~ Original Budget Worksheet

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
Actual (A) 9/30/2016 Budget (A#1) Proposed Notes

Income Statement

Total Revenue 3,473,372 412,722 3,309,500 3,210,000

Total Expenses 2,582,629 642,268 3,309,500 3,160,000

Net Ordinary Income 890,743 (229,546) 0 50,000

Other Income & Expenses
6003 Investment 39,318 (9,590) 0 0

2350 Reserve Accounts 0 0 0 50,000 73

Net Income 930,061 (239,136) 0 0

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
Actual (A) 9/30/2016 Budget (A#1) Proposed

Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance 363,796 1,293,857 1,293,857 1,293,857

Total Income 3,512,690 403,132 3,309,500 3,210,000

Total Expenses 2,582,629 642,268 3,309,500 3,210,000

Ending Fund Balance 1,293,857 1,054,721 1,293,857 1,293,857

Reservations of Fund Balance 772,000 1,750,000 1,750,000 1,750,000

Unreserved Fund Balance 521,857 (695,279) (456,143) (456,143)

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
Actual (A) 9/30/2016 Budget (A#1) Proposed

Notes on Reservation of Fund Balance
Net Pension Liability 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other Post Employment Benefits 572,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Continuing Payroll Obligations 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
Land & Bldg Maintenance 50,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

TOTAL 772,000 1,750,000 1,750,000 1,750,000

Summary



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2017-2018 ~ Original Budget Worksheet

Revenue

1 Estimate 8,150 pharmacists to renew, at $100 each
2 Estimate 250 new graduates and 360 reciprocities, for 615 new pharmacists, at $300 each
3 Estimate 6,700 technicians to renew, at $50 each
4 Estimate 1,400 applications for pharmacy technician candidate registration, at $25 each
5 Estimate 150 reinstatement applications, at $200 each, pursuant to modified fee policy
6 Estimate 300 applications for pharmacy intern registration, at $10 each
7 Estimate 2,040 pharmacies to renew, at $125 each + 300 new pharmacies, at $150 each
8 Using historical data for CDS license renewals
9 Estimate 480 EDK permits, at $25 each
10 Estimate 130 AMS registrations at $150 each
11 Estimate 680 DME permits, at $125 each
12 Estimate 360 reciprocity applications, at $150 each
13 Estimate 610 applications for pharmacy technician certificate, at $100 each
14 Using historical data for penalty fees applied to renewal of lapsed credentials for people
15 Using historical data for penalty fees applied to renewal of lapsed credentials for places
16 Using historical data
17 Using historical data
18 Estimate 3 pharmacists to order silver certificates, at $100 each
19 Estimate 100 pharmacists to order new wall certificates, at $75 each
20 Using historical data
21 Using historical data
22 Using historical data for law book purchases, including $40 binders and $15 supplements
23 Estimate sales of 80 lists, at $150 each
24 Using historical data
25 88 cases anticipated: Violations, Reinstatement, and Impairment Committees
26 Estimated at 6% of total revenue
27 Using historical data
28 Estimate 20,600 clients, at $25 each
29 Using historical data
30 Reflects a 3% decrease from the FY 17 budget and an 8% decrease from FY 16 revenue

NOTES



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2017-2018 ~ Original Budget Worksheet

Expenses

31 Using historical data for two copiers, postage machine, and folding machine (Data Worksheet)
32 Using historical data for all office equipment
33 Using historical data for all telephone systems maintenance and call volumes
34 Includes office products and NABP e-Newsletter; excludes printed version of newsletter
35 Using historical data, with focus on reducing use of snail mail in favor of email
36 Using historical data, with premium determined by State Div. of Administration
37 Using historical data, with premium determined by State Div. of Administration
38 Using historical data, with reduction of certain subscriptions
39 Using historical data for purchase of office supplies
40 Using historical data for service charges applied to credit cards used for online renewals
41 Using historical data from depreciation schedule of fixed assets maintained by accountant
42 Final payment on building loan paid 12-01-2015.
43 Using historical data for office meeting expenses
44 Using historical data for utilities
45 Using historical data
46 Routine replacement of computer hardward at end-of-life.
47 Includes no performance adjustments for staff.
48 Calculated value: 2% of salaries + temp labor
49 Calculated value: 37.2% of salaries
50 Calculated value: 11% of salaries
51 Actual obligation provided to agency at end of fiscal year; this entry is historical data
52 Using historical data for board member per diem payments
53 Using historical data, for accountant and legislative auditor
54 Using historical data, for prosecuting attorney and advisor to hearing officer, + collections
55 Annual maintenance fees for eLicense, network support, and medical assessments
56 Routine services for property + anticipated repairs (Data Worksheet)
57 Using historical data, for high school COE workers
58 Professional services from program vendor, per contract
59 Using historical data for travel expenses for executive director
60 Using historical data for travel expenses for general counsel
61 Using historical data for travel expenses for assistant executive director
62 Using historical data for routine travel during inspections and investigations
63 Cost of rental cars and fuel for compliance officers
64 $2,000 allowance for each of six compliance officers
65 For educational development of office staff
66 Using historical data, for entire staff
67 Using historical data for member expenses at board meetings
68 Using historical data for member expenses at committee meetings
69 Using historical data for member expenses at conferences
70 Using historical data for mileage from all members except the president
71 Using historical data for the president's expenses
72 Reflects a 22% increase over FY 16 actual expenses but a 4.5% decrease from FY 17 budget.

Summary

73 Planned allocation to reserve accounts to fund long-term liabilities

NOTES



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
FY 2017-2018 ~ Original Budget Worksheet

Date Action

11/15/2016 Original Budget - Finance Committee Approval

11/16/2016 Original Budget - Board Approval

Budget Amendment #1 - Finance Committee Approval

Budget Amendment #1 - Board Approval

Acceptance of Final Report



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
FY 2017-2018 

Budget Proposal 
 

Data Worksheet 
 
Acct      Name 
  Operations 
 
5321 Equipment Rentals         16,800 
  Copier #1   375/month  04,500 
  Copier #2   375/month  04,500 
  Postage + folder  650/month  07,800 
 
5370 Telephone System          22,300   

Annual Maintenance Fee 1,600/year  01,600 
AT&T charges   400/month  04,800 
State OTM charges  675/month  08,100 
Administrative officers (2) 325/month  07,800  

 
5305 Printing           17,000 
  Office products   historical basis/year 15,000 
  NABP e-Newsletter  4 issues/year  01,000 
  Board member elections 2018 term expirations 01,000 
 
5125 Civil Service Assessment        06,500 
      FY 15-16 actual  06,323 
      FY 16-17 actual  05,805 
 
5230 Office Insurance (ORM)         11,000    
      FY 15-16 actual  08,931 
      FY 16-17 actual  10,595 
 
5190 Dues & Subscriptions         10,000 

FY 15-16 actual  05,832 
      FY 16-17 budget 07,500 
 
5390 Utilities           10,000 
      Electric (est.)  09,000 
      Water (est.)  00,900 
      FY 15-16 actual  09,714 
 
  Acquisitions 
 
5105 Acquisitions          25,000 
      Planned rotations of computers, 

printers, software, and furniture 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Personal Services 
 
5350 Salaries                   1,471,000 
      Includes no performance adjustments 
 
5340 Retirement                      547,200  
      FY 15-16 Rate – 37.2% 
      FY 16-17 Rate – 37.2% 
      FY 17-18 Rate – ?  
 
5220 Health Insurance (SEGBP)                  161,800 

includes current staff as well as retirees 
      and widows; current experience is  
      11% of salaries. 
 
 
  Professional Services 
 
5295 Information Systems                    120,000 
      Iron Data Maintenance  70,000 
      Essential Solutions (support) 45,000 
      Medical assessments  05,000 
 
5297 Property Management                     40,000  
  Security   236/month  02,800 
  Interior Maintenance  250/month  03,000 
  Groundskeeping + Pest  460/month  05,500 
  Trash & Recycling  140/month  01,680   
  General Maintenance  165/month  02,000 
  A/C Unit Replacement  10,000/each  10,000 
  General Repairs  (roof replacement)   15,000 
 
5600 Prescription Monitoring Program       75,000 
  Contract awarded after  Public bid price was $378,000 over 5 years: 
  public bid process;   13-14 78,000 
  current vendor (Appriss)  14-15 76,800 
  acquired successful   15-16 76,800 
  bidder (Optimum Technology)  16-17 73,200   
       17-18 73,200 



 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Application Review Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov


 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Reciprocity Committee 
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law at La. R.S. 42:16, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present 
and voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, (4) discussions regarding personnel matters, or other purposes itemized at La. R.S. 42:17. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Reciprocity Committee has been ordered and called for 
8:00 a.m. on Wednesday, November 16, 2016 at the Board office, for the purpose to wit: 
 
 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes official. 

Revised 11-05-2016 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Quorum Call 
 
3. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
 
4. Opportunity for Public Comment 
 
5. Consideration of Applications 
 

A. Case No. 16-0267 ~ Eric James Smith – Applicant for PST License (by transfer from MA)  
  
6. Adjourn 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov


Applicant Interviewer
1 Louisa Asante Waived PST.021636 issued 08/03/16
2 Hali D. O'Malley Waived PST.021637 issued 08/03/16
3 Lisa S. Hutchinson Waived PST.021638 issued 08/03/16
4 Fallon E. Ojong Waived PST.021640 issued 08/03/16
5 Sara L. Sulzner Waived PST.021641 issued 08/03/16
6 Terrell W. Bohannon Waived PST.021664 issued 08/04/16
7 Sara B. Howes Waived PST.021665 issued 08/04/16
8 Christopher Y. Perseo Waived PST.021666 issued 08/04/16
9 Adrienne M. Horn Waived PST.021667 issued 08/04/16
10 Morgen S. Jaeger Waived PST.021672 issued 08/04/16
11 Amy A. Frost Waived PST.021673 issued 08/04/16
12 Jane L. Montijo Waived PST.021675 issued 08/08/16
13 Catherine J. Pacanovsky Waived PST.021676 issued 08/08/16
14 Emily M. Gray Waived PST.021678 issued 08/08/16
15 Jordan E. Mangum Waived PST.021683 issued 08/10/16
16 Jonathan M. Savoy Waived PST.021684 issued 08/10/16
17 Jennifer W. Lambert Waived PST.021702 issued 08/23/16
18 Marius Maree Waived PST.021703 issued 08/23/16
19 Bhavika A. Patel Waived PST.021704 issued 08/23/16
20 James H. Livingston Jr. Waived PST.021705 issued 08/23/16
21 Nitesh A. Patel Waived PST.021711 issued 08/26/16
22 Todd C. Burnett Waived PST.021714 issued 08/30/16
23 Mitchell R. Fingerhut Waived PST.021715 issued 08/30/16
24 Sarah L. Pearson Waived PST.021716 issued 08/30/16
25 Kyle B. Willis Waived PST.021717 issued 08/30/16
26 Matthew E. Bantz Waived PST.021720 issued 08/30/16
27 Kristi L. Hurley Waived PST.021721 issued 08/30/16
28 Taylor C. McMillion Waived PST.021730 issued 09/01/16
29 Vickie L. Jones Waived PST.021732 issued 09/02/16
30 Joan E. Morillo Waived PST.021734 issued 09/06/16
31 Theresa J. Min Waived PST.021735 issued 09/06/16
32 Joseph S. Christian Waived PST.021736 issued 09/06/16
33 Sierra J. Vig Waived PST.021737 issued 09/06/16
34 Dung T. K. Tathiah Waived PST.021746 issued 09/09/16
35 Roger S. Shaw Jr. Waived PST.021747 issued 09/09/16
36 Sean M. Johnston Waived PST.021748 issued 09/09/16
37 Kimberly J. McCroden Waived PST.021749 issued 09/09/16
38 Dina L. Branch Waived PST.021750 issued 09/09/16
39 Albert C. Chan Waived PST.021762 issued 09/21/16
40 Andrew L. Jackson Waived PST.021763 issued 09/21/16
41 Christopher J. Bracale Waived PST.021764 issued 09/21/16
42 David J. Hasebroock Waived PST.021765 issued 09/21/16
43 Jason A. Flebotte Waived PST.021774 issued 09/28/16
44 Bryan J. Katz Waived PST.021775 issued 09/28/16
45 Richard J. DeBartolo Jr. Waived PST.021777 issued 09/28/16
46 Lisa M. Sacavitch Waived PST.021778 issued 09/28/16
47 Cheryl B. Reid Waived PST.021779 issued 09/28/16
48 Anthony M. Wiseman Waived PST.021784 issued 09/29/16
49 Marilyn Medina Waived PST.021786 issued 10/04/16
50 Jacob D. Summer Waived PST.021787 issued 10/05/16
51 Matthew C. Harrison Waived PST.021788 issued 10/05/16
52 Raven S. Jackson Waived PST.021789 issued 10/06/16
53 Justin D. Weyer Waived PST.021791 issued 10/06/16
54 Hemali Upadhyaya Waived PST.021792 issued 10/06/16
55 John J. Docherty Waived PST.021793 issued 10/06/16
56 Courtney H. Stegman Waived PST.021795 issued 10/11/16
57 Meghan E. Dauzat Waived PST.021798 issued 10/13/16
58 Russell D. Plunkett Waived PST.021799 issued 10/13/16
59 Rosemary A. Yovonoo Waived PST.021801 issued 10/13/16
60 Katarzyna A. Grieser Waived PST.021802 issued 10/13/16
61 Nikosha K. Anderson Waived PST.021803 issued 10/18/16
62 Benjamin A. May Waived PST.021804 issued 10/18/16
63 Kendra D. Wright Waived PST.021806 issued 10/20/16
64 Sharron S. Seymour Waived PST.021807 issued 10/20/16
65 Julie A. Hasslinger Waived PST.021809 issued 10/25/16
66 Sy Q. Tran Waived PST.021810 issued 10/26/16
67 Cortney E. Jones Waived PST.021812 issued 10/26/16
68 Tiffany T. Nguyen Waived PST.021815 issued 10/28/16
69 Sheree N. Harwell-Cordray Waived PST.021816 issued 10/28/16
70 Karen E. Moss Waived PST.021822 issued 11/03/16
71 Cecelia A. Magness Waived PST.021826 issued 11/04/16

Total: 71

New Pharmacist Credentials Issued by Reciprocity
Issued Since 08-03-2016

Result



 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Violations Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Impairment Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov


 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law at La. R.S. 42:16, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present 
and voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, (4) discussions regarding personnel matters, or other purposes itemized at La. R.S. 42:17.. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Impairment Committee has been 
ordered and called for 1:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 15, 2016 at the Board office, 
for the purpose to wit:  
 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes official. 

Revised 10-15-2016 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Quorum Call  
 
3. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
 
4. Opportunity for Public Comment 
 
5. Review of Docket 

A. For Acceptance of Voluntary Surrenders of Credentials 
 

B. Petitions For Reinstatement of Suspended or Lapsed Credentials 
i. Case No. 16-0281 ~ CPT.001615 – Tiffany Annette Pitre 

 
C. Petitions for Modification of Previous Orders 

i. Case No. 16-0270 ~ PST.014961 – Leo Gerard Riche 
 

D. Applications for a Credential 
 

E. Appearances for Informal Conference 
 

F. Appearances for Guidance 
i. Case No. 16-0164 ~ PST.014060 – David Edward Gajeski 
ii. Case No. 16-0185 ~ CPT.006099 – Matthew Blake Strahan 

 
6. Adjourn 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov


 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Reinstatement Committee 
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law at La. R.S. 42:16, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members 
present and voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional 
competence, or physical or mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) 
strategy sessions or negotiations with respect to litigation, (4) discussions regarding personnel matters, or other purposes itemized 
at La. R.S. 42:17. 
 

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ Email: info@pharmacy.la.gov  
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Reinstatement Committee has been ordered 
and called for 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, November 15, 2016 in the Board office, for the purpose 
to wit: 
 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes official. 

Revised 11-12-2016 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Quorum Call 
 
3. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
 
4. Opportunity for Public Comment 
 
5. Consideration of Applications 

 
A. Petitions for Reinstatement  (suspended + lapsed > 5 years) 

Case No. 16-0278 ~ CPT.008316 – Heidi Nicole Leger 
Case No. 16-0279 ~ CPT.002935 – Tahirih LaSyne Greene 
Case No. 16-0280 ~ CPT.005450 – Brittany Kristen Fallon (Claverie) 

 
B. Petitions for Modification of Previous Orders 

Case No. 16-0248 ~ PST.016604 – Angela Nicole Hotard 
 

C. Petitions for Return of Inactive Licenses to Active Status 
 

[Note: Appearances are not required for the remaining applicants.] 
 

D. Petitions for Reinstatement  (suspended + lapsed > 5 years + chair’s discretion) 
i. PST.014794 – Tracy Miles 

 
E. Applications for Reinstatement of CDS Licenses Lapsed > 5 years 

i. CDS.024923.MD – Russell Thomas Phelps 
ii. CDS.031607.DDS – Thanh Ngoc Truong 
iii. CDS.018920.MD – Hugh Franklin Bullard 
iv. CDS.016527.MD – David Ford Lewis 
v. CDS.021079.MD – Mark Mitchell Cotter 
vi. CDS.034395.MD – Kinila T. Mohan 
vii. CDS.032760.MD – Joshua Yellin 
viii. CDS.035432.MD – Jodi Lyn Layton 
ix. CDS.026222.MD – Lanny Jay Turkewitz 
x. CDS.033595.MD – Richard Tushman 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov


 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law at La. R.S. 42:16, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members 
present and voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional 
competence, or physical or mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) 
strategy sessions or negotiations with respect to litigation, (4) discussions regarding personnel matters, or other purposes itemized 
at La. R.S. 42:17. 
 

xi. CDS.030611.MD – Kelly Davillier 
xii. CDS.007597.MD – David Carey Powell 
xiii. CDS.036875.DDS – Lindsey Brown Collins 

 
F. Applications for Reinstatement of CDS Licenses Previously Suspended Secondary 

to Action by Another Agency 
i. CDS.012146.MD – Eric Edward Holt 
ii. CDS.023811.MD – Martha L. Coppage-Hoover 
iii. CDS.021410.MD – Peter Randall Galvan 
 

G. Discretionary Approvals by Committee Chair (lapsed > 1 year but < 5 years) 
i. CDS.044986.MD – Uyen D. Nguyen 
ii. CDS.043471.APN – Yvonnie Popovits Oakley 
iii. CDS.041450.MD – Treniece Nicholas Eubanks 
iv. CDS.025730.MD – Elizabeth R. Anderson-Doze 
v. CDS.043260.MD – Michael Christopher Blancaneaux 
vi. CDS.036332.MD – Zohreh Sarah Soltani 
vii. CDS.031549.DVM – David Hunter Kergosien 
viii. CDS.037423.APN – Bryan Charles Taylor 
ix. CDS.035119.MD – Gabriel Leese Dersam 
x. CPT.010655 – Ariel Nekia Tobias 
xi. CPT.011806 – Kina Denise Johnson 
xii. CDS.023955.MD – Myriam A. Ortiz-DeJesus 
xiii. CDS.044467.DVM – Monty James Galley 
xiv. CDS.029566.MD – George Edmond Smith 
xv. CDS.016608.MD – Linda Ann Rodrigue 
xvi. CDS.043569.OD – Tiffany Michelle Griffin 
xvii. CDS.042426.MD – Patrick Marshall Nichols 
xviii. CDS.020970.DDS – Charles S. Williams 
xix. CDS.0206513.MD – Blanca Ivelisse Osorio 
xx. CDS.044956.DDS – Colten Wayne Ducote 
xxi. CDS.020629.DDS – James Richard Churchman 
xxii. CDS.043398.DDS – Britsol Marie Williams 
xxiii. CDS.037375.MFR – Lehigh Valley Technologies, Inc. 
xxiv. CPT.011094 – Kaitlyn Levie 
xxv. CPT.012394 – Donna Dyer 
xxvi. CPT.010275 – Angela Anderson 
xxvii. CDS.041450.MD – Treniece Nichols Eubanks 
xxviii. CDS.024686.MD – Ross David Judice 
xxix. CDS.043471.APN – Yvonne Popovits Oakley 
xxx. CDS.043799.MD – Adam Christopher Harless 
xxxi. CDS.022693.MD – Ann Elizabeth Borreson 
xxxii. CDS.037965.DVM – Jill Yates Laubersheimer 
xxxiii. CDS.006470.MD – Jim Glenn Adams 
xxxiv. CDS.033786.PA – Amanda Leigh Williams 
xxxv. CDS.021668.MD – Anne Foundas 
xxxvi. CDS.035441.MD – Matthew David Gamble 
xxxvii. CDS.032359.MD – Todd Donavon Gaddis 
xxxviii. CDS.033133.MD – Joseph Wesley Diggs 
xxxix. CDS.011516.DDS – Michael B. Leonard 

xl. CDS.037146.DVM - Lori W. Chang 



 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law at La. R.S. 42:16, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members 
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strategy sessions or negotiations with respect to litigation, (4) discussions regarding personnel matters, or other purposes itemized 
at La. R.S. 42:17. 
 

xli. CDS.031422.MD - Raghotham R. Patlola 
xlii. CDS.042176.DVM - Denise L. Isralson 
xliii. CDS.042592.DVM - Justin V. Jensen 
xliv. CDS.040478.MD - Hina B. Patel 
xlv. CDS.0303817.MD – Susan K. Fielkow 
xlvi. CDS.034204.MD – Charles Eric McCathran 

 
H. Staff Approvals by Board Policy (lapsed < 1 year) 

i. CDS.022353.MD – Keith B. Kessel 
ii. CDS.02683.MD – Ava L. Nelson 
iii. CDS.034516.APN – Timothy Clyde Lewis 
iv. CDS.029502.MD – Jason J. Picard 
v. CDS.043281.DVM – Erica Capshaw Brooks 
vi. CDS.046078.MD – Adlai L. Pappy 
vii. CDS.037685.PA – Michelle Winter Harris 
viii. CDS.046181.APN – Elizabeth Candebat Harmon 
ix. CDS.043299.APN – Jayme L. Boudreaux 
x. CDS.032261.MD – Katheryn Knighten Beatty 
xi. AMS.010613.X – Aspen Pharmacy 
xii. AMS.010532.X – Aspen Pharmacy 
xiii. CDS.045739.APN – May N. Siripant 
xiv. DME.000103 – Morgan Medical 
xv. CDS.027055.DDS – Louis C. Passauer, Jr. 
xvi. AMS.010334.X – CVS pharmacy #5617 
xvii. CDS.037926.MD – Asghar Majeed Bajwa 
xviii. CDS.033581.OD – Madeline M. Borne 
xix. CDS.026614.DVM – Kenneth A. Arceneaux 
xx. CDS.034459.MD – George N. Vailas 
xxi. CDS.043142.MD – Nelson Alexander Zamora 
xxii. CDS.006461.MD – Ronald J. French 
xxiii. CDS.044777.DDS – James Peter Terrebonne 
xxiv. CDS.019836.DDS – Carole Suzanne Windham 
xxv. CDS.044971.APN – Alicia Pratt Mitchell 
xxvi. CDS.016330.DDS – Glenn V. Schmidt 
xxvii. CDS.044945.MD – Elizabeth Marie Goodly 
xxviii. CDS.044839.DDS – Elizabeth Sloan Ponder 
xxix. CDS.046539.MD – Luke Anthony Cusimano 
xxx. CDS.044883.MD – Ana Cecilia San Martin 
xxxi. CDS.019831.DDS – David Kevin Prudhomme 
xxxii. CDS.032463.DDS – Raymond L. Poirrier, III 
xxxiii. CDS.021744.DVM - Rose Jackson Lemarie' 
xxxiv. CDS.010556.DDS – Robert Michael Lee 
xxxv. CDS.046645.MD - Courtney L. Shappley 
xxxvi. CDS.044836.APN - Phyllis Gayden Peterson 
xxxvii. CDS.004323.MD - Joseph D. Persich 
xxxviii. CDS.031455.DDS - Eugene Robert Graff, Jr. 
xxxix. CDS.043488.APN - Kathryn Monk Garner 

xl. CDS.045968.MD - Merrill H. Stewart, III 
xli. CDS.032118.DVM - Maria Rivera 
xlii. CDS.015319.MD – Stephen Olaf Sessions 
xliii. CDS.027319.MD – Scott Christopher Chapman 
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xliv. CDS.034530.MD – Stacy Rebecca Williams 
xlv. CDS.007534.MD – Matthew C. Holden 
xlvi. CDS.010009.MD – Jack A. Hurst 
xlvii. CDS.045010.APN – Michelle Wester Babin 
xlviii. CDS.046301.APN – Kathryn Navarro 
xlix. CDS.005331.MD – Jack R. Goodman 

l. CDS.043131.MD - Hari Bogabathina 
li. CDS.032558.DDS - Joseph P. Simone II 
lii. CDS.037837.MD - Angela E. Green 
liii. CDS.042173.HOS - Our Lady of the Lake Livingston 
liv. AMX.010663.X - Laningham's Thrifty Way 
lv. CDS.026248.MD – Betty J. Dowty 
lvi. CDS.032653.DDS – Jerald F. Turner 
lvii. CDS.046163.APN – Kristen Glorian Woods 
lviii. CDS.045212.DVM – Petrisor Baia 
lix. CDS.034538.DVM – Bridget Kidwell 
lx. CDS.037982.DVM – Morgan Fruge McDaniel 
lxi. CDS.043611.DVM – Robert Blake Hooks 
lxii. CDS.014163.DDS – Robert Dean Westerman 
lxiii. CDS.043454.MD – Ajay Shubhadeep Kallam 
lxiv. CDS.018661.DDS – Pamela B. Daniel 
lxv. CDS.046822.MD – Sarah Mike Alvarez 
lxvi. CDS.040540.DDS – Suzanne E. Fournier 
lxvii. CDS.035723.MD – Jagan M. R. Beedupalli 
lxviii. CDS.041861.DDS - Chase Ray Martin 
lxix. CDS.042102.MD - Shubhum Misra 
lxx. EDK.007090 - Many Healthcare North 
lxxi. CDS.046660.AMS - Resthaven Living Center 
lxxii. CDS.011439.DDS – Susan S. LeBon 
lxxiii. CDS.008936.DDS - Brian Gerard LeBon 
lxxiv. CDS.012333.DDS – Ronald Joseph Gustafson 
lxxv. CDS.041992.DDS – Richard Martin Rathke 
lxxvi. CDS.008215.MD – Sangeeta A. Shah 
lxxvii. CDS.001936.LAX - New Orleans Police Department Crime Lab 
lxxviii. CDS.006779.LAB - Northwest Louisiana Criminalistic Laboratory 
lxxix. CDS.005852.MD - Gerald W. Byrd 
lxxx. CDS.043552.MD - Daniella Miller 
lxxxi. CDS.013117.DDS - Gary David Marchand 
lxxxii. CDS.045046.MD – Barbara Ann Brunet 
lxxxiii. AMS.010459.X - Thrift-Town Pharmacy 
lxxxiv. CDS.042015.ETC - Florence K. LaBorde 
lxxxv. CDS.042099.MD - Jonathan D. Carroll 
lxxxvi. CDS.45044.MD – Thomas Edison Craig, Jr. 
lxxxvii. CDS.015608.MD - Ira Butler Fuller, III 
lxxxviii. CDS.038217.MD – Scott Patrick Mackey 
lxxxix. CDS.032548.MD – Jane DiLeo Congeni 

xc. CDS.040453.DVM – Laura Colleen Manyan 
xci. CDS.031548.DVM – Elizabeth A. Kergosien 
xcii. CDS.034555.APN – Debralee Ann Populis 
xciii. CDS.012150.MD – Linda Ann Doughty-White 
xciv. CDS.030569.DDS – Jennifer L. Banquer 
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xcv. CDS.014361.DDS – Raymond Howard John  
xcvi. CDS.006255.MD – Charles Alexander Barkemeyer 
xcvii. CDS.025450.DDS – Lotten Rayfield 
xcviii. CDS.005758.MD – Charles Leo Lee 
xcix. CDS.008152.MD – Mounir Mnayer 

c. CDS.029729.HOS – United Medical Rehab Hospital 
ci. AMS.010004.X – Lakeview Regional Center Pharmacy 
cii. CDS.037067.RES – Kori Legleu 
ciii. CDS.015204.DDs – Orus Ross Stephens 
civ. CDS.038123.DVM – Kelly Melinda Folse 
cv. CDS.004026.MD – Noel Lang Mills 
cvi. CDS.036067-HOS – Ochsner Medical Center West Bank 
cvii. CDS.044999.DVM – Lacey L. Werczynski 
cviii. CDS.012846.DDS – Jonathan L. Kirkland 
cix. CDS.046154.DVM – Cassan Nicole Pulaski 
cx. CDS.042468.DVM – Jennifer M Lang 
cxi. CDS.042674.MD – Christopher L. Martin 
cxii. CDS.045239.MD – Myles Landon Jaynes 
cxiii. CDS.046606.DIS – Intermed Distributors, Inc. 
cxiv. DME.000730 – Interventional Pain Institute 
cxv. CDS.002983.DVM – Diana Tran 
cxvi. CDS.016389.MD – Susan V. Williams 
cxvii. DME.000206 – Choice Medical Healthcare, Inc. 
cxviii. CDS.035936.PA - Joseph Lawrence Halphen 
cxix. CDS.036258.DVM – Louis E Cramer Jr 
cxx. CDS.046887.MD – Constance Larea Cole 
cxxi. CDS.013251.MD – Ira Markowitz 
cxxii. CDS.032134.MD – Mary Olmscheid Maytan 
cxxiii. CDS.031818.MD – Claude W. Zeifman 
cxxiv. CDS.047094.MD – Lee D. Michals 
cxxv. CDS.043570.APN – Katherine Marie North 
cxxvi. CDS.040931.MD – Katherine D. Dela Rosa 
cxxvii. CDS.043399.MD – Mark Roy Jenkins, II 
cxxviii. CDS.010823.MD – Isfana J. Ali 
cxxix. CDS.043219.APN – Jeronica Jose Hinyard 

 
6. Review of Committee Policies & Procedures 
 
7. Review of Regulatory Proposal 2016-H ~ Reinstatement of CDS Licenses 
 
8. Adjourn 
 



Regulatory Proposal 2016-H ~ Reinstatement of CDS Licenses                                                                     Draft #1 
 

 

 

Louisiana Administrative Code 1 
 2 

Title 46 – Professional and Occupational Standards 3 
 4 

Part LIII: Pharmacists 5 
 6 
 7 
Chapter 27.  Controlled Dangerous Substances 8 
 9 
… 10 
 11 
Subchapter B. Licenses 12 
 13 
… 14 
 15 
§2707.  Licensing Procedures 16 
A. – C.3  … 17 

4.     An application for the reinstatement of a CDS license for a pharmacy which was suspended or revoked by 18 
the board may only be approved by the full board following a hearing to determine whether the 19 
reinstatement of the license is in the public’s best interest.  For all other CDS licenses, the reinstatement 20 
may be approved by the joint consent of the chair of the reinstatement committee and the board president 21 
without the necessity of a hearing; when such approvals are issued, staff shall prepare a reinstatement order 22 
for the president’s signature. 23 

C.5 – D.5.e  … 24 
 25 
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:972. 26 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and Hospitals, Board of Pharmacy, LR 34:2131 27 
(October 2008), amended LR 28 
 29 
… 30 
 31 

 32 
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 4 
Approved: 02-10-2000      Revised:   5 
 6 

 7 
1.  The statutory authority for the Reinstatement Committee is RS 37:1249. 8 
 9 
2.  The regulatory authority for the Reinstatement Committee is LAC 46:LIII.109. 10 
 11 
3.  Current regulations indicate the expiration date of licenses issued by the Board. 12 

a. The pharmacist license expires December 31 of each year. 13 
(LAC 46:LIII.505.A.4) 14 

b. The pharmacy technician certificate expires June 30 of each year. (LAC 15 
46:LIII.807.D) 16 

c. The controlled dangerous substance (CDS) license expires one year after the 17 
date of issue. (LAC 46:LIII.2707.A.6) 18 

 19 
4.  Applications for licensure renewal placed in possession of authorized mail carriers, 20 

or received in the Board office, after the expiration date shall be referred to the 21 
Reinstatement Committee for its consideration. 22 

a.   For credentials lapsed less than one year, the Executive Director may 23 
exercise administrative discretion in the approval of the reinstatement 24 
application. 25 

b. For credentials lapsed more than one year, the Executive Director shall 26 
consult with the committee chair to determine the necessity for the personal 27 
appearance of a reinstatement applicant. 28 

c. For credentials (other than CDS licenses) lapsed five years or more, the 29 
committee chair in consultation with the President shall have the discretion to 30 
notice the applicant to appear before the committee. 31 

d. For CDS credentials lapsed five years or more, the Executive Director shall 32 
consult with the committee chair, and further, shall notify the applicant’s 33 
primary licensing agency and the U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration of 34 
the applicant’s lapse and reinstatement. 35 

 36 
5.  Applications for reinstatement of credentials which have been suspended or revoked 37 
     by the Board shall be referred to the full committee, for a hearing to determine 38 
     whether the reinstatement of the previously suspended or revoked credential would 39 
     be in the public’s best interest.  The respondent shall bear the burden of 40 
     demonstrating their rehabilitation and fitness for practice. 41 

a. An exception to the requirement for a committee hearing shall be available for 42 
the reinstatement of a CDS license issued to anyone other than a pharmacy.  43 
For the reinstatement of these CDS licenses which have been suspended or 44 
revoked by the Board, the approval of the reinstatement application requires 45 
only the joint consent of the chair of the reinstatement committee and the 46 
President; when such approvals are issued, staff shall prepare a 47 
reinstatement order for the President’s signature. 48 
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 55 
b. In the event a primary licensing agency vacates or rescinds a previous order 56 

which resulted in the Board’s suspension or revocation of a practitioner’s CDS 57 
license, staff shall prepare a reinstatement order for the President’s signature. 58 

 59 
6.  The applicant shall submit the following items to the Board office no later than 30  60 
     days prior to any Administrative Hearing: 61 

a.   properly completed application for renewal; 62 
c. copiesy of continuing pharmacy (cpe) education certificates transcript from 63 

CPE Monitor submitted in support of CPE requirements; 64 
d. report of criminal background check, provided, however, that the non-receipt 65 

of said report shall not serve to automatically delay the consideration of the 66 
application by the committee; 67 

e. administrative hearing fee of $250, (RS 37:1184.a.ix); 68 
f. reinstatement fee of $200, (RS 37:1184.b.iii); 69 
g. any unpaid fees imposed by prior Board orders; and 70 
h. any other fees incurred through non-renewal.  The fee for credentials lapsed 71 

in excess of one year shall include the renewal fee and the delinquent fee in 72 
effect for each intervening year. 73 

 74 
7.  The committee will determine the conditions under which it will recommend to the 75 

Board the approval or denial of the application for renewal reinstatement.  The 76 
committee’s recommendation may include the successful completion of the an 77 
Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE) examination, additional 78 
supervised practical experience, additional continuing pharmacy education, or any 79 
other measures the committee may deem necessary. 80 

 81 
8.  All correspondence and/or communications relative to applicants shall be 82 
     coordinated through the Board office. 83 
 84 
 85 
 86 
 87 
 88 
 89 
 90 
 91 
 92 
 93 
 94 
 95 
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Title:  Reinstatement Committee     Policy No. I.B.5.a   99 
 100 
Approved: 02-10-2000      Revised:   101 
 102 

 103 
Revision History 104 

 105 
02-10-2000 Original policy approved. 106 
 107 
04-26-2000 Added the following: 108 

4a.   For licenses lapsed less than one year, the Executive Director 109 
may exercise administrative discretion in the approval of the 110 
reinstatement application. 111 

4b.   For licenses lapsed more than one year, the Executive 112 
Director shall consult with the committee chair to determine 113 
the necessity for the personal appearance of a reinstatement 114 
applicant. 115 

 116 
05-05-2004 Updated regulatory citations in Articles 2, 3.2, and 3.b 117 

Technical corrections in Articles 3.b, 4.a, and 4.b (‘credentials’ for 118 
‘licenses’). 119 
Added Article 4.c. 120 
Deleted Article 5.f.ii, due to deletion of enabling regulation. 121 

 122 
02-21-2008 Added Article 5.c. 123 
 124 
08-05-2009 Added Article 3.c. 125 
  Amended Article 4.c to insert ‘other than CDS licenses’ after credentials 126 
  Added Article 4.d 127 
 128 
02-12-2014 Amended Article 4.c to no longer require mandatory committee 129 

appearances for all licensees lapsed five years or longer.  Instead, staff 130 
will refer these applicants to the committee chair and president, who shall 131 
have the discretion whether to require a committee appearance or some 132 
other alternative requirement. 133 

 134 
11-16-2016 Added new Article 5 addressing reinstatement of previously suspended or 135 

revoked credentials. 136 
Amended Article 6 substituting copy of CPE Monitor transcript in lieu of 137 
copies of CE certificates. 138 
Amended Article 7 to delete the naming of a specific test in favor of more 139 
general term. 140 

 141 
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law at La. R.S. 42:16, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members 
present and voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, 
or physical or mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or 
negotiations with respect to litigation, (4) discussions regarding personnel matters, or other purposes itemized at La. R.S. 42:17.  

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Executive Committee has been 
ordered and called to immediately follow the meeting of the Impairment Committee 
(scheduled for 3:00 p.m.) on Tuesday, November 15, 2016 at the Board office 
[estimated time for Executive Committee at 4:30 p.m.], for the purpose to wit: 
 

A G E N D A 
NOTE: This agenda is tentative until 24 hours in advance of the meeting, at which time the most recent revision becomes official. 

Revised 11-12-2016 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Quorum Call 
 
3. Call for Additional Agenda Items & Adoption of Agenda 
 
4. Opportunity for Public Comment 
 
5. Review of Administrative Operations 
 

A. Review of Emergency Rules 
 
B. Consideration of Policies & Procedures 
 
C. Review of Legislative Study Resolutions 
 
D. Review of FDA Relationship 
 
E. Review of PMP Gateway & Narx-Check 
 
F. Review of DHH-OPH-GOHSEP & Pharmacy Planning Cell 

 
6. Adjourn 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
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Louisiana Administrative Code 
 

Title 46 – Professional and Occupational Standards 
 

Part LIII: Pharmacists 
 
Chapter 9.  Pharmacy Technicians 
 
… 
 
§905.  Pharmacy Technician Certificate 

A. – A.3.a  … 
b. For those applicants submitting applications on or after January 1, 2018, the 

applicant shall demonstrate successful completion of a nationally-accredited and 
board-approved pharmacy technician training program, as evidenced by a valid 
and legible copy of the appropriate credential from that program. 

A.4 – B.6  … 
 
AUTHORITY NOTE:  Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 37:1212. 
HISTORICAL NOTE:  Promulgated by the Department of Health and Hospitals, Board of Pharmacy, LR 14:708 
(October 1988), effective January 1, 1989, repromulgated LR 19:1025 (August 1993), LR 30:2486 (November 
2004), effective January 1, 2005, amended LR 38:1235 (May 2012), amended LR 39:1777 (July 2013), amended LR 
 



DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 
 

Department of Health and Hospitals 
Board of Pharmacy 

 
Accreditation of Pharmacy Technician Training Programs – LAC 46:LIII.905  

 
The Louisiana Board of Pharmacy is exercising the emergency provisions of the Administrative 

Procedure Act, specifically at R.S. 49:953.B, to amend its rules governing the process of obtaining a 
pharmacy technician certificate by delaying the implementation of the requirement to complete a 
nationally-accredited pharmacy technician training program as one of the qualifications to obtain the 
credential. 

Prior to June 2013, the rule required the pharmacy technician candidate to complete a training 
program that was approved by the Board.  In response to stakeholder input requesting flexibility in how 
those programs were to be established, the Board permitted programs to be established at individual 
pharmacies in addition to universities, community and technical colleges, as well as proprietary schools.  
Over the course of approximately ten years, the Board tracked the state’s pass rate on the national 
certification program and observed a steady decrease.  The Board determined that workplace training 
alone was not sufficient and, in June 2013 instituted a change – to begin in January 2016 – that would 
require the training program to be nationally accredited.  The three year delay was intended to increase 
the number of such nationally accredited programs in the state. 

During their meeting in November 2015, the Board entertained a request from some chain 
pharmacies to further delay the implementation of the accreditation requirement until 2020, citing their 
concerns with some of the accreditation standards.  The Board took note of the increased number of 
accredited programs in the state, from one in 2013 to over a dozen in 2015.  The Board also took note of 
the continuing decrease in the state pass rate on the national certification examination, with a 45% pass 
rate in 2015.  The Board also received input the requirement should be transferred from those persons 
submitting applications for the technician certificate to those persons submitting applications for the 
technician candidate registration, to eliminate the difficulty for persons who start under the previous rule 
and attempt to finish under the new rule.  The Board agreed to a one year delay in the accreditation 
requirement, and since there is not sufficient time to promulgate a change in the rule before the current 
January 1, 2016 implementation date, the Board has determined that an emergency rule is necessary.  
During the one-year delay, the Board plans to promulgate the additional change to transfer the 
requirement for completion of an accredited program as a qualification for the pharmacy technician 
certificate to require enrollment in an accredited program as a qualification for the pharmacy technician 
candidate registration. 

The Board has determined that failure to implement the emergency rule will cause interruptions 
in the licensure process for pharmacy technicians, potentially causing a decrease in the number of 
pharmacy technicians in the available workforce.  The Board has determined this emergency rule is 
necessary to prevent imminent peril to the public health, safety, and welfare.  The original declaration of 
emergency was effective November 30, 2015.  Although the Board is working on the changes, they need 
more time; therefore, they have directed the revision of the date from 2017 to 2018.  This revised 
Emergency Rule is effective November 17, 2016 and shall remain in effect for the maximum time period 
allowed under the Administrative Procedure Act or until adoption of the final rule, whichever shall first 
occur. 
 
Malcolm J Broussard 
Executive Director 
Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
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Standing Orders for Distribution of Naloxone – LAC 46:LIII.2541  

 
The Louisiana Board of Pharmacy is exercising the emergency provisions of the 

Administrative Procedure Act, specifically at R.S. 49:953.B, to promulgate a new rule 
authorizing pharmacists to distribute naloxone and other opioid antagonists pursuant to standing 
orders issued by Louisiana-licensed medical practitioners in lieu of patient-specific prescriptions. 

The abuse and addiction to opioids is a global problem that is estimated to affect between 
26.4 million and 36 million people worldwide.  Of those addicted in the United States, 2.1 
million are addicted to prescription drugs and another 517,000 are addicted to heroin, according 
to estimates from the federal Centers for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC).  Deaths in the 
United States – and Louisiana – related to opioid drug use have been rising since 1999, resulting 
in more deaths in 2014 than ever before.  Data from the coroners and medical examiners in 
Louisiana reveal 100 deaths in this state in 2011 rising over time to 248 deaths in 2015.  
Preliminary data for the first six months of 2016 indicate we are on the same deadly trajectory. 

Naloxone and other opioid antagonists are prescription drugs that produce rapid and 
dramatic reversals of life-threatening symptoms of opioid-related drug overdoses.  Since time is 
of the essence in drug overdose cases, it is important the drugs be readily available to whoever 
might first encounter the overdose patient, be it family, caregivers, or first responders. 

Act 370 of the 2016 Louisiana Legislature authorized licensed medical practitioners to 
issue nonpatient-specific standing orders for the distribution of naloxone and other opioid 
antagonists, in lieu of patient-specific prescriptions those drug products.  The legislation also 
authorized pharmacists to dispense or distribute naloxone and other opioid antagonists pursuant 
to those standing orders as provided by rules promulgated by the Board Pharmacy. 

The Board has determined this emergency rule is necessary to prevent imminent peril to 
the public health, safety, and welfare.  The declaration of emergency was effective August 10, 
2016.  The Board is promulgating the rule but needs additional time and has directed the re-
issuance of the original emergency rule, effective December 7, 2016.  It shall remain in effect for 
the maximum time period allowed under the Administrative Procedure Act or until adoption of 
the final rule, whichever shall first occur. 
 
 
 
Malcolm J Broussard 
Executive Director 
Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 



 

Louisiana Administrative Code 
 

Title 46 – Professional and Occupational Standards 
 

Part LIII:  Pharmacists 
 
Chapter 25.  Prescriptions, Drugs, and Devices 
 
… 
 
§2537.  [Reserved] 
 
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 37:1182. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and Hospitals, Board of Pharmacy, LR 14:708 
(October 1988), effective January 1, 1989, amended LR 29:2106 (October 2003), effective January 1, 2004, repealed 
LR 41:98 (January 2015), amended by the Department of Health, Board of Pharmacy, LR 
 
§2539.  [Reserved] 
 
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 37:1182. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health, Board of Pharmacy, LR 
 
Subchapter D.  Prescription Drugs 
 
§2541.  Standing Orders for Distribution of Naloxone and Other Opioid Antagonists 

A. Given the current public health emergency relative to the misuse and abuse of opioid derivatives, 
public health officials have strongly recommended the widespread availability of naloxone and other 
opioid antagonists to addicts and their caregivers as well as first responders in the community. 

B. For as long as naloxone and other opioid antagonists remain classified as prescription drugs by the 
federal Food and Drug Administration, pharmacists must secure a prescription or order from a 
prescriber with the legal authority to prescribe the drug product in order to dispense or distribute the 
drug product. 

C. The Louisiana Legislature has adopted a number of laws designed to facilitate the distribution and 
dispensing of naloxone and other opioid antagonists beyond the person who would need the 
medication on an emergent basis to manage an opioid-related drug overdose, more specifically to first 
responders as well as caregivers and family and friends of potential patients. 
1. Act 253 of the 2014 Legislature authorized prescribers to issue prescriptions for naloxone and 

other opioid antagonists to first responders, and further, authorized pharmacists to recognize such 
prescriptions as legitimate orders for the dispensing and distribution of naloxone and other opioid 
antagonist drug products, and further, authorized first responders to have and hold those drug 
products ready for administration in emergent conditions to manage opioid-related drug 
overdoses. 

2. Act 192 of the 2015 Legislature authorized medical practitioners to prescribe naloxone or another 
opioid antagonist without having previously examined the individual to whom the medication 
would be administered, but only under certain conditions specified in the legislation, including the 
requirement for the prescriber to provide the recipient of the drug with all training and education 
required for the safe and proper administration of the drug product. 

3. Act 370 of the 2016 Legislature authorized medical practitioners to issue nonpatient-specific 
standing orders to pharmacists authorizing the distribution of naloxone and other opioid 
antagonists to anyone who might be in a position to assist a patient in the emergent management 
of an opioid-related drug overdose, but only in compliance with these rules. 
a. A nonpatient-specific standing order for the facilitated distribution of naloxone or other 

opioid antagonist issued by a medical practitioner licensed by the State of Louisiana shall 
expire one year after the date of issuance. 

b. A Louisiana-licensed pharmacist may distribute naloxone or other opioid antagonist 
according to the terms of the nonpatient-specific standing order issued by a Louisiana-
licensed medical practitioner until the expiration date of the standing order.  No pharmacist 



 

shall distribute naloxone or other opioid antagonist pursuant to a standing order more than one 
year after the date of issuance of the standing order. 

c. Before releasing the naloxone or other opioid antagonist drug product to the recipient, the 
pharmacist shall verify the recipient’s knowledge and understanding of the proper use of the 
drug product, including, at a minimum: 
i. Techniques on how to recognize signs of an opioid-related drug overdose; 
ii. Standards and procedures for the storage and administration of the drug product; and 
iii. Emergency follow-up procedure including the requirement to summon emergency 

services either immediately before or immediately after administering the drug product to 
the individual experiencing the overdose. 

d. To comply with the recordkeeping requirements found elsewhere in the Board’s rules, the 
pharmacist shall attach a copy of the standing order to the invoice or other record of sale or 
distribution, and further, shall store these transaction documents with the other distribution 
records in the pharmacy. 

 
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 37:1182. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health, Board of Pharmacy, LR 
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Louisiana Administrative Code 1 
 2 

Title 46 – Professional and Occupational Standards 3 
 4 

Part LIII: Pharmacists 5 
 6 
 7 
Chapter 27.  Controlled Dangerous Substances 8 
 9 
… 10 
 11 
Subchapter B. Licenses 12 
 13 
… 14 
 15 
§2707.  Licensing Procedures 16 
A. – C.3  … 17 

4.     An application for the reinstatement of a CDS license for a pharmacy which was suspended or revoked by 18 
the board may only be approved by the full board following a hearing to determine whether the 19 
reinstatement of the license is in the public’s best interest.  For all other CDS licenses, the reinstatement 20 
may be approved by the joint consent of the chair of the reinstatement committee and the board president 21 
without the necessity of a hearing; when such approvals are issued, staff shall prepare a reinstatement order 22 
for the president’s signature. 23 

C.5 – D.5.e  … 24 
 25 
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:972. 26 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and Hospitals, Board of Pharmacy, LR 34:2131 27 
(October 2008), amended LR 28 
 29 
… 30 
 31 

 32 
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 5 
Reinstatement of Controlled Dangerous Substance (CDS) Licenses – LAC 46:LIII.2707  6 

 7 
The Louisiana Board of Pharmacy is exercising the emergency provisions of the 8 

Administrative Procedure Act, specifically at R.S. 49:953.B, to promulgate an amendment of its 9 
controlled substance license rules to reduce the administrative procedures, and the amount of 10 
time, necessary for the reinstatement of controlled dangerous substance licenses held by certain 11 
practitioners. 12 

The Board issues controlled dangerous substance (CDS) to several different types of 13 
practitioners whose primary professional license grants them prescriptive authority for one or 14 
more schedules of controlled substances.  When a primary licensing agency suspends or revokes 15 
a practitioner’s professional license, the Board of Pharmacy suspends the CDS license based 16 
upon the primary licensing agency’s action.  When the primary licensing agency reinstates the 17 
primary professional license, the practitioner applies to the Board of Pharmacy for the 18 
reinstatement of their CDS license.   19 

The board’s current rule for the reinstatement of a CDS license suspended by the Board 20 
of Pharmacy requires the board to convene an administrative hearing to consider the 21 
reinstatement application, make a determination, and issue an order.  Since the Board of 22 
Pharmacy typically meets only four times per year, there is a potential for a significant amount of 23 
time to lapse between the restoration of the primary professional license and the reinstatement of 24 
the practitioner’s CDS license.  During this period of time, the practitioner is authorized to 25 
practice under terms dictated by the primary licensing agency; however, the absence of a CDS 26 
license prohibits the practitioner from prescribing any controlled substances for his patient. 27 

The board proposes to amend the relevant rule to allow for a waiver from the requirement 28 
of an administrative hearing when the chair of the reinstatement committee and the board’s 29 
president jointly agree to approve the reinstatement request in the interim between board 30 
meetings.  When such approvals are issued, the president is authorized to sign a reinstatement 31 
order, and staff would be able to reinstate the CDS license.  This will prevent the necessity of 32 
waiting for a quarterly administrative hearing, and would permit the staff to reinstate the CDS 33 
license shortly after the restoration of the primary professional license.  This will allow the 34 
practitioner to prescribe controlled substances for his patient when needed.  35 

The Board has determined this emergency rule is necessary to prevent imminent peril to 36 
the public health, safety, and welfare.  The declaration of emergency is effective November 17, 37 
2016, and shall remain in effect for the maximum time period allowed under the Administrative 38 
Procedure Act or until adoption of the final rule, whichever shall first occur. 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
Malcolm J Broussard 43 
Executive Director 44 
Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 45 
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 7 
1.  The statutory authority for the Board to issue, renew, and reinstate credentials 8 
     necessary to engage in the practice of pharmacy is found at R.S. 37:1182. 9 
 10 
2.  The statutory authority for the Board’s Executive Director to manage the daily 11 
     operations of the Board’s office is found at R.S. 37:1179.F. 12 
 13 
3.  Through its approval of these policies and procedures, the Board delegates its 14 
     credentialing authority to the Board’s Executive Director, subject to existing 15 
     limitations in the Board’s rules, policies and procedures. 16 
 17 
4.  The Board’s Executive Director may, in his discretion, further delegate certain 18 
     licensing functions to one or more of the administrative officers or division managers. 19 
     Such further delegation shall be recorded in dated memoranda, and further, may be 20 
     modified or withdrawn by the Executive Director. 21 
 22 
 23 
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Title:  Applications for New Credentials    Policy No. IV.B   3 
 4 
Approved:        Revised:  5 
 6 

 7 
1.  The Executive Director is responsible for the creation and maintenance of all 8 
     application forms for all new credentials issued by the Board. 9 

a. The application form shall collect sufficient information necessary to: 10 
i. establish the identity of the applicant; 11 
ii. demonstrate the qualifications of the applicant for the credential; and 12 
iii. make a determination as to the applicant’s fitness for practice. 13 

b. Application forms for different credentials shall be uniquely identified and bear 14 
the date of their creation or revision. 15 

c. An information or instruction sheet designed to assist the applicant may be 16 
appended to the front of the application form. 17 

 18 
2.   All applications for new credentials shall be received in the Board office and shall be 19 
      annotated with the date received in the office. 20 
 21 
3.   All applications for new credentials shall be referred to the Credentials Division staff 22 
      for processing.  23 

a. In the event the staff determines there are deficiencies in the application or 24 
supporting materials, the staff shall communicate with the applicant to assist 25 
them in compiling a complete application. 26 

b. In the event the staff determines there is information (e.g., prior disciplinary or 27 
legal action) impacting qualifications or fitness for practice, staff shall refer the 28 
completed application to an administrative officer, for a determination as to 29 
whether a referral to a Board committee is warranted. 30 
i. When the administrative officer determines a referral to a Board 31 

 committee is warranted, a case number is assigned and the application   32 
 scheduled for a hearing before the appropriate committee. 33 

ii. If no committee referral is warranted, the administrative officer annotates 34 
     the application form and returns it to credentialing staff for further 35 
     processing. 36 

 37 
4.   When the licensing staff has completed the processing of the application, the staff 38 
     may issue the license if they have been delegated the authority to issue that 39 
     credential, or in the alternative, shall refer the application to the licensing manager, 40 
     for final review and issuance of the credential. 41 DRAFT
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Title:  Applications for Renewal of Active Credentials  Policy No. IV.C   3 
 4 
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 7 
1.  The Executive Director is responsible for the creation and maintenance of all 8 
     application forms for the renewal of active credentials issued by the Board. 9 

a. The application form shall collect sufficient information necessary to: 10 
i. demonstrate the qualifications of the applicant for the credential; and 11 
ii. make a determination as to the applicant’s fitness for practice. 12 

b. Application forms for different credentials shall be uniquely identified and bear 13 
the date of their creation or revision. 14 

c. An information or instruction sheet designed to assist the applicant may be 15 
appended to the front of the application form. 16 

 17 
2.   All applications for the renewal of active credentials shall be received in the Board 18 
      office and shall be annotated with the date received in the office. 19 
 20 
3.   All applications for the renewal of active credentials shall be referred to the 21 
      Credentials Division staff for processing.  22 

a. In the event the staff determines there are deficiencies in the application or 23 
supporting materials, the staff shall communicate with the applicant to assist 24 
them in compiling a complete application. 25 

b. In the event the staff determines there is information (e.g., prior disciplinary or 26 
legal action) impacting qualifications or fitness for practice, staff shall refer the 27 
completed application to an administrative officer, for a determination as to 28 
whether a referral to a Board committee is warranted. 29 
i. When the administrative officer determines a referral to a Board 30 

 committee is warranted, a case number is assigned and the application   31 
 scheduled for a hearing before the appropriate committee. 32 

ii. If no committee referral is warranted, the administrative officer annotates 33 
     the application form and returns it to credentialing staff for further 34 
     processing. 35 

 36 
4.   When the licensing staff has completed the processing of the application, the staff 37 
     may issue the license if they have been delegated the authority to issue that 38 
     credential, or in the alternative, shall refer the application to the licensing manager, 39 
     for final review and issuance of the credential. 40 DRAFT
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Title:  Applications for Reinstatement of Lapsed Credentials Policy No. IV.D   3 
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 7 
1.  The Executive Director is responsible for the creation and maintenance of all 8 
     application forms for the reinstatement of lapsed credentials issued by the Board. 9 

a. The application form shall collect sufficient information necessary to: 10 
i. demonstrate the qualifications of the applicant for the credential; and 11 
ii. make a determination as to the applicant’s fitness for practice. 12 

b. Application forms for different credentials shall be uniquely identified and bear 13 
the date of their creation or revision. 14 

c. An information or instruction sheet designed to assist the applicant may be 15 
appended to the front of the application form. 16 

 17 
2.   All applications for the reinstatement of lapsed credentials shall be received in the 18 
      Board office and shall be annotated with the date received in the office. 19 
 20 
3.   All applications for the reinstatement of lapsed credentials shall be referred to the 21 
      Credentials Division staff for processing.  22 

a. In the event the staff determines there are deficiencies in the application or 23 
supporting materials, the staff shall communicate with the applicant to assist 24 
them in compiling a complete application. 25 

b. In the event the staff determines there is information (e.g., prior disciplinary or 26 
legal action) impacting qualifications or fitness for practice, staff shall refer the 27 
completed application to an administrative officer, for a determination as to 28 
whether a referral to a Board committee is warranted. 29 
i. When the administrative officer determines a referral to a Board 30 

 committee is warranted, a case number is assigned and the application   31 
 scheduled for a hearing before the appropriate committee. 32 

ii. If no committee referral is warranted, the administrative officer annotates 33 
     the application form and returns it to credentialing staff for further 34 
     processing. 35 

 36 
4.   When the licensing staff has completed the processing of the application, the staff 37 
      shall comply with the Reinstatement Committee’s policies for a determination of who 38 
      must approve the application. [See PPM.I.B.5.a] 39 DRAFT
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 8 
1.  The Executive Director is responsible for the creation and maintenance of all 9 
     application forms for the reinstatement of disciplined credentials issued by the Board. 10 

a. The application form shall collect sufficient information necessary to: 11 
i. demonstrate the qualifications of the applicant for the credential; and 12 
ii. make a determination as to the applicant’s fitness for practice. 13 

b. Application forms for different credentials shall be uniquely identified and bear 14 
the date of their creation or revision. 15 

c. An information or instruction sheet designed to assist the applicant may be 16 
appended to the front of the application form. 17 

 18 
2.   All applications for the reinstatement of disciplined credentials shall be received in 19 
      the Board office and shall be annotated with the date received in the office. 20 
 21 
3.   All applications for the reinstatement of disciplined credentials shall be referred to 22 
      the Credentials Division staff for processing.  23 

a. In the event the staff determines there are deficiencies in the application or 24 
supporting materials, the staff shall communicate with the applicant to assist 25 
them in compiling a complete application. 26 

b. When the application is complete, staff shall refer the application to the 27 
administrative officer responsible for the Reinstatement Committee’s docket. 28 

c. The administrative officer shall assign a case number to the application and 29 
schedule the applicant for a hearing with the Reinstatement Committee. 30 
i. An exception to the requirement for a hearing by the Reinstatement 31 

Committee shall be available for all CDS licenses other than those issued 32 
to pharmacies.  Requests for reinstatement of CDS licenses suspended for 33 
revoked by the Board may be approved by the joint consent of the chair of 34 
the reinstatement committee and the Board’s President.  In the event of 35 
such approvals, staff shall prepare a reinstatement order for the 36 
President’s signature. 37 DRAFT
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 7 
1.  When the Board takes formal disciplinary action against a credential issued by the 8 
     Board, the Executive Director is responsible for the following administrative actions. 9 

a. A copy of the signed order shall be mailed to the respondent. 10 
b. An original copy of the signed order shall be affixed to the front of the 11 

respondent’s paper credential file, and further, an electronic copy of the 12 
signed order shall be attached to the respondent’s electronic credential file. 13 

c. The respondent’s credential record in eLicense shall be updated: 14 
i. When the board’s action affects the status of a credential, the status and 15 
     reason for the status shall be updated in the Credential module. 16 
ii. The action shall be recorded in the Notes section of the Credential 17 
      module. 18 

d. The board’s action shall be recorded in the Resolution section of the case 19 
record in the Enforcement module in eLicense; the information in this section 20 
displays on the board’s website when the public flag is selected. 21 

e. All disciplinary actions shall be reported to the NABP Clearinghouse for their 22 
records and for their further transmission of that information to the National 23 
Practitioner Data Bank. 24 

f. All disciplinary actions, with the exception of Letters of Warning and Letters of 25 
Reprimand, shall be published in the Board’s quarterly newsletter. [See 26 
PPM.I.B.6.b] 27 

 28 
2.   When the Board receives notice of an action taken by the primary licensing agency 29 

of a practitioner holding a CDS license from the Board, or by the federal Drug 30 
Enforcement Administration (DEA), that communication shall be referred to an 31 
administrative officer for their review. 32 

a. When the licensing agency’s action has no effect on their prescriptive 33 
authority, a copy of the signed order shall be affixed to the front of the CDS 34 
license paper file, an electronic copy of the order shall be attached to the 35 
electronic file of the CDS license, and summary of the agency’s action shall 36 
be recorded in the Notes section of the respondent’s CDS license record in 37 
eLicense. 38 

b. When the licensing agency’s action does not affect the practitioner’s CDS 39 
privilege but does restrict his prescriptive authority for other drugs or devices, 40 
a copy of the signed order shall be affixed to the front of the CDS license 41 
paper file, an electronic copy of the order shall be attached to the electronic 42 
file of the CDS license, and a summary of the agency’s action shall be 43 
recorded in the Notes section of the respondent’s CDS license record in 44 
eLicense, and further, a Pharmacy Alert shall be transmitted via email, 45 
advising pharmacies of the details of the restriction. 46 

 47 
 48 
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 55 
 56 

c. When the licensing agency’s action restricts the practitioner’s CDS privilege, 57 
a copy of the signed order shall be affixed to the front of the CDS license 58 
paper file, an electronic copy of the order shall be attached to the electronic  59 
file of the CDS license, and a summary of the agency’s action shall be 60 
recorded in the Notes section of the respondent’s CDS license record in 61 
eLicense; further, the status shall be changed to ‘Restricted’, the status 62 
reason shall reflect a board order, and details of the restriction shall be 63 
entered in the User Defined File (UDF) section of the credential record.  64 
These notes display on the credential verification screen on the Board’s 65 
website.  Finally, a Pharmacy Alert shall be transmitted via email, advising 66 
pharmacies of the details of the restriction. 67 

d. When the licensing agency’s action suspends or revokes the practitioner’s 68 
CDS privilege, the following actions are to be taken: 69 
i. Affix a copy of the signed order to the front of the paper copy of the CDS 70 

license file as well as an electronic copy of the signed order to the 71 
electronic file of the CDS license. 72 

ii. In eLicense, change the status of the credential to ‘Inactivated’ and select 73 
      the reason for the status as ‘primary license surrendered/suspended/   74 

 revoked.’ 75 
iii. Change the status for all schedules in the UDF section to ‘no.’ 76 
iv. Enter a summary of the action in the Notes section of the Credential 77 
      module. 78 
v. Send a Pharmacy Alert to the pharmacies, advising them of the change in 79 
      the practitioner’s CDS privileges. 80 
vi. Do not refer the CDS license for disciplinary action by the Board. 81 
vii. When the primary licensing agency notifies the Board of the reinstatement 82 

of a previously suspended for revoked license, with or without restrictions 83 
on CDS privileges, staff shall affix a copy of the signed order to the front of 84 
the CDS license paper file, and attach an electronic copy of the order to 85 
the electronic CDS license record, change the credential status to the 86 
appropriate status as directed by the licensing agency, update the CDS 87 
schedules as appropriate, and send a Pharmacy Alert to advise the 88 
pharmacies of the change in status.  89 

 90 
 91 
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NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
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Total Reported as of  
September 30, 2016 102,537,101 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
RXs 12,989,950 13,032,083 13,020,364 12,403,123 9,040,301
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Results for Q3 2016  

PMP Role Title -   Healthcare 
Provider

Eligible for 
PMP 

Access
Approved for PMP 

Access

Actual # of Users  
Performing 

Searches  During 
Q3 2016

Search Count by Actual 
Users During Q3 2016

Physician (MD, DO) 12,342 4272 (35%) 2,070 269,096  (35.46%)
Nurse Practitioner (APRN) 2,377 1165 (49%) 706 45,871 (6.04%)
Dentist (DDS) 2,107 526 (25%) 161 1,465 (0.19%)
Physician Assistant (PA) 640 247 (39%) 142 7,938 (1.05%)
Optometrist (OD) 337 13 (4%) 0 0
Podiatrist (DPM) 150 33 (22%) 12 127 (0.02%)
Medical Psychologist (MP) 85 58 (68%) 28 1,641 (0.22%)
Prescriber's Delegate - Unlicensed NA 1,422 675 139,006 (18.32%)
Pharmacist (PST) 8,587 3554 (41%) 2,243 271,090 (35.73%)
Pharmacist's Delegate - Unlicensed NA 467 225 22,556 (2.97%)
Totals 26,625 11,757 6,262 758,790
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Requests:
Disclosures:

Requests:
Disclosures:

PMP Requests from Louisiana to other States

July 2016 - September 2016

Interstate PMP Data Sharing (Louisiana)

Responses to other state PMP users from the Louisiana PMP.

Danna Droz, JD, RPh
Prescription Monitoring Program Liaison

ddroz@nabp.net;  847-391-4508

Carl Flansbaum, RPh.
Director of Clinical Solutions and Government Affairs
cflansbaum@appriss.com; 502-815-5550

Queries from Louisiana PMP users to other states.
Responses from other state PMPs to Louisiana PMP users.

PMP Requests to Louisiana from other States

Queries from other state PMP users to the Louisiana PMP.
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Danna Droz, JD, RPh
Prescription Monitoring Program Liaison

ddroz@nabp.net;  847-391-4508

Carl Flansbaum, RPh.
Director of Clinical Solutions and Government Affairs
cflansbaum@appriss.com; 502-815-5550

Interstate PMP Data Sharing (Louisiana)

PMP Requests from other States to Louisiana

July 2016 - September 2016
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Requests to PMP by Role
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July 2016 - September 2016

Interstate PMP Data Sharing (Louisiana)

PMP Requests from Louisiana to other States

Danna Droz, JD, RPh
Prescription Monitoring Program Liaison

ddroz@nabp.net;  847-391-4508

Carl Flansbaum, RPh.
Director of Clinical Solutions and Government Affairs
cflansbaum@appriss.com; 502-815-5550
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July August September

Responses to PMP Requests by Response Type

Response Contained Data Response Contained No Data Request Dissallowed

Errors Total Responses



July 2016 - September 2016

PMP Requests to Louisiana from other States

Interstate PMP Data Sharing (Louisiana)

Carl Flansbaum, RPh.
Director of Clinical Solutions and Government Affairs
cflansbaum@appriss.com; 502-815-5550

Danna Droz, JD, RPh
Prescription Monitoring Program Liaison

ddroz@nabp.net;  847-391-4508
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July 2016 - September 2016

Interstate PMP Data Sharing (Louisiana)

Interstate PMP Request Responses (Disclosures) from other States to Louisiana

Carl Flansbaum, RPh.
Director of Clinical Solutions and Government Affairs
cflansbaum@appriss.com; 502-815-5550

Danna Droz, JD, RPh
Prescription Monitoring Program Liaison

ddroz@nabp.net;  847-391-4508
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Interstate PMP Data Sharing (Louisiana)

July 2016 - September 2016

Interstate PMP Request Responses (Disclosures) from Louisiana to other States

Danna Droz, JD, RPh
Prescription Monitoring Program Liaison

ddroz@nabp.net;  847-391-4508

Carl Flansbaum, RPh.
Director of Clinical Solutions and Government Affairs
cflansbaum@appriss.com; 502-815-5550
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10401 Linn Station Road Suite 200 / Louisville, KY 40223

PMP - Health Care Systems Integration: (Louisiana)

July 2016 - September 2016
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PMP - Health Care Systems Integration: (Louisiana)

10401 Linn Station Road Suite 200 / Louisville, KY 40223
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PMP - Health Care Systems Integration: (Louisiana)
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Requests for Full Exemption from PMP Reporting
November 16, 2016

In accordance with LA.R.S:40.4.X-A.1006.C. The board may issue an exemption from
the reporting requirement to a dispenser whose practice activities are inconsistent with
the intent of the program. The board may rescind any previously issued exemption
without the need for an informal or formal hearing.

Permit
Pmgt

Name Scope of Practice flEA City State

7361 NR AliCare Specialty Pharmacy Specialty Pharmacy Yes Little Rock AR
7362 NB Baxter Healthcare Corporation Mail order Pharmacy No Deerfield IL
6253 HOS Central Louisiana Surgical Hospital Inpatient HOS Pharmacy Yes Alexandria LA
5474 NR Cvs Caremark Non Resident Pharmacy Yes Mt Prospect IL
6209 NR DCRX Infusion/Patient Care America Specialty Pharmacy Yes Pompano Beach FL
7308 NR MacDill Pharmacy Mail Order Pharmacy YES Tampa FL
6762 NR Marian Respiratory Care, Inc. Non Resident Pharmacy Yes Daphne AL
7351 NR MedStar Pharmacy Non Resident Pharmacy Yes Doral FL
6890 NB New Life Pharmacy Mail Order Pharmacy Yes Sandy UT
7383 NR Pharmacy Incorporated Specialty Pharmacy Yes Murray KY
7334 NR Reliance RX Non Resident Pharmacy Yes Buffalo NY
6738 NR SimfaRose Pharmacy Specialty Pharmacy Yes Pembroke Pines FL
7369 NR Solara Medical Supplies Specialty Pharmacy Yes Imperial Beach CA
7352 NB Stanley Pharmacy Compounding Center Compounding Pharmacy Yes Searcy AR
5817 NR Transcript Pharmacy Specialty Pharmacy Yes Flowood MS
7206 NR US Med, LLC Non Resident Pharmacy No Doral FL
7375 NB Value Pharmacy Non Resident Pharmacy Yes Irvine CA

Staff Recommendation
Approve the proposed waivers conditioned upon execution of the standard Consent Agreement:

EXEMPTION TO PRESCRIPTION MONITORING PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
CONSENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the pharmacy’s request for an exemption to the reporting
requirements to the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy’s Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) as
required by law, the Pharmacy indicated below agrees to the following terms:

(1) The Pharmacy shall not be authorized to dispense any controlled dangerous substances
(CDS) or drugs of concern, with the exception of a hospital pharmacy permit’s inpatient
dispensing, as identified by the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy (Board) by regulation.

(2) Upon the first instance of receipt of evidence by the Board indicating the Pharmacy
dispensed CDS or drugs of concern, the Pharmacy agrees to the following sanction:



The Pharmacy agrees to pay a fine of $5,000.00 and reimburse the Board
$250.00 in administrative hearing costs, with total payment due the Board of
$5,250.00, due by certified check or money order within 30 days of notice of
this prohibited activity.

(3) Upon the second instance of receipt of evidence indicating the Pharmacy dispensed
CDS or drugs of concern, the Pharmacy agrees to pay the above sanction, the
termination of this exemption and the resumption of its reporting to the PMP.

(4) The Pharmacy shall post a copy of this agreement adjacent or attached to its pharmacy
permit.

By signing this Consent Agreement, Respondent agrees that the Board has jurisdiction in this
mailer and waives all rights to informal conference, to Notice of Hearing, to a formal
Administrative Hearing, and to judicial review of this Consent Agreement.



 
NOTE: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Law, at LRS 42:6.1, the committee may, upon 2/3 affirmative vote of those members present and 
voting, enter into executive session for the limited purposes of (1) discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or 
mental health of a licensee, (2) investigative proceedings regarding allegations of misconduct, (3) strategy sessions or negotiations with 
respect to litigation, or (4) discussions regarding personnel matters. 
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Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
Telephone 225.925.6496 ~ Facsimile 225.925.6499 

www.pharmacy.la.gov ~ E-mail: info@pharmacy.la.gov   
 
 

November 16, 2016 
 
 
Agenda Item 12-L:  Report of Executive Director 
 
1. Meeting Activity 
2. Reports 
3. Examinations 
4. Operations 
5. State Activities 
6. Regional & National Activities 
7. International Activities 
 
 
1. Meeting Activity 

In addition to Board and committee meetings, I have also participated in or attended the 
following meetings since the last Board meeting. 

Aug. 28 – Sep. 1 FIP World Congress – Buenos Aires, Argentina 
Sep. 11-14  NABP-AACP Districts 6-7-8 Conference – Portland, OR 
Sep. 26   La. Commission for Prevention of Opioid Abuse 
Sep. 27   Marijuana Project Team Meeting – Baton Rouge 
Sep. 30   Xavier College of Pharmacy – P-1 Orientation 
Oct. 4-5   NABP Executive Officers Forum – Rosemont, IL 
Oct. 9-12   MALTAGON Conference – Austin, TX 
Oct. 14   .Pharmacy Executive Board Mtg 
Oct. 20   Xavier Chapter of LSHP – New Orleans, LA 
Oct. 23   Capital Area Pharmacists Association – Baton Rouge, LA 

  Oct. 24   Opioid Commission – Team 7 Mtg 
  Oct. 26   PMP Advisory Council Mtg 
  Oct. 27   Opioid Commission – Team 6 Mtg 
  Oct. 31   Opioid Commission – Team 4 Mtg 
  Nov. 1   Opioid Commission – Team 5 Mtg 

Nov. 3   GOHSEP/LDH – Pharmacy Planning for Disaster Response 
Nov. 7   La. Commission for Prevention of Opioid Abuse 
Nov. 8-9  NABP Task Force on Expanding International Membership 

  
 
2. Reports (all in the Boardroom Library) 
 A. Census Reports 

1.   Compliance Division – Practitioner Recovery Program & Discipline 
2. Credentials Division – CDS & Pharmacy Programs 
 

 B. Credentials Division Production Reports 
  1. Licensure Activity Report [new credentials in previous quarter] 
  2. Application Activity Report [pending applications count]  
 

C. Exceptions Report  
 1. PIC in Multiple Locations 
 2. Resurrected Credentials / Special Work Permits 
 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov
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D. Annual Report for 2016 – This is an action item; i.e., it requires your approval! 
 
3. Examinations 

A. MPJE – the results for the second trimester of 2016 are available.   
Mr. Fontenot and I conducted our annual review of our state’s item bank to 

ensure all of the questions are still correct based upon the changes in our laws and rules 
since the last review last year.  In addition, we reviewed all of the new questions written by 
all of the state item writers earlier this year to see if any of them were suitable for use in 
our test. 

We began our review with 2,444 items, removed four, and then accepted 235 of 
the new items.  We now have 2,675 items in our item bank.  Of that number, only 2,440 
are scored and active items.  The 235 new items must be field tested to determine their 
item integrity and degree of difficulty.  Once that is finished, they will be added to the 
scored and active item bank.  

 
B.        NAPLEX – the results for the second trimester of 2016 are available. 

As we alerted you at our last meeting, NABP has made some changes to the 
NAPLEX test: 

• Due to an increase in the number of competency statements in the examination 
blueprint, the number of test questions has been increased from 185 to 250. 

• Due to the increase in the number of test questions, the amount of time allowed 
for the test has been increased from 4.5 to 6 hours. 

• Due to a change in the security platform for the administration of the test, as well 
as fee increases from NABP’s vendors, the applicant’s examination fee has been 
increased from $505 to $575. 

• The minimum amount of waiting time between a failed attempt and the next 
attempt has been reduced from 91 to 45 days. 

To manage these changes, NABP suspended NAPLEX testing from October 24-31, 
2016. The updated examination was placed in use on November 1, 2016. 

 
C.      PARE – our last administration of this test was in July 2014. 
 
D.        PTCB – the results for the first semester of 2016 are not yet available.   

 
 
4. Operations 
 A. Credentials Division 

We completed the renewal cycle for DME permits on August 31.  Of the 623 
active permits noticed to renew, 536 (86%) did so timely, and of that number, 78% did so 
online. 

We opened the renewal cycle for pharmacists and pharmacies on November 1; 
those credentials are scheduled to expire on December 31 unless renewed sooner.  As 
required by the legislature, we configured both the online and paper renewal forms to 
include the $100 Pharmacy Education Support fee along with the regular renewal fee in 
the total amount due, and we have provided a mechanism for each licensee to opt out of 
paying that additional fee. 

• PST: We printed 8,657 renewal reminder notices, held 4 of them back for 
defaulted student loan issues, then mailed the reminder on October 31.  By the 
9th of November, 1,327 (15%) had renewed. 

• PHY: We printed and mailed 1,989 renewal reminders on October 31.  By the 9th 
of November, 354 (16%) had renewed. 

• CDS-PHY: We printed and mailed 1,390 renewal reminders on October 31.  By 
the 9th of November, 218 (16%) had renewed. 
 

 B. Compliance Division 
Our 5 pharmacist compliance officers are responsible for inspecting all the 

pharmacies and other facilities holding controlled substances (CDS).  The census reports 
available for this meeting reflect 1,477 pharmacies within the state, as well as 
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approximately 600 various types of facilities for CDS visits, including hospitals, rural 
health clinics, animal control shelters, researchers, etc. 

In addition to their routine site visits, the compliance officers are also responsible 
for investigating complaints filed with the Board.  We began the fiscal year with 224 cases 
pending from the prior fiscal year.  We have entered 125 new cases and closed 119, 
leaving 230 cases still open.  Of the 119 cases closed this fiscal year, 53% were disposed 
of through staff activities and the balance through committee and Board action. 

Pursuant to your approval at the last Board meeting, we re-activated the 
Pharmacist Chief Compliance Officer position, and then solicited applications for the 
promotion from within the ranks of our existing compliance officers.  We received two 
applications, interviewed both applicants and selected the best qualified applicant.  Mr. 
Ben Whaley was promoted to Pharmacist Chief Compliance Officer, effective October 31, 
2016. 

Also pursuant to your approval at the last Board meeting, we posted an 
availability notice for the newly-vacant Pharmacist Compliance Officer position.  That 
posting remained active for 30 days until October 14.  Of the 35 applications received, we 
selected 5 for interview, but only one of those would agree to an interview.  We made a 
determination that was an insufficient pool, so we have decided to re-post the position 
availability notice. 

 
 C. Administrative Division 

The Legislative Auditor completed their annual audit in September and released 
their report to you in mid-October; you should have already received their report.  We are 
pleased to report the auditor issued an unqualified report with no findings nor any 
recommendations for improvement. 

The Louisiana Workforce Commission notified our office in October of a payroll 
audit for Calendar Year 2015, to review all compensation records for members and staff.  
Following the conclusion of their audit, we received their report; we are pleased to inform 
you of a successful audit with no findings or recommendations for improvement.   

 
 
5. State Activities 
 A. La. Board of Drug & Device Distributors 

This board published a Notice of Intent in the August 2016 edition of the 
Louisiana Register, proposing several amendments to their rules.  Notably, they are 
proposing to amend their definition of the term ‘distribution’ to exclude several activities, 
including: 
(1) the distribution of drugs or devices among hospitals or other health care entities 
among common ownership,  
(2) the distribution of drugs or devices for emergency medical reasons, including transfer 
by a retail pharmacy to another retail pharmacy to alleviate a temporary shortage arising 
from delays or interruptions of regular distribution schedules or public health emergency 
declarations, 
(3) the distribution of legend drugs by retail pharmacies to licensed practitioners for office 
use where the annual dollar volume of legend drugs sold to licensed practitioners does 
not exceed five percent of the dollar volume of that retail pharmacy’s annual legend drug 
sales. 

The Notice of Intent also offers proposed amendments to other sections of their 
rules, including the application process for various credentials, qualifications of certain 
personnel in licensed distributors, and recordkeeping requirements for distributors.  
Among the credentials established is a new category for third-party logistics distributors, a 
new entity recognized in the recent federal legislation known as DQSA (Drug Quality & 
Security Act).   

The deadline for public comments was September 30.  In the absence of any 
further amendments or interventions, we would anticipate their final rule by December or 
January. 

 
 B. La. State Board of Medical Examiners 

This board published a Final Rule in the August 2016 edition of the Louisiana 
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Register relative to nurse midwife practitioners.  The rules govern the licensure and 
practice of nurse midwives.  Their authority to procure, possess, and administer certain 
medications to mothers and infants was continued but not expanded. 

This board also published a Notice of Intent in the same edition of the state 
register, proposing an amendment to the scope of practice for podiatrists.  The proposed 
amendment does not alter their current prescriptive authority, but it does permit 
podiatrists to update history and physical documentation in medical records relative to 
pre-operative evaluations.  The deadline for public comments was September 19.  In the 
absence of any further amendments or interventions, we would anticipate their final rule 
by December or January. 

The LSBME published a Notice of Intent in the October 2016 edition of the state 
register, proposing to amend its telemedicine rules to conform those rules to Acts 252 
and 630 of the 2016 Legislature.  In particular, the proposed changes: (1) remove the 
requirement that a physician practicing telemedicine maintain a physical practice location 
in Louisiana or have an arrangement with a physician who does maintain a physical 
practice location in the state; (2) authorizes the use of telemedicine by interactive audio, 
without the need for video, provided certain conditions are satisfied; (3) deletes the 
requirement for at least one in-person visit by a physician who prescribes controlled 
substances by telemedicine for patients being treated in a healthcare facility required to 
be licensed by this state, which possesses a current federal DEA registration; (4) provides 
that a physician refer a patient to another physician in this state or arrange for follow-up 
care within the state if indicated; and (5) improves that board’s access to patient records.  
The deadline for public comments is November 21, 2016. 

The LSBME published a second Notice of Intent in the October 2016 edition of 
the state register, proposing to amend its therapeutic marijuana rules to conform those 
rules to Act 96 of the 2016 Legislature.  In particular, the proposed changes: (1) 
incorporate changes in definitions, e.g., changing a prescription to a recommendation and 
a qualified medical condition to a debilitating medical condition; (2) expands the 
conditions for which therapeutic marijuana may be recommended from three to ten; (3) 
provides for instances where the federal FDA may subsequently approve therapeutic 
marijuana for a debilitating medical condition in the same or a different form; (4) provides 
that physicians who recommend therapeutic marijuana must be domiciled in this state; (5) 
incorporate certain changes to provisions on medical diagnoses and independent medical 
judgment consistent with guidance from the Federation of State Medical Boards and 
update provisions relative to the treatment plan and patient informed consent; and (6) 
update the suggested form for physician recommendation for therapeutic marijuana.  The 
deadline for public comments is November 21, 2016. 

  
 C. La. Dept. of Health – Bureau of Health Services Finances 

This agency published a Notice of Intent in the August 2016 edition of the 
Louisiana Register, proposing a comprehensive re-promulgation of the rules relative to 
licensing standards for nursing facilities in the state.  Among the standards for 
pharmaceutical services, the proposal requires each facility to have an Emergency Drug 
Kit permitted by the Board of Pharmacy, and further, the proposal contains standards for 
the preparation and storage, labeling, administration, disposition, and recordkeeping of 
drugs and devices.  In addition, there is a requirement for a consultant pharmacist for a 
minimum amount of time as well as additional time for drug regimen review. 

The deadline for public comments was September 30.  In the absence of any 
further amendments or interventions, we would anticipate their final rule by December of 
January. 

 
 D. La. Physical Therapy Board 

This board published a Final Rule in the August 2016 edition of the Louisiana 
Register, concluding their regulatory project to amend certain of their licensing procedures 
and continuing education requirements.  Nothing therein impacts their current authority to 
administer certain medications. 
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 E. La. Dept. of Health – Office for Citizens with Developmental Disabilities 
This agency published a Final Rule in the September 2016 edition of the 

Louisiana Register, relative to Certified Medication Attendants (CMA).  The revised rule 
establishes a more streamlined procedure for CMAs who have been out of practice for a 
period of time to reinstate their credential.  This should facilitate the re-entry of more 
CMAs in a shorter period of time, critical for certain facilities in need of CMAs. 

 
 F. La. State Radiologic Technology Board of Examiners 

This board published a Notice of Intent in the September 2016 edition of the 
Louisiana Register, relative to certain portions of their rules concerning the licensure and 
disciplinary process, as well as certain continuing education requirements.  Nothing 
therein impacts their current authority relative to medication administration. 

The deadline for public comments was October 10.  In the absence of any further 
amendments or interventions, we would anticipate their final rule by January or February. 

 
 G. La. Dept. of Health – Office of Public Health 

This agency published an Emergency Rule on September 27, 2016, adding a 
newly-emerging drug of abuse to Schedule I of the state’s list of controlled substances.  In 
particular, the drug referred to as U-47700, more specifically as 3,4-dichloro-N-[2-
(dimethyl-amino) cyclohexyl]-N-methylbenzamide, was placed on Schedule I, making it 
illegal to possess or distribute without specific authority.  The substance, sometimes 
referred to as ‘pink’ in street vernacular, was originally developed in 1978 by Upjohn as a 
morphine alternative, but was never placed into production.  Believed to be approximately 
10 times the potency of heroin, the drug has been identified as a cause of death for at 
least 15 deaths in at least 4 states.  It is available for sale via the Internet, labeled as a 
‘research drug.’ 

In a related action, the federal DEA published a Notice of Intent on September 7, 
2016 to place the same drug in Schedule I of the federal list of controlled substances.  

 
 
6. Regional & National Activities 
 A. Accreditation Commission for Health Care (ACHC) 

ACHC is an accreditation organization; they offer two services for the pharmacy 
community: Pharmacy Compounding Accreditation Board (PCAB) and ACHC Inspection 
Services (AIS).  We have received a request from this organization for the Louisiana 
Board to accept PCAB accreditation and AIS as evidence of sterile compounding 
compliance for non-resident pharmacies.  A copy of the request was posted in the 
Boardroom Library. 

 
 B. [coalition of multiple organizations] 

We have received a request signed by a coalition of national organizations 
requesting the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy to delay the enforcement of USP Chapter 
800 for a period of five years – until July 1, 2021 – instead of the published date of July 1, 
2018.  A copy of the request was posted in the Boardroom Library. 

 
 C. Food & Drug Administration (FDA) 

The FDA published a Final Rule on October 7, adding 24 entries to the List of 
Drug Products Withdrawn or Removed from the Market for Reasons of Safety or 
Effectiveness.  The rule, which became effective on November 7, now contains 83 entries 
on the list.  As you may know, drug products appearing on that list may not be 
compounded, either by pharmacies or outsourcers. 

  
 D. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 

The DEA conducted another National Prescription Drug Take Back Day on 
Saturday, October 22, 2016 at almost 5,200 collection sites nationwide.  The national total 
of drugs received from consumers was 731,269 pounds – almost 366 tons.  Over the life 
of the six year take back program, 7.1 million pounds (more than 3,500 tons) of drugs 
have been surrendered to the DEA. 
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 E. National Association of Boards of Pharmacy (NABP) 

The annual meeting of this association is one of the three meetings for which 
certain of your travel expenses are eligible for reimbursement, subject to the limitations 
itemized in the Board’s travel policy as well as the state’s travel policy in PPM-49.  For 
your planning purposes, the 2017 meeting will be held May 20-23 at the Hyatt Regency 
Hotel in Orlando, FL. 

 
 F. NABP-AACP District 6 

The annual meeting of this association is one of the three meetings for which 
certain of your travel expenses are eligible for reimbursement, subject to the limitations 
itemized in the Board’s travel policy as well as the state’s travel policy in PPM-49.  For 
your planning purposes, the 2017 meeting will be held October 8-11 at the Marriott 
Riverwalk Hotel in San Antonio, TX. 

During the 2016 meeting held this past September, District 6 met jointly with 
Districts 7 and 8 in Portland, OR.  Among the business items completed, the district 
adopted two resolutions, which were supported by Districts 7 and 8, to be considered by 
the NABP Assembly during the NABP 2017 Meeting in Orlando, FL: (1) to adjust the 
nomination election process for district representatives to the NABP Executive 
Committee, from requiring at least two nominees from each district to requiring a 
maximum of two nominees from each district, and (2) a resolution of recognition for John 
A. Foust, Executive Director Emeritus of the Oklahoma Board of Pharmacy, who recently 
retired to manage debilitating health issues.  In addition, the district nominated two people 
to stand for election at the NABP 2017 Meeting for the District 6 Representative to the 
NABP Executive Committee. 

 
 G,  MALTAGON 

The annual meeting of this association is one of the three meetings for which 
certain of your travel expenses are eligible for reimbursement, subject to the limitations 
itemized in the Board’s travel policy as well as the state’s travel policy in PPM-49.  The 
2016 conference was held on Oct. 9-12 in Austin, TX.  Agenda topics discussed by the 
states included inspecting sterile compounding pharmacies, sampling and testing of 
compounded preparations, social media initiatives, continuous quality improvement 
programs, and continuing education requirements and audits. 

The host for the 2017 conference will be the South Carolina Board of Pharmacy, 
and it will be held in Charleston, SC on October 22-25.  

 
 
7. International Activities 

A. International Pharmaceutical Federation (FIP) 
Buenos Aires, Argentina hosted the 76th World Congress of Pharmacy & 

Pharmaceutical Sciences on Aug. 28 to Sep. 1.  The theme for this year’s conference was 
“Rising to the Challenge – Reducing the Global Burden of Disease.”  The conference 
drew approximately 2,200 participants from 145 countries. 

For your planning purposes, the 2017 congress will be held Sep. 10-14 in Seoul, 
South Korea, and the 2018 meeting will be held Sep. 2-6 in Glasgow, Scotland. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Malcolm J Broussard 
Executive Director 
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Compliance Division Census Report 
 
 

November 16, 2016 
 
 
Practitioner Recovery Program 
• Probation Completion Report 

 
11-16-2016 PST.020388 Matthew Paul Dixon 
 

• Active Probation  48  Pharmacist 
  1 Pharmacy intern 

      1  Technician 
 
• Active Suspension  41  Pharmacist 

  2  Pharmacy intern 
16  Technician 
  4  Technician candidate 

 
 
 
Disciplinary Restrictions 
• Probation Completion Report 

 
08-18-2016 PTC.017833 Cassandra Denise Perkins 
08-24-2016 PTC.023156 Corsica Waynieca Northern 
09-05-2016 PHY.006778 Denton Prescription Shop 
09-07-2016 PST.016002 Barry Kent Powers 
09-30-2016 PST.017298 Adriel Peter Joseph 
10-05-2016 PST.013721 Michael Paul Hebert 
11-01-2016 PST.011155 James Charles Hill 
11-13-2016 PHY.005788 CVS Pharmacy No. 5306 
11-13-2016 CDS.039634 CVS Pharmacy No. 5306 
11-17-2016 PST.013246 Gregory Jon Wendling 
 

• Active Probation  16  Pharmacist 
  7         Technician 
  6 Technician candidate 

      6  Pharmacy permit 
      2 CDS-PHY license 
      1 DME permit 
 
• Active Suspension  40  Pharmacist 

        1 Pharmacy intern  
65  Technician 
15 Technician candidate 
13  Pharmacy permit 
  3 CDS-PHY license 
77 CDS license for practitioners  

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov


Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
Credentials Division
Pharmacy Program

06/30/07 06/30/08 06/30/09 06/30/10 06/30/11 06/30/12 06/30/13 06/30/14 06/30/15 06/30/16
PST.VI LA 0 0 0 0 12 10 9 9 13 16

NR 0 0 0 0 9 10 15 14 15 16
Total 0 0 0 0 21 20 24 23 28 32

PST-GVI LA 0 0 0 0 0 6 13 13 12 15
NR 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 5 5 5
Total 0 0 0 0 0 6 16 18 17 20

PST-M LA 0 0 0 0 3 5 3 1 2 1
NR 0 0 0 0 11 11 11 13 10 10
Total 14 16 14 14 12 11

PST-G LA 0 0 0 0 158 157 164 166 186 204
NR 0 0 0 0 30 35 32 31 31 35
Total 0 0 0 0 188 192 196 197 217 239

PST LA 4,522 4,612 4,750 4,860 4,654 4,933 4,981 5,140 5,408 5,304
NR 1,975 1,964 2,029 2,098 2,079 2,212 2,527 2,479 2,471 2,835
Total 6,497 6,576 6,779 6,958 6,733 7,145 7,508 7,619 7,879 8,139
PST 6,497 6,576 6,779 6,958 6,935 7,353 7,758 7,871 8,108 8,441

PNT LA 1,079 1,074 1,035 965 907 938 942 948 952 957
NR 117 67 84 153 137 128 128 127 143 127
Total 1,196 1,141 1,119 1,118 1,044 1,066 1,070 1,075 1,095 1,084

PNT-FPG Total 0 0 0 0 5 0 3 6 2 4
PNT 1,196 1,141 1,119 1,118 1,049 1,066 1,073 1,081 1,097 1,088

CPT LA 4,587 4,780 4,733 5,363 5,720 5,509 5,751 6,463 6,584 6,815
NR 152 144 109 144 145 120 112 138 141 152
Total 4,739 4,924 4,842 5,507 5,865 5,629 5,863 6,601 6,725 6,967

CPT-M Total 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 1 2
CPT 4,739 4,924 4,842 5,507 5,866 5,629 5,864 6,603 6,726 6,969

PTC LA 1,389 1,446 1,510 1,679 1,574 1,665 1,658 1,870 1,929 1,813
NR 32 23 32 35 35 39 37 37 52 48
PTC 1,421 1,469 1,542 1,714 1,609 1,704 1,695 1,907 1,981 1,861

PHY CH 12 11 12 14 12 12 12 12 12 12
HOS 164 167 167 165 151 154 158 164 163 160
HOX 0 0 0 0 19 18 14 11 8 7
IN 36 37 37 27 14 10 12 12 11 11
INX 0 0 0 0 11 14 13 11 10 10
IR 620 588 592 587 570 568 558 583 588 576
IRX 0 0 0 0 21 19 17 10 10 7
NR 240 250 256 286 318 361 387 422 473 513
NRN 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 8
NRP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 2
NU 16 16 16 16 15 15 15 15 14 15
PEN 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PEX 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 2 2
SAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 6
RC 491 534 545 562 576 587 597 619 649 671
PHY 1,579 1,603 1,625 1,657 1,707 1,758 1,784 1,872 1,954 2,000

AMS AMS 212 255 306 361 55 64 349 92 456 113
AMS-X 0 0 0 0 301 302 289 359 356 367
AMS 212 255 306 361 356 366 638 451 812 480

EDK EDK 412 439 388 503 417 435 421 464 474 454
EDK-X 0 0 0 0 13 13 10 10 10 10
EDK 412 439 388 503 430 448 431 474 484 464

DME LA 223 160 209 336 345
NR 218 281 267 287
DME 378 490 603 622

CDTM 41 41 52 59
MAR 1,617 2,037 2,383 2,603
SWP 58 78 126 38 54 48

TOTAL 21,405 22,865 24,254 24,635



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
Credentials Division

CDS Program

 
06/30/09 06/30/10 06/30/11 06/30/12 06/30/13 06/30/14 06/30/15 06/30/16

ACS Animal Control Shelter 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0
AMS Automated Medication Sys 0 0 0 0 0 26 29 22
AMX Automated Medication Sys - Exempt 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0
APN APRN 607 758 889 1,015 1,103 1,479 1,954 2,296
ASC Ambulatory Surgical Ctr 106 113 90 88 85 89 87 21
CRX Correctional Ctr - Exempt 0 0 7 6 5 6 4 1
DDS Dentist 2,267 2,363 2,027 2,048 1,902 2,123 2,133 2,134
DET Drug Detection / Canine 20 22 14 12 10 11 11 9
DEX Drug Detection / Canine - Exempt 1 1 0
DIS Distributor 363 400 279 288 273 324 319 301
DPM Podiatrist 161 165 139 136 118 133 142 152
DVM Veterinarian 1,000 1,065 922 901 852 1,002 1,045 1,085
DYS Dialysis Ctr 63 63 6 4 3 4 0 0
EMC Emergency Medical Ctr 17 18 14 16 17 22 26 5
EMS Emergency Medical Service 63 66 54 50 45 50 49 16
ETC Animal Euthanasia Tech - Cert 44 49 16 7 6 6 5 5
ETL Animal Euthanasia Tech - Lead 0 0 12 20 21 23 23 22
HOS Hospital 405 438 280 267 263 272 271 289
HOX Hospital - Exempt 0 0 12 14 5 6 6 5
LAB Laboratory 14 15 8 6 7 8 8 8
LAX Laboratory - Exempt 0 0 4 5 5 5 5 4
MD Physician 14,599 15,269 12,362 11,727 10,698 11,913 12,124 12,360

MDT Physician on Telemedicine 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0
MED Medical Clinic 88 102 77 81 68 78 71 3
MEX Medical Clinic - Exempt 0 0 3 5 14 11 10 0
MFR Manufacturer 52 58 48 50 45 42 42 37
MIS Miscellaneous 58 59 11 10 9 11 9 0
MIX Miscellaneous - Exempt 0 0 9 4 3 2 2 0
MP Medical Psychologist 50 58 65 67 69 78 82 86
OD Optometrist 269 278 275 287 279 309 316 326
PA Physician Assistant 232 272 294 326 344 449 487 610

PHX Pharmacy - Exempt 0 0 50 47 41 30 24 21
PHY Pharmacy   0 0 1,307 1,318 1,329 1,357 1,379 1,367
REP Sales Representative 66 88 29 20 7 0 0 0
RES Researcher 119 156 109 110 98 113 113 108
RHC Rural Health Clinic 21 23 17 12 11 12 11 2
ROF Registered Outsourcing Facility 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 14
SAC Substance Abuse Clinic 14 17 7 9 9 9 9 7
SAX Subst. Abuse Clinc - Exempt 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Total 20,698 21,916 19,437 18,957 17,745 20,009 20,809 21,316

Total Credentials Under Management

Pharmacy 16,601 17,818 18,260 18,625 21,405 22,865 24,254 24,635
CDS 20,698 21,916 19,437 18,957 17,745 20,009 20,809 21,316

Total 37,299 39,734 37,697 37,582 39,150 42,874 45,063 45,951

Classification



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
Census Report

3/17/1995 6/30/1996 3/19/1997 6/30/1998 6/30/1999 6/30/2000 6/30/2001 6/30/2002 6/30/2003 6/30/2004 6/30/2005

Pharmacists
In-state 3,642 3,660 4,143 4,247 4,269 4,830 3,887 4,386 4,435 4,486 4,532
Out-of-state 377 446 1,339 1,435 1,421 944 1,901 1,453 1,455 1,484 1,686
TOTAL 4,019 4,106 5,482 5,682 5,690 5,774 5,788 5,839 5,890 5,970 6,218

Pharmacy Interns
In-state
Out-of-state
TOTAL 957 976 929 995 1,154

Pharmacy Technicians
In-state
Out-of-state
TOTAL 3,216 3,453 3,505 4,114 4,455

Pharmacy Technician Candidates
In-state
Out-of-state
TOTAL 2,896 2,372 1,336 1,069 1,074

Pharmacy Permits
IR 651 634 636 609 621 585 584 576 573 633 729
RC 464 473 471 493 505 520 528 535 541 555 473
H 177 174 171 175 172 171 171 174 179 181 181
IN 46 45 38 39 19 17 18 19 27 36
NU 9 10 10 9 10 12 14 13 13 13
CH 4 4 4 7 4 8 9 11 12 12
PEN
OS 122 152 168 175 216 223 262 313 353 339 200
PE 78 104 102 120 102 95 94 0
CO 13 12 12 12 12 12 13 13 0
TOTAL 1,564 1,608 1,612 1,639 1,668 1,663 1,717 1,771 1,818 1,760 1,644

Equipment Permits
AMS 0 109 136 158 174
EDK 468 461 474 444 471

6/30/2006 6/30/2007 6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016

Pharmacists
In-state 4,460 4,522 4,612 4,750 4,860 5,000 5,095 5,170 5,329 5,596 5,540
Out-of-state 1,915 1,975 1,964 2,029 2,098 2,179 2,258 2,588 2,542 2,512 2,901
TOTAL 6,375 6,497 6,576 6,779 6,958 7,179 7,353 7,758 7,871 8,108 8,441

Pharmacy Interns
In-state 980 1,079 1,074 1,035 965 917 938 945 950 953 959
Out-of-state 109 117 67 84 153 137 128 128 131 144 129
TOTAL 1,089 1,196 1,141 1,119 1,118 1,054 1,066 1,073 1,081 1,097 1,088

Pharmacy Technicians
In-state 4,552 4,587 4,780 4,733 5,363 5,722 5,509 5,752 6,463 6,585 6,815
Out-of-state 163 152 144 109 144 145 120 112 138 141 152
TOTAL 4,715 4,739 4,924 4,842 5,507 5,867 5,629 5,864 6,601 6,726 6,967

Pharmacy Technician Candidates
In-state 1,081 1,389 1,446 1,510 1,679 1,574 1,665 1,658 1,870 1,929 1,813
Out-of-state 32 32 23 32 35 35 39 31 37 52 48
TOTAL 1,113 1,421 1,469 1,542 1,714 1,609 1,704 1,695 1,907 1,981 1,861

Pharmacy Permits
IR 681 620 588 592 587 591 587 575 583 598 583
RC 430 491 534 545 562 576 587 597 619 649 671
H 167 164 167 167 165 170 172 172 175 174 173
IN 35 36 37 37 27 25 24 25 23 21 21
NU 17 16 16 16 16 15 15 15 15 14 15
CH 12 12 11 12 14 12 12 12 12 12 12
PEN 1 2 2 2
NR 226 240 250 256 286 318 361 387 432 484 523
TOTAL 1,568 1,579 1,603 1,625 1,657 1,707 1,758 1,784 1,861 1,954 2,000

Equipment Permits
AMS 173 212 255 306 361 356 366 638 451 812 480
EDK 428 412 439 388 503 430 448 431 474 484 464
DME 223 378 490 603 622

Special Activity CDTM 41 41 52 59
MAR 1,617 2,037 2,383 2,603

Special Work Permit 58 78 126 38 54 48

Type of Credential

Type of Credential



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
CDS Program - Census Report

6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016

ACS Animal Control  Shelter 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0
AMS Automated Medication System 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 30 22
APN Advanced Practice Registered Nurse 479 607 758 889 1,015 1,103 1,479 1,954 2,296
ASC Ambulatory Surgical Center 101 106 113 90 88 85 89 87 21
CRX Correctional Center 0 0 0 7 6 5 6 4 1
DDS Dentist 2,177 2,267 2,363 2,027 2,048 1,902 2,123 2,133 2,134
DET Drug Detection Canine  20 20 22 14 12 10 11 12 9
DIS Distributor 322 363 400 279 288 273 324 319 301

DPM Podiatrist 153 161 165 139 136 118 133 142 152
DVM Veterinarian 936 1,000 1,065 922 901 852 1,002 1,045 1,085
DYS Dialysis Center 63 63 63 6 4 3 4 0 0
EMC Emergency Medical Center 17 17 18 14 16 17 22 26 5
EMS Emergency Medical Service 58 63 66 54 50 45 50 49 16
ETC Animal Euthanasia Tech - Cert 39 44 49 28 27 27 29 28 27
HOS Hospital 387 405 438 292 281 268 278 277 294
LAB Analytical Laboratory 14 14 15 12 11 12 13 13 12
MD Physician 13,876 14,599 15,269 12,362 11,727 10,698 11,913 12,124 12,360

MDT Physician on Telemedicine 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0
MED Medical Clinic 78 88 102 80 86 82 89 81 3
MFR Manufacturer 43 52 58 48 50 45 42 42 37
MIS Other 73 58 59 20 14 12 13 11 0
MP Medical Psychologist 44 50 58 65 67 69 78 82 86
OD Optometrist 253 269 278 275 287 279 309 316 326
PA Physician's Assistant 194 232 272 294 326 344 449 487 610

PHY Pharmacy 0 0 0 1357 1,365 1,370 1,387 1,403 1,388
REP Sales Representative 65 66 88 29 20 7 0 0 0
RES Researcher 110 119 156 109 110 98 113 113 108
RHC Rural Health Clinic 20 21 23 17 12 11 12 11 2
ROF Registered Outsourcing Facility 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 14
SAC Substance Abuse Clinic 14 14 17 7 9 9 9 10 7

TOTAL 19,502 20,663 21,916 19,437 18,957 17,745 20,009 20,809 21,316

Pharmacy Program 16,407 16,601 17,818 18,260 18,625 21,405 22,865 24,254 24,635
CDS Program 19,536 20,698 21,916 19,437 18,957 17,745 20,009 20,809 21,316
TOTAL 35,943 37,299 39,734 37,697 37,582 39,150 42,874 45,063 45,951

Classification

Total Credentials Under Board Management



Prefix Subcategory CredentialType Total
AMS Automated Medication System 11
AMS X Automated Medication System - Exempt 7

18

CDS AMS CDS License - Automated Medication System 5
CDS APN CDS License - APRN 111
CDS DDS CDS License - Dentist 24
CDS DIS CDS License - Distributor 6
CDS DVM CDS License - Veterinarian 23
CDS ETL CDS License - Animal Euthanasia Technician, Lead (AET-L) 1
CDS HOS CDS License - Hospital 11
CDS MD CDS License - Physician 268
CDS MFR CDS License - Manufacturer 2
CDS MP CDS License - Medical Psychologist 1
CDS OD CDS License - Optometrist 12
CDS PA CDS License - Physician Assistant 39
CDS PHY CDS License - Pharmacy 16
CDS RES CDS License - Researcher 3
CDS ROF CDS License - Registered Outsourcing Facility 4

526
CPT Certified Pharmacy Technician 162

DME Durable Medical Equipment (DME) Provider 24

EDK Emergency Drug Kit 24

MA Medication Administration (V) 73

PHY IR Pharmacy - Community ~ Independent 12
PHY NR Pharmacy - Nonresident 17
PHY RC Pharmacy - Community ~ Chain 4
PHY SPL Pharmacy - Special Event 1

34

PIC Pharmacist-in-Charge (V) 10

PMP CDS PMP - CDS Credential 222
PMP PST PMP - Pharmacist 94

316

PNT Pharmacy Intern 16
PNT FPG Pharmacy Intern - Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 1

17
PST Pharmacist 195

PTC Pharmacy Technician Candidate 294

SWP Special Work Permit 16

1709

Prefix Totals 

Prefix Totals 

Prefix Totals 

New Credentials Issued
FYE 2017 ~ 1st Quarter

July 1, 2017 - September 30, 2017

Prefix Totals 

Grand Totals

Prefix Totals 



Prefix Subcat. CredentialType 05/06/15 07/21/15 11/3/2015 02/12/16 04/26/16 08/03/16 11/07/16
AMS Automated Medication System 4 2 3 2 5 3 3
CPT Certified Pharmacy Technician 56 39 50 30 40 54 53
DME Durable Medical Equipment 14 15 17 15 16 27 23
EDK Emergency Drug Kit 1
PHY CH Pharmacy - Charitable
PHY HOS Pharmacy - Hospital Inpatient 7 4 5 3 2 3 6
PHY IN Pharmacy - Institutional 1 1
PHY IR Pharmacy - Community ~ Independent 11 16 13 17 19 16 20
PHY NR Pharmacy - Nonresident 72 75 84 92 96 89 89
PHY NRN Pharmacy - Nonresident Nuclear
PHY NU Pharmacy - Nuclear 1 1
PHY PEN Pharmacy - Penal
PHY RC Pharmacy - Community ~ Chain 4 11 13 13 7 4
PHY SAT Pharmacy - Hospital Off-Site Satellite 4 2 1 1
PIC Pharmacist-in-Charge 1 1 1 1
PNT FPG Pharmacy Intern - Foreign Graduate 2 2 1 2
PNT Pharmacy Intern 50 74 90 31 30 58 101
PST Pharmacist 389 431 281 257 254 419 294
PTC Pharmacy Technician Candidate 394 377 352 358 353 346 480

1008 1050 909 820 824 1021 1073

Prefix Subcat. CredentialType 05/06/15 07/21/15 11/3/2015 02/12/16 04/26/16 08/03/16 11/07/16
CDS ACS CDS - Animal Control Shelter 2 1
CDS AMS CDS - Automated Medication System 1
CDS APN CDS - APRN 16 19 11 13 7 6 7
CDS DDS CDS - Dentist 3 1 1 1 1
CDS DET CDS - Drug Detection / Canine 1 1 1
CDS DIS CDS - Distributor 7 7 5 11 4 6 10
CDS DPM CDS - Podiatrist 1
CDS DVM CDS - Veterinarian 2 2 1 3 1
CDS ETC CDS - Animal Euthanasia Tech, Certified
CDS ETL CDS - Animal Euthanasia Tech, Lead 1 1
CDS HOS CDS - Hospital 7 7
CDS MD CDS - Physician 20 19 7 8 10 9 10
CDS MFR CDS - Manufacturer 1 1 1
CDS MP CDS - Medical Psychologist
CDS OD CDS - Optometrist 1 2 2
CDS PA CDS - Physician Assistant 7 6 8 8 3 4 13
CDS PHY CDS - Pharmacy 13 27 27 31 23 20 23
CDS PHX CDS - Pharmacy - Exempt
CDS REP CDS - Sales Representative
CDS RES CDS - Researcher 1 1 1 8 6 10
CDS ROF CDS - Registered Outsourcing Facility 1 3 1
CDS SAC CDS - Substance Abuse Clinic 1 2 1

70 87 65 77 58 65 87

Prefix Subcat. CredentialType 05/06/15 07/21/15 07/21/15 02/12/16 04/26/16 08/03/16 11/07/16
CDTM Collaborative Drug Therapy Management
LB Law Book 6 6 6 6
MA Medication Administration 7 7 2 3 4 3 5
PMP PMP - CDS Credential 85 85 69 62 61 55 34
PMP PMP - MIS Credential
PMP PMP - PST Credential 13 18 79 8 6 7 5
SWP Special Work Permit 120 140 164 46 48 62 71

231 256 320 125 119 127 115

TOTAL 1309 1393 1294 1022 1001 1213 1275

Pending Applications

Subtotal

OTHER CREDENTIALS

PHARMACY CREDENTIALS

CDS CREDENTIALS

Subtotal

Subtotal
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Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
3388 Brentwood Drive  

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70809-1700 
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November 16, 2016 
 
 
Agenda Item 12-L:  Report of Executive Director 
 
Section 2.C – Exceptions Report 
 
1. PIC at Multiple Pharmacies 

Board Policy I.A.4 permits the Executive Director to approve requests from pharmacists 
wishing to serve as the Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC) of more than one pharmacy at the same time. 
The policy requires the concurrence of the President, as well as notice to the Board at its next 
meeting.  As authorized by the President, the Executive Director has delegated this authority to 
the General Counsel and the Assistant Executive Director. 

• On July 26, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Fontenot concurred to grant a request from Cheston D. 
Paul (PST.015992) for temporary dual PIC privileges at LaSalle General Hospital Pharmacy 
(PHY.000654-HOS) in Jena and Promise Hospital of Miss Lou (PHY.007150-HOS) in Vidalia 
for a limited period of time with the authority set to expire on November 19, 2016 which is 120 
days from the date of the request. 

• On September 16, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Fontenot concurred to grant a request from 
Charles E. Maier (PST.015447) for temporary dual PIC privileges at Lakeside Pharmacy 
(PHY.007013-IR) in Monterey and Island Pharmacy (PHY.006199-IR) in Sicily Island for a 
limited period of time beginning on September 25, 2016 and ending on October 25, 2016. 

• On October 7, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Fontenot concurred to grant a request from Toni 
Michelle Davis Scott (PST.017688) for dual PIC privileges at The Pharmacy at LSU (Student 
Health Center) (PHY.007378-IR) and The Pharmacy at LSU (Athletic Training Center) 
(PHY.007379).  
   
 

2. Special Work Permits for military-trained applicants and their spouses 
LAC Title 46: LIII §904 authorizes the Board to provide preferential licensing procedures 

for military-trained applicants and their spouses.  As authorized by the President, the Executive 
Director has delegated this authority to the General Counsel and the Assistant Executive Director. 

• (None since last report.) 
 
3, Special Work Permits 

Board Policy I.A.7 permits the Executive Director to issue Special Work Permits to 
document the resurrection of expired non-renewable credentials and for other purposes as 
authorized by the Board.  The policy requires the concurrence of the President, as well as notice 
to the Board at its next meeting.  As authorized by the President, the Executive Director has 
delegated this authority to the General Counsel and the Assistant Executive Director. 

• On July 29, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Erin Denise 
Brumfield.  She had previously obtained PTC.015825 which expired on June 8, 2011.  
Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than January 1, 2017 she is authorized 
to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On August 4, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Alicia S. 
Wiley.  She had previously obtained PTC.022262 which expired on July 12, 2016.  Should 
she pass the PTCB examination no later than February 1, 2017 she is authorized to 
receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On August 4, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Tyshelia 
Norman.  She had previously obtained PTC.022234 which expired on July 7, 2016.  

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
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Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than February 1, 2017 she is authorized 
to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On August 5, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Monique 
Nicole Fuselier.  She had previously obtained PTC.018042 which expired on August 5, 
2017.  She is PTCB-certified and was issued a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 
600 hours of practical experience. 

• On August 10, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Stacey 
Lynn Ramsey.  She had previously obtained PTC.019601 which expired on July 11, 2014. 
 Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than February 1, 2017 she is authorized 
to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On August 10, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Alexus 
Nichol Landry.  She had previously obtained PTC.20400 which expired on February 21, 
2015.  She is PTCB-certified and was issued a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 
600 hours of practical experience. 

• On August 24, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Jamie 
Lynn White.  She had previously obtained PTC.021803 which expired on February 26, 
2016.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than February 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On August 30, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Alonna 
LaTrice Yarbough.  She had previously obtained PTC.017788 which expired on February 
2, 2013.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than February 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On September 2, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Carla 
Kately Londo.  She had previously obtained PTC.22040 which expired on May 6, 2016.  
Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than March 1, 2017 she is authorized to 
receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On September 8, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Kimberly Trell Carey.  She had previously obtained PTC.19618 which expired on 
December 31, 2014.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than March 1, 
2017 she is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of 
practical experience. 

• On September 17, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Laura Lynn Nugent.  She had previously obtained PTC.010624 which expired on 
December 14, 2005.  She is PTCB-certified and was issued a Special Work Permit for 
one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On September 22, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Paige Anne Bourgeois.  She had previously obtained PTC.020626 which expired on April 
30, 2015.  She is PTCB-certified and was issued a Special Work Permit for one year to 
earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On September 23, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Rachael LaNay Jones.  She had previously obtained PTC.021806 which expired on 
August 26, 2016.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than March 1, 2017 
she is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of 
practical experience. 

• On September 26, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Lindy Marie Meaux.  She had previously obtained PTC.017549 which expired on May 3, 
2012.  She passed the PTCB in 2012 and was issued a Special Work Permit for one year 
to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On September 27, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Sharon Vinoshia Hardison.  She had previously obtained PTC.018937 which expired on 
December 8, 2014.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than March 1, 2017 
she is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of 
practical experience. 

• On September 28, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Ashley Jo Chism.  She had previously obtained PTC.011050 which expired on November 
7, 2006.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than March 1, 2017 she is 



Page 3 of 4 

authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 4, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Davon 
Latrice Johnson.  She had previously obtained PTC.018176 which expired on May 9, 
2013.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 4, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Kaelyn 
Marie Naquin.  She had previously obtained PTC.021082 which expired on August 25, 
2015.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 5, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Bertrina 
Marie Solomon.  She had previously obtained PTC.018435 which expired on July 31, 
2013.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 12, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Jackie 
LeBlanc Meyers.  She had previously obtained PTC.010159 which expired on July 14, 
2005.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 13, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Raven 
Monique Pierson.  She had previously obtained PTC.012658 which expired on August 27, 
2008.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 13, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Lacreasha Sherrelle Green.  She had previously obtained PTC.021920 which expired on 
March 30, 2016.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she 
is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 13, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
LaRhonda Rachelle Augustus.  She had previously obtained PTC.018672 which expired 
on October 2, 2014.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 
she is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of 
practical experience. 

• On October 17, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Georgeann Jenkins.  She had previously obtained PTC.021726 which expired on 
February 12, 2016.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 
she is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of 
practical experience. 

• On October 19, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Don 
Terel B. Hollingquest.  She had previously obtained PTC.019600 which expired on June 
11, 2014.  She has passed the PTCB examination and was issued a Special Work Permit 
for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On October 19, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Kristi 
Freeman Thibodeaux.  She had previously obtained PTC.017040 which expired on May 
24, 2012.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 19, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Kyaira 
E'shay Austin.  She had previously obtained PTC.018499 which expired on August 14, 
2014.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 24, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Shuntyal Leticia Carter.  She had previously obtained PTC.015853 which expired on June 
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22, 2011.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 24, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Michelle 
Viveca Boutte.  She had previously obtained PTC.016697 which expired on February 17, 
2012.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 24, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Connie 
Marie Ceasar.  She had previously obtained PTC.020654 which expired on May 6, 2015.  
Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is authorized to 
receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical experience. 

• On October 26, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Lauren 
Elizabeth Hankins.  She had previously obtained PTC.018248 which expired on June 6, 
2013.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 28, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Gabrielle Dominique Dixson.  She had previously obtained PTC.022124 which expired on 
June 6, 2016.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On October 31, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
De'Anndra Lenette Robinson.  She had previously obtained PTC.012976 which expired 
on January 5, 2009.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than April 1, 2017 
she is authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of 
practical experience. 

• On November 7, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Cathy 
Joyce Gaienne.  She had previously obtained PTC.019950 which expired on October 29, 
2014.  Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than May 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 

• On November 8, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from Paige 
Ronisha Vaughn.  She had previously obtained PTC.020778 which expired on June 30, 
2016. She is PTCB-certified and was issued a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 
600 hours of practical experience. 

• On November 9, 2016, Mr. Aron and Mr. Finalet concurred to grant a request from 
Sharon Latrice Worick.  She had previously obtained PTC.017139 which expired on June 
28, 2012. Should she pass the PTCB examination no later than May 1, 2017 she is 
authorized to receive a Special Work Permit for one year to earn 600 hours of practical 
experience. 
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Mission 

 
Created by the Louisiana Legislature in 1888, the mission of the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
remains unchanged over a century later: to regulate the practice of pharmacy in such a manner as 
to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Louisiana.  Toward that goal, 
the Louisiana Pharmacy Practice Act specifically authorizes the Board to restrict the practice of 
pharmacy to qualified persons, as well as to control and regulate all persons and sites that sell 
drugs or devices or provide pharmacy care services to consumers in this state. 
 
 
 

Membership 
 
The Board is composed of seventeen members: two pharmacists from each of eight districts and 
one public member at large.  The district representatives are nominated by pharmacists, 
appointed by the governor, confirmed by the state senate, and serve six year terms.  The public 
member is selected by, and serves at the pleasure of, the governor.  The current members of the 
Board are: 
 
District 1 Diane G. Milano, Richard M. Indovina, Jr. 
District 2 Jacqueline L. Hall, Deborah H. Simonson 
District 3 Blake P. Pitre, Richard A. Soileau 
District 4 Clovis S. Burch, Rhonny K. Valentine 
District 5 Carl W. Aron, T. Morris Rabb 
District 6 Ronald E. Moore, Pamela G. Reed 
District 7 Ryan M. Dartez, Chris B. Melancon 
District 8 Brian A. Bond, Marty R. McKay 
Public  Don L. Resweber 
 
 

Licensure 
 
In order to facilitate the restriction of practice to qualified persons, the Board has established 
educational, experiential, and examination requirements for licensure.  As authorized by the 
legislature, the Board has contracted its high-stakes examination procedures with professional 
testing services. 
 
A. Examinations for Pharmacists 
The North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX) and the Multistate 
Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE) are administered by the National Association of 
Boards of Pharmacy (NABP).  These computer adaptive tests are administered in continuous 
window opportunities at multiple sites throughout the state.  A minimum scaled score of 75 is 
required on each test to qualify for pharmacist licensure.  The results for all Louisiana-based 
NAPLEX and MPJE candidates from ULM School of Pharmacy and Xavier University – College 
of Pharmacy in Calendar Year 2015 are summarized below: 
 



NAPLEX 
       Jan – Apr    May – Aug    Sept – Dec  
     ULM XU  ULM XU  ULM XU 
 
Total No. of Candidates      4       15    79     141    12 31 
Mean Scaled Score – School                82       72               95       96               90  87 
Mean Scaled Score – State                82       82                 96       96    86 86  
Mean Scaled Score – National    84       84             100     100    88 88 
School Pass Rate [%]                50       53    90  85             100 86 
State Pass Rate               69       69                  88  88    76 76 
National Pass Rate                67       67    92  92    78 78 
 
 
MPJE 
     Jan – Apr  May – Aug  Sept – Dec  
     ULM XU  ULM XU  ULM XU 
 
Total No. of Candidates   42       81  122      215  56      103  
Mean Scaled Score – School    84       80    84   81  83 81 
Mean Scaled Score – State    81 80    81        81  80 80 
Mean Scaled Score – National   82 81    82        82  81 81 
School Pass Rate [%]               93 73    98        89             95 86 
State Pass Rate     81 81    88        88  87 87 
National Pass Rate     88 88    93   93  88 88 
 
B. Examinations for Technicians 
The Pharmacy Technician Certification Board (PTCB) administers a national certification 
examination; this computer adaptive test is administered in continuous window opportunities at 
multiple sites throughout the state.  A minimum scaled score of 75 is required to successfully 
complete the examination.  The Louisiana Board of Pharmacy accepts the PTCB examination 
score result as part of the licensure requirements for pharmacy technicians. The results for all 
Louisiana-based PTCB candidates for Calendar Year 2014 are summarized here: 
  No. of State Candidates  1,112 
  State Pass Rate [%]        50 
  No. of National Candidates           58,364 
  National Pass Rate [%]       60 
 
C. Census Data 
At the close of the fiscal year on June 30, 2016, a review of our records yielded the following 
census information: 
 
        2016  2015  2014 

• Pharmacy Program 
1. Pharmacists 

>   Number of active licenses   8,389  8,108  7,841 
>   Number of licensees within the state 5,509  5,596  5,329 

 2. Pharmacy Interns 
  >   Number of active registrations  1,088  1,097  1,081 



3.     Pharmacy technicians 
  >   Number of active certificates  6,969  6,726  6,603 
 4. Pharmacy technician candidates 

>   Number of active registrations  1,861  1,981  1,907 
5       Pharmacies 

>   Number of active permits   2,000  1,954  1,872 
     - Community – Independent    583           598            593 
     - Community – Chain      671           649            619 
     - Hospital       173           174         176 
     - Institutional         21               21                23 
     - Nuclear         15          14              15 
     - Charitable                  12       12                   12  
     - Penal           2         2         2 
     - Nonresident           523          484     432 

 6. Equipment Permits 
  >   Emergency drug kit (EDK)     464     484     474 
  >   Automated medication systems (AMS)     480                  812     451 
  >   Durable medical equipment (DME)    622                  603     490 

7. Special Activity Credentials 
 >   CDTM Registration        59       52       41 
 >   Med. Administration Registration  2,603  2,383  2,037 
 >   Special Work Permits        48       54       38 
 
Subtotal of Credentials in Pharmacy Program         24,635          24,254          22,865 
 
       2016  2015  2014 

• CDS Program 
1. Animal Control Shelter          0         1         1 
2. Automated Medication System (AMS)      22       30       28 
3. Advanced Practice RN (APRN)  2,296  1,954  1,479 
4. Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC)              21        87       89 
5. Correctional Center                    1         4         6 
6. Dentist        2,134  2,133  2,123 
7. Drug Detection / Canine          9       12       12 
8. Distributor        301     327     324 
9. Podiatrist        152     142     133 
10. Veterinarian     1,085  1,045             1,002 
11. Dialysis Center           0         0         4 
12. Emergency Medical Center                 5                    26       22 
13. Emergency Medical Service               16       49       50 
14. Animal Euthanasia Technician         27       28       29 
15. Hospital             294      277     278 
16. Laboratory                 12        13       13 
17. Physician                         12,360            12,125           11,915 
18. Medical Clinic                                3        81       89 
19. Manufacturer                              37                    42       42 
20. Miscellaneous                   0       11        13 
21. Medical Psychologist                      86        82       78 



22. Optometrist                                                    326      316     309 
23. Pharmacies       1,388  1,403  1,387 
24. Physician Assistant                                            610      487     449 
25. Sales Representative                                              0          0         0 
26. Registered Outsourcing Facility       14                      8                      0 
27. Researcher                           108      113     113 
28. Rural Health Clinic                                         2        11       12 
29. Substance Abuse Clinic          7        10         9 

 
 Subtotal of Credentials in CDS Program          21,316              20,809          20,009  
 
Total Credentials under Management                    45,951           45,063          42,874   
  
D. New Credentials 
During the past fiscal year, the Board issued 6,308 new credentials in the Pharmacy Program and 
3,023 new credentials in the CDS Program.  Of note within the Pharmacy Program, we issued 
931 new pharmacist licenses, 1,204 new pharmacy technician certificates, and 2,178 new 
pharmacy technician candidate registrations during the past fiscal year.  Of note within the CDS 
Program, we issued new CDS licenses to 1,366 physicians, 758 advanced practice registered 
nurses, and 254 physician assistants. 
 
E. License Transfer (Reciprocity) 
Persons already licensed as a pharmacist by any other state (except California) who wish to 
obtain a license in Louisiana must successfully complete the MPJE as well as the application and 
criminal background check.  Of the 931 new pharmacist licenses issued this past fiscal year, 261 
were issued subsequent to successful completion of the reciprocity process. 
 
 

Compliance 
 
A. Enforcement 

In order to control and regulate the practice of pharmacy in Louisiana, the Board employs 
five pharmacist compliance officers to perform routine inspections and special investigations 
throughout the year in all places under the Board’s jurisdiction.  Besides the routine inspections, 
site visits for permit changes, and other calls for assistance, the compliance and administrative 
officers completed 401 investigations during the fiscal year: 18 of the original complaints were 
withdrawn, 23 resulted from termination of previously imposed probationary periods, 48 were 
determined to be without violation, 7 cases were referred to other agencies, 80 resulted in 
field/administrative corrections, 13 resulted in administrative sanctions, and 212 cases were 
referred to the Board’s committees.  The committees took no action in 37 of their cases, issued 
approvals for 49 non-disciplinary petitions, and recommended voluntary consent agreements for 
114 cases.  Of that number, all but 12 accepted the proposed discipline; those 12 respondents 
were referred for formal administrative hearings.  

Compliance officers coordinate other investigative activities with a wide range of 
agencies, including local police departments, parish sheriff departments, other state regulatory 
and law enforcement agencies, and federal agencies such as the Drug Enforcement 
Administration, the Food and Drug Administration, and the Consumer Product Safety 
Commission.  Though the compliance officers utilize the educational approach as the 



fundamental mechanism to achieve compliance, certain circumstances warrant formal board 
action. 

 
B. Adjudications 
During the past fiscal year, the Board conducted four administrative hearings and levied formal 
disciplinary action against several credentials.  A summary of that activity is presented here: 
 
                         Pharmacist        Intern        Technician        Candidate        Permit        CDS  
   Sanction 
Denial / Refusal           3       0     0      2     1         0  
Reinstatement            2       0     4      0     1         1 
Change Previous Orders       4       0     0      0     0         0 
Assessment            2       0      2      0              17          0 
Letter of Warning           0       0     0      0                2         0   
Letter of Reprimand           17                   0   13      0                3         0  
Voluntary Surrender             6                   0     4      0                0         0 
Probation                    11                   1     3      6                2         0 
Suspension                      0                   0     1      0                0       16  
Revocation           0        0                7      5                3         0   
 
C. Practitioner Recovery Program 
The Board established its program in 1988 to assist practitioners obtain treatment for their 
impairment, maintain their recovery, and assist their re-entry into professional practice.  As of 
July 1, 2016 there were 47 pharmacists, one pharmacy intern, and one pharmacy technician 
actively engaged in the recovery program.  They surrendered their credentials while in treatment; 
following treatment and upon favorable recommendation by board-certified addiction medicine 
specialists, they applied for the reinstatement of their credentials.  The Board reinstated their 
credentials on probation, and the licensees practice under various restrictions designed to monitor 
their re-entry to professional practice.  In addition, the credentials for 42 pharmacists, two 
interns, 16 technicians, and four technician candidates were still on active suspension for 
impairment reasons. 
 
 

Board Activity 
 
A. Regulatory 

The Board’s Regulation Revision Committee is tasked with the continuous review of the 
Board’s rules and their revision as appropriate.  The committee initiated and the Board completed 
several regulatory projects during the fiscal year.   

 Electronic Product Verification, amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapters 12 and 15; 
 Compounding for Office Use for Veterinarians, amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapter 

25; 
 Electronic Signature on Fax Prescriptions, amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapter 25; 
 Telepharmacy Services Permit, amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapter 24; and 
 Remote Processor Pharmacy Permit, amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapters 11 and 24. 

  The Board has four additional regulatory projects not yet completed; the progress of these 
projects may be monitored at the Board’s website: 

 Accreditation of Pharmacy Technician Training Programs, amending LAC 46: 



LIII.Chapter 9; 
 Controlled Substance Prescriptions, amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapters 25 and 27;  
 Pharmacist-in-Charge of Nonresident Pharmacy; amending LAC 46:LIII.Chapter 

23; and 
 Medication Synchronization, amending LAC 46:LIII.2519. 
Finally, the Committee continues its work on drafting rules to implement the statewide 

medical marijuana program authorized by the 2015 Legislature. 
 
B. Legislative 
During the 2016 regular session, the Board sponsored three bills, two of which were successful.  
Act 62 amended the state list of controlled substances to harmonize the state list with the federal 
list.  Act 189 amended the prescription monitoring program law to authorize the Board to adopt a 
rule setting standards for the retention, archiving and destruction of the prescription transaction 
data housed by the program.   
 
C. Operations 

We have also completed five years of service with our website’s content management 
system and its mass communication capabilities.  We have increased the frequency of 
communications to our licensees through the use of targeted email, alerts, and bulletins.  Through 
avoided postage and labor costs of mass snail mail notices, we have already recouped the cost of 
our investment and will continue our savings going forward.  In response to requests from users 
of mobile communication devices, we have updated our website to be responsive to access 
requests from such mobile devices. 

Our licensing information system was acquired and placed into service in 2010.  We have 
scheduled a major upgrade for the system in the next fiscal year; that upgrade is essential to allow 
the expansion of online services.  In addition, we are planning a major project to scan our 
licensure files which will allow further automation of our credentialing processes. 

Finally, the Board continued its operation of Louisiana’s Prescription Monitoring 
Program (PMP).  The initial contract for the program vendor reached the end of its five year life, 
and the contract was released for public bid. The new vendor, Optimum Technology, Inc. based 
in Columbus, OH, was awarded the second contract in December 2013.  During this fiscal year, 
that firm was acquired by Appriss, Inc. based in Louisville, KY.  Appriss agreed to honor the 
terms of the 2013 contract, and further, transitioned the Louisiana program to its operating 
platform (Aware) in June 2016. The number of prescribers and dispensers authorized to access 
the program’s database continues to increase, as has the average number of queries per day.  
Since the program is required to file an annual report to the legislature, we have appended that 
report to this one to facilitate its separation. 
 
D. Physical Plant 

The Board purchased its office building in December 2010 and moved to its current 
location in May 2011.  We continue to make minor improvements to the building and grounds.  
The loan for the purchase of the building was retired in December 2015. 
 
 

Board Office 
 
The Board currently employs 17 people on a full-time basis in a variety of professional, 
technical, and clerical roles; the Board also supports the local Cooperative Office Education 



(COE) program in Baton Rouge area high schools by hiring high school senior students on a 
temporary basis.  The physical and mailing address of the board office is: 
 
  Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 
  3388 Brentwood Drive 
  Baton Rouge, LA  70809-1700 
  Telephone (225) 925-6496 
  Telecopier (225) 925-6499 
 
The board’s website address is www.pharmacy.la.gov and general email is received at 
info@pharmacy.la.gov.    
 
 

Conclusion 
 
 The board has had an active year on several fronts, and all of these activities have 
contributed to the overall mission of the board.  The officers and members of the board, as well 
as the entire office staff, are committed to achieving our goal of protecting the public’s health, 
safety and welfare through appropriate regulation of the practice of pharmacy in this state.  We 
understand that public service is a privilege, and we endeavor to render that service honorably. 
 
Prepared by: 
Malcolm J Broussard 
Executive Director 
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Introduction 
 
Act 676 of the 2006 Louisiana Legislature authorized the development, implementation, 
operation, and evaluation of an electronic system for the monitoring of controlled substances and 
other drugs of concern that are dispensed within the state or dispensed by a licensed pharmacy 
outside the state to an address within the state.  The goal of the program is to improve the state’s 
ability to identify and inhibit the diversion of controlled substances and drugs of concern in an 
efficient and cost-effective manner and in a manner that shall not impede the appropriate 
utilization of these drugs for legitimate medical purposes. 
 
The Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) was implemented in August 2008.  We notified 
pharmacies of their requirement to report all eligible prescription transactions to the program, 
and further, required them to report all historical data retroactive to June 1, 2008 no later than 
December 31, 2008.  In December 2008, the Board notified all prescribers and dispensers 
wishing to acquire direct access privileges of the requirement to complete the web-based 
orientation program prior to receiving their access privileges.  The web portal to the program 
database was opened to queries on January 1, 2009, and the program remains fully functional. 
 
The initial vendor selected pursuant to the original public bid in 2008 was Health Information 
Designs, Inc.  from Auburn, AL.  When that contract was re-bid in 2013, the successful bidder 
was Optimum Technology, Inc. from Columbus, OH.  In 2015, that firm was acquired by 
Appriss, Inc. based in Louisville, KY.  During Fiscal Year 2015-2016, Appriss transitioned the 
Louisiana program from the Optimum Technology platform to its own Aware platform.  Among 
other benefits will be an enhanced reporting capability. 
 
 
Advisory Council 
 
The enabling legislation created the PMP Advisory Council to assist the Board in the 
development and operation of the program.  The Board shall seek, and the advisory council shall 
provide, information and advice regarding: (1) which controlled substances should be monitored, 
(2) which drugs of concern demonstrate a potential for abuse and should be monitored, (3) design 
and implementation of educational courses required by the PMP law, (4) methodology to be used 
for analysis and interpretation of prescription monitoring information, (5) design and 
implementation of a program evaluation component, and (6) identification of potential additional 
members to the advisory council.  The original legislation specifically identified the 25 
organizations named to the council and further, named the leader of the organization but 
permitted the leader to name a designee to function in the absence of the appointee.  The 
organizations represented on the council include the licensing agencies for the prescribers and 
dispensers, the professional membership organizations for the prescribers and dispensers, 
organizations representing federal, state, and local law enforcement agencies, as well as 
representatives from the legislature.  The advisory council has elected its own leadership, 
adopted policies and procedures for its operations, and meets on a quarterly basis. 
 
The council actively reviews the program’s operations and makes recommendations for the 
improvement of the program.  Those recommendations are forwarded to the Board of Pharmacy, 
resulting in regulatory or legislative initiatives designed to implement the council’s 
recommendations. 



Legislative Mandates 
 
The 2014 Legislature adopted a number of measures which will serve to improve the program.  
Beginning August 1, 2014, pharmacies and other dispensers will be required to report their 
eligible prescription transactions to the program database no later than the next business day 
following the date of dispensing, instead of the previous seven day allowance.  In addition, the 
Board has recently completed the rulemaking process authorized by the 2013 Legislature that 
will allow authorized prescribers and dispensers to appoint delegates for the purpose of retrieving 
data from the program’s database. 
 
The 2015 Legislature also adopted a measure that will require prescribers of certain controlled 
substances for the treatment of certain conditions to access the patient’s history in the program 
database prior to initiating such treatment.  The same measure will require pharmacists 
dispensing certain controlled substances to certain patients to access the patient’s history in the 
program database prior to dispensing such medications. 
 
 
Program Highlights 

• August 2015 – began sharing information with Arkansas and Mississippi. 
• October 2015 – enabled Kroger Pharmacies through the Gateway program. 
• March 2016 – began sharing information with South Carolina. 
• April 2016 – began sharing information with Connecticut. 
• June 2016 – migrated program to the Aware platform operated by Appriss. 

 
 
Program Metrics 
 
The data on the following page provides summary data for the operational aspects of the program 
– number of prescription transactions reported to the program database, number of prescribers 
and dispensers and their delegates registered to access the program data, the number of queries 
performed by those authorized prescribers and dispensers and their delegates as well as law 
enforcement agencies and regulatory agencies, and finally, the average number of queries per 
day. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Louisiana Board of Pharmacy
Prescription Monitoring Program

Calendar Year: 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 6/30/2016

Prescription Database:
Transactions Reported (in Millions) 6.015 11.144 12.117 12.775 12.99 13.032 13.02 12.403 6.074

Access to Program Data:
New prescribers registered: 1,526 721 548 574 640 1,093 958 350
Total prescribers registered: 1,526 2,247 2,795 3,369 4,009 5,102 6,060 6,410
New prescriber delegates registered: 473 709 153
Total prescriber delegates registered: 473 1,182 1335
New pharmacists registered: 728 483 361 494 509 466 418 180
Total pharmacists registered: 728 1,211 1,572 2,066 2,575 3,041 3,459 3,639
New pharmacist delegates registered: 143 236 70
Total pharmacist delegates registered: 143 379 449

Searches Performed by Users:
Solicited by prescribers: 235,985 368,376 496,270 650,514 842,139 942,733 1,178,446 608,149
Solicited by prescriber delegates: 26,993 269,147 212933
Solicited by pharmacists: 74,277 111,075 153,783 212,754 382,204 456,568 1,015,496 552,229
Solicited by pharmacist delegates: 3,954 51,285 35915
Solicited by law enforcement: 680 889 1,230 845 1,150 1,224 1,011 391
Solicited by regulatory agencies: 833 1,401 1,612 1,584 1,364 1,675 1,477 701

Average queries per day: 854 1,319 1,788 2,372 3,361 3,926 6,896 7,727



Outlook for Next Fiscal Year 
 
The program continues to enroll new authorized users, and the daily average number of queries 
continues to increase.  With assistance from the licensing agencies encouraging use of the 
program by their licensees, along with legislative mandates for certain prescribers and patients, 
we hope to improve on the current registration rate.  With the recent legislative change 
facilitating the sharing of data with other states, we continue to identify new states with whom 
we can share prescription data.   
 
 
Conclusion 
 
The program has completed approximately eight years of operation.  Based on feedback from 
authorized users, it appears to represent an efficient and cost-effective use of resources.  Data 
from the program suggests we have made some early contributions to the reduction of diversion 
of controlled substances. Our interstate collaborations have yielded high marks for our program 
design and operation.  We look forward to fully developing the potential of our program to 
identify and inhibit the diversion of controlled substances in Louisiana. 
 
We acknowledge the contributions from Ms. Lindsey Schultz, our Administrative Coordinator, 
and Mr. Joseph Fontenot, Program Manager, for their operation of the program and the 
development of this report. 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Malcolm J. Broussard 
Executive Director 
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Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE™) 
 
This computer adaptive competency assessment is administered by the National Association of Boards 
of Pharmacy (NABP).  The examination blueprint is designed to assess the applicant’s competency in 
federal and state laws relative to pharmacy practice and is therefore specific for a given state.  The 
examination is administered via an open window process; applicants may schedule the examination at a 
local testing center at any time following approval by the state board and receipt of an Authorization to 
Test (ATT) document from NABP.  Individual scores are available to applicants via secure web posting 
approximately 7-10 days following the examination.  Summary reports are provided to the state boards 
on a calendar trimester basis. 
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This MPJE score report provides summary information for first-time examinees from ACPE-accredited schools/colleges 

and for all examinees, regardless of repeater status and/or the educational institution. Tables 1 and 2 contain school, 

state, and national pass rate information as well as total score means.

MPJE in-state: Examinees taking the MPJE for the same jurisdiction as respective pharmacy program

MPJE out of state: Examinees testing in different jurisdiction than respective pharmacy program

Table 1 First-Time Candidates, ACPE-Accredited Programs Only

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

In-state 84 82.14% 77.31 3.40

National 15653 83.77% 78.24 3.88

Table 2 All Candidates

Out of state 49 77.55% 79.41 5.22

State 272 77.21% 77.10 3.53

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

In-state 89 83.15% 77.42 3.38

Out of state 54 79.63% 79.20 5.12

State 299 77.93% 77.12 3.52

57 98

All Candidates 57 98

Scaled Score Range 0 100

National 17279 82.66% 78.08 3.89

Table 3 contains information on the range of 

scaled scores achieved by FT ACPE (First-Time, 

ACPE-Accredited) candidates as well as the 

pool of all candidates. It also shows the 

boundaries of the Scaled Score Range.

Table 3 Total Scaled Score Min/Max

Min Max

FT ACPE

Candidates who did not answer enough questions to receive a score are reflected in pass

rate data as a fail but are not included in mean scaled score data.
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The following tables and graphs are scaled score frequency distributions for MPJE candidates who tested in-state. 

Candidates who did not answer enough questions to receive a score are not reflected in the frequency distributions.

Table 4 & Graph 1 School Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

84Based on First-Time Candidates from ACPE-Accredited Programs N =
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Table 5 & Graph 2 National Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

Based on First-Time Candidates from ACPE-Accredited Programs N = 8206
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Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 125 82 100 57 59 123 77 119

School Average Score: 83.27 82.76 80.84 81.37 80.17 80.41 78.57 80.04

State Average Score: 81.64 80.49 80.64 80.32 80.34 79.41 77.32 78.87

National Average Score: 82.24 81.75 82.25 81.51 90.78 79.85 79.92 79.33

School Pass Rate: 94.40 91.46 90.00 91.23 88.14 88.62 77.92 88.24

State Pass Rate: 89.89 86.25 87.84 90.00 92.00 85.98 72.88 84.67

National Pass Rate: 91.37 90.50 91.22 90.54 90.78 84.93 84.52 82.61

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 117 78 92 51 55 111 59 110

School Average Score: 83.67 83.14 80.89 81.78 80.22 80.58 79.31 80.22

State Average Score: 82.14 80.97 80.67 80.51 80.30 79.41 77.69 79.23

National Average Score: 82.55 82.05 82.59 81.86 82.08 80.19 80.34 79.76

School Pass Rate: 96.58 93.59 90.22 90.20 89.09 88.29 81.36 88.18

State Pass Rate: 92.59 87.32 88.06 89.77 91.49 86.32 75.00 86.55

National Pass Rate: 92.57 91.37 92.45 91.75 92.15 86.45 86.58 84.67

2001 2002 20032000



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 62 110 59 146 68 111 50 151

School Average Score: 79.39 80.79 79.25 80.50 80.43 81.92 80.20 81.62

State Average Score: 78.58 80.03 80.50 80.03 80.01 81.34 80.15 81.47

National Average Score: 80.10 79.83 80.39 80.04 80.68 80.42 81.26 81.14

School Pass Rate: 91.94 91.82 89.83 87.67 88.24 92.79 90.00 92.05

State Pass Rate: 86.90 92.55 90.55 87.03 91.09 92.39 87.18 90.39

National Pass Rate: 85.63 84.75 86.57 85.69 87.25 87.82 89.38 89.78

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 52 104 55 132 60 102 43 140

School Average Score: 79.73 80.96 79.33 80.66 80.80 82.14 81.05 81.83

State Average Score: 79.04 80.11 80.71 80.29 80.24 81.52 80.59 81.84

National Average Score: 80.58 80.25 80.80 80.44 81.09 80.80 81.72 81.51

School Pass Rate: 92.31 92.31 89.09 87.12 91.67 94.12 95.35 93.57

State Pass Rate: 90.14 92.53 91.38 88.69 92.31 93.53 91.18 92.49

National Pass Rate: 88.16 86.87 88.51 87.51 89.41 89.34 91.43 91.24

20072004 2005 2006



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - AprMay - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - AprMay - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - AprMay - Aug Sep - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 61 137 42 120 36 38 104 35 5 71 12

Mean Scaled Score - School 81.26 81.99 80.95 82.58 80.75 81.47 82.14 81.89 82.60 82.73 83.83

Mean Scaled Score - State 81.33 81.34 79.57 81.69 80.35 81.37 80.88 81.64 81.01 80.41

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.59 81.27 80.29 82.39 80.25 80.45 82.51 80.57 80.27 82.23 80.46

School Pass Rate: 96.72 91.97 88.10 95.00 86.11 94.74 90.38 91.43 100.00 97.18 100.00

State Pass Rate: 91.75 91.05 81.03 94.52 85.92 90.00 92.64 95.79 89.91 90.99

National Pass Rate: 90.31 89.92 86.23 93.74 87.04 89.09 94.83 89.35 86.43 92.17 86.24

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 58 127 37 117 34 34 96 30 5 66 11

Mean Scaled Score - School 81.52 82.13 81.30 82.56 81.09 82.12 82.67 82.33 82.60 83.08 84.18

Mean Scaled Score - State 81.53 81.62 79.69 81.76 80.98 82.07 80.93 82.07 81.52 81.14

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.97 81.57 80.75 82.58 80.63 80.82 82.67 80.94 81.17 82.86 81.76

School Pass Rate: 96.55 91.34 89.19 94.87 88.24 97.06 93.75 93.33 100.00 100.00 100.00

State Pass Rate: 92.31 91.95 80.77 94.34 89.66 93.44 92.92 97.56 94.06 94.32

National Pass Rate: 91.82 91.16 88.45 94.30 88.68 90.64 95.50 90.79 92.24 96.05 94.00

20112008 2009 2010



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

 
Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 4 126 87 47 94 30 32 122 39 42 122 56
* testing in same/different state 72 / 54 11 / 34 11 / 36 40 / 54 2 / 28 5 / 27 62 / 60 6 / 33 13 / 29 68 / 54 13 / 43
Mean Scale Score - School * 82.25 82.44/82.70 80.09/79.85 81.45/84.03 82.50/82.59 80.50/82.79 79.40/81.41 81.44/83.32 78.50/81.42 76.85/81.90 81.44/84.13 79.85/83.12
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 81.18 80.91 79.62 81.33 80.82 80.43 80.36 80.18 80.13 79.81 80.56 80.05

Mean Scaled Score - National 80.41 82.43 80.55 80.92 82.50 80.52 81.04 82.52 81.08 81.32 82.40 80.91

School Pass Rate: * 100.00 97.22/90.74 90.91/85.29 100/97.22 95.00/98.15 100 / 92.86 100 / 85.19 95.16/96.67 83.33/87.88 76.92/93.10 94.12/98.15 84.62/95.35
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 90.41 90.69 81.61 93.98 90.51 85.21 82.52 86.08 82.69 80.69 88.14 86.55

National Pass Rate: 84.54 92.76 86.85 87.18 92.98 87.01 87.62 93.28 88.50 88.20 93.04 87.78

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 4 124 70 44 93 28 29 119 33 38 120 49
* testing in same/different state 72 / 52 10 / 29 10 / 34 39 / 54 1 / 27 5 / 24 62 / 57 3 / 30 11 / 27 68 / 52 7 / 42
Mean Scaled Score - School * 82.25 82.44/83.02 80.62/79.90 81.80/84.26 82.77/82.59 82.00/83.19 79.40/82.29 81.44/83.58 78.00/81.97 76.91/82.04 81.44/84.40 78.71/83.14
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 81.75 81.03 80.21 81.90 81.03 81.08 81.05 80.62 81.13 80.63 80.62 80.81

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.44 82.75 81.26 81.78 82.76 81.22 81.82 82.80 81.79 82.14 82.66 81.60

School Pass Rate: * 100.00 97.22/92.31 89.66/90.00 100.00/97.0697.44/98.15 100 / 96.30 100 / 91.67 95.16/98.25 66.67/90.00 72.73/92.59 94.12/98.08 85.71/95.24
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 93.22 91.03 85.71 97..22 91.88 87.29 85.88 89.29 84.96 83.61 88.77 91.06

National Pass Rate: 89.13 93.94 89.60 91.08 93.95 90.04 90.85 94.34 90.87 91.72 93.97 90.35

2012 2013 2014 2015



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 80 143
* testing in same/different state 7 / 73 89 / 54
Mean Scale Score - School * 80.14/84.04 77.42/79.20
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 80.92 77.12

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.10 78.08
                                                        

School Pass Rate: * 100 / 98.63 83.15/79.63
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 90.23 77.93

National Pass Rate: 87.62 82.66

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 76 133
* testing in same/different state 7 / 69 84 / 49
Mean Scaled Score - School * 80.14/84.23 77.31/79.41
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 81.58 77.10

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.84 78.24

School Pass Rate: * 100 / 98.55 82.14/77.55
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 92.79 77.21

National Pass Rate: 90.71 83.77

2016 2017 2018 2019
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This MPJE score report provides summary information for first-time examinees from ACPE-accredited schools/colleges 

and for all examinees, regardless of repeater status and/or the educational institution. Tables 1 and 2 contain school, 

state, and national pass rate information as well as total score means.

MPJE in-state: Examinees taking the MPJE for the same jurisdiction as respective pharmacy program

MPJE out of state: Examinees testing in different jurisdiction than respective pharmacy program

Table 1 First-Time Candidates, ACPE-Accredited Programs Only

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

In-state 83 65.06% 76.04 3.67

National 15653 83.77% 78.24 3.88

Table 2 All Candidates

Out of state 80 76.25% 77.46 4.35

State 272 77.21% 77.10 3.53

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

In-state 92 64.13% 75.93 3.71

Out of state 90 74.44% 77.13 4.29

State 299 77.93% 77.12 3.52

57 98

All Candidates 57 98

Scaled Score Range 0 100

National 17279 82.66% 78.08 3.89

Table 3 contains information on the range of 

scaled scores achieved by FT ACPE (First-Time, 

ACPE-Accredited) candidates as well as the 

pool of all candidates. It also shows the 

boundaries of the Scaled Score Range.

Table 3 Total Scaled Score Min/Max

Min Max

FT ACPE

Candidates who did not answer enough questions to receive a score are reflected in pass

rate data as a fail but are not included in mean scaled score data.
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The following tables and graphs are scaled score frequency distributions for MPJE candidates who tested in-state. 

Candidates who did not answer enough questions to receive a score are not reflected in the frequency distributions.

Table 4 & Graph 1 School Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

82Based on First-Time Candidates from ACPE-Accredited Programs N =
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Table 5 & Graph 2 National Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

Based on First-Time Candidates from ACPE-Accredited Programs N = 8206
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Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 25 94 53 126 43 122 71 158

School Average Score: 78.92 78.90 77.43 79.86 79.12 78.18 76.75 77.99

State Average Score: 81.64 80.49 80.64 80.32 80.34 79.41 77.32 78.87

National Average Score: 82.24 81.75 82.25 81.51 81.72 79.85 79.92 79.33

School Pass Rate: 80.00 80.85 69.81 88.10 81.40 77.05 67.61 75.95

State Pass Rate: 89.89 86.25 87.84 90.00 92.00 85.98 72.88 84.67

National Pass Rate: 91.37 90.50 91.22 90.54 90.78 84.93 84.52 82.61

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 23 86 38 107 38 102 53 122

School Average Score: 79.04 79.01 77.58 79.92 79.58 78.18 77.04 78.48

State Average Score: 82.14 80.97 80.67 80.51 80.30 79.41 77.69 79.23

National Average Score: 82.55 82.05 82.59 81.86 82.08 80.19 80.34 79.76

School Pass Rate: 78.26 80.23 71.05 86.92 86.84 78.43 71.70 78.69

State Pass Rate: 92.59 87.32 88.06 89.77 91.49 86.32 75.00 86.55

National Pass Rate: 92.57 91.37 92.45 91.75 92.15 86.45 86.58 84.67

2000 2001 2002 2003



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - Jun Jul - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 66 123 82 135 139 181 77 169

School Average Score: 77.36 78.64 78.06 78.96 79.04 79.82 78.47 79.76

State Average Score: 78.58 80.03 80.50 80.03 80.01 81.34 80.15 81.47

National Average Score: 80.10 79.83 80.39 80.04 80.68 80.42 81.26 81.14

School Pass Rate: 78.79 80.49 76.83 82.22 87.77 86.19 77.92 87.57

State Pass Rate: 86.90 92.55 90.55 87.03 91.09 92.39 87.18 90.39

National Pass Rate: 85.63 84.75 86.57 85.69 87.25 87.82 89.38 89.78

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 56 101 63 121 121 156 62 154

School Average Score: 77.73 79.19 78.57 79.36 79.14 80.27 79.47 80.03

State Average Score: 79.04 80.11 80.71 80.29 80.24 81.52 80.59 81.84

National Average Score: 80.58 80.25 80.80 80.44 81.09 80.80 81.72 81.51

School Pass Rate: 80.36 84.16 79.37 85.12 87.60 89.10 85.48 88.96

State Pass Rate: 90.14 92.53 91.38 88.69 92.31 93.53 91.18 92.49

National Pass Rate: 88.16 86.87 88.51 87.51 89.41 89.34 91.43 91.24

2004 2005 2006 2007



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Jun Jul - Dec Jan - AprMay - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - AprMay - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - AprMay - Aug Sep - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 55 208 63 162 68 42 160 83 10 77 44

Mean Scaled Score - School 78.25 79.49 78.03 80.20 78.10 78.93 79.89 78.17 76.50 79.32 78.93

Mean Scaled Score - State 81.33 81.34 79.57 81.69 80.35 81.37 80.88 81.64 81.01 80.41

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.59 81.27 80.29 82.39 80.25 80.45 82.51 80.57 80.27 82.23 80.46

School Pass Rate: 80 83.17 74.60 88.27 77.94 80.95 88.75 78.31 70.00 81.82 81.82

State Pass Rate: 91.75 91.05 81.03 94.52 85.92 90.00 92.64 95.79 89.91 90.99

National Pass Rate: 90.31 89.92 86.23 93.74 87.04 89.08 94.83 89.35 86.43 92.17 86.24

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 45 181 44 150 47 32 157 61 7 67 29

Mean Scaled Score - School 79.02 79.71 78.55 80.35 78.79 79.66 79.95 78.48 78.14 79.84 80.14

Mean Scaled Score - State 81.53 81.62 79.69 81.76 80.98 82.07 80.93 82.07 81.52 81.14

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.97 81.57 80.75 82.58 80.63 80.82 82.67 80.94 81.17 82.86 81.76

School Pass Rate: 88.89 85.64 79.55 88.67 82.98 84.38 89.17 78.69 85.71 86.57 89.66

State Pass Rate: 92.31 91.95 80.77 94.34 89.66 93.44 92.92 97.56 94.06 94.32

National Pass Rate: 91.82 91.16 88.45 94.30 88.68 90.64 95.50 90.89 92.24 96.05 94.00

2008 2009 2010 2011



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep -Doc

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 13 181 87 53 188 115 52 193 128 81 215 103
* testing in same/different state 94 / 87 23 / 65 6 / 47 95 / 93 46 / 69 12 / 40 82 / 111 43 / 85 26 / 55 105 / 110 33 / 70
Mean Scaled Score - School * 79.69 79.27/78.48 76.96/79.95 78.17/79.09 79.46/79.55 77.33/78.72 76 / 79.28 78.35/79.98 77.05/80.62 75.27/79.70 79.39/80.75 78.36/80.64
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 81.18 80.91 79.62 81.33 80.82 80.43 80.36 80.18 80.13 79.81 80.56 80.05

Mean Scaled Score - National 80.41 82.43 80.55 80.92 82.50 80.52 81.04 82.52 81.08 81.32 82.40 80.91

School Pass Rate: * 84.62 84.04/81.61 60.87/86.15 83.33/76.60 85.26/81.72 71.74/76.81 50 / 82.50 76.83/90.09 65.12/90.59 50.00/72.73 81.90/89.09 78.79/85.71
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 90.41 90.69 81.61 93.98 90.51 85.21 82.52 86.08 82.69 80.69 88.14 86.55

National Pass Rate: 84.54 92.76 86.85 87.18 92.98 87.01 87.62 93.28 88.50 88.20 93.04 87.78

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 9 163 70 43 171 86 43 176 98 65 193 73
* testing in same/different state 87 / 76 11 / 54 3 / 40 89 / 82 31 / 55 8 / 35 76 / 100 24 / 74 14 / 51 94 / 99 14 / 59
Mean Scaled Score - School * 79.78 79.34/78.70 77.55/80.57 81.33/79.38 79.66/79.94 77.03/78.85 76.63/79.31 78.83/80.23 77.33/80.86 76.29/80.28 79.24/81.07 79.00/81.47
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 81.75 81.03 80.21 81.90 81.03 81.08 81.05 80.62 81.13 80.63 80.62 80.81

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.44 82.75 81.26 81.78 82.76 81.22 81.82 82.80 81.79 82.14 82.66 81.60

School Pass Rate: * 88.89 83.91/84.24 63.64/87.04 100 / 77.50 87.64/82.93 67.74/74.55 50 / 80 80.26/90.00 62.5 / 91.89 57.14/78.43 80.85/91.92 92.86/91.53
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 93.22 91.03 85.71 97.22 91.88 87.29 85.88 89.29 84.96 83.61 88.77 91.06

National Pass Rate: 89.13 93.94 89.60 91.08 93.95 90.04 90.85 94.34 90.87 91.72 93.97 90.35

2012 2013 2014 2015



Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sep -Doc

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 111 182
* testing in same/different state 13 / 98 92 / 90
Mean Scaled Score - School * 75.15/79.34 75.93/77.13
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 80.92 77.12

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.10 78.08

School Pass Rate: * 53.85/82.65 64.13/74.44
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 90.23 77.93

National Pass Rate: 87.62 82.66

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 94 163
* testing in same/different state 10 / 84 83 / 80
Mean Scaled Score - School * 74.90/79.99 76.04/77.46
* testing in same/different state
Mean Scaled Score - State 81.58 77.10

Mean Scaled Score - National 81.84 78.24

School Pass Rate: * 50.00/88.10 65.06/76.25
* testing in same/different state
State Pass Rate: 92.79 77.21

National Pass Rate: 90.71 83.77

2016 2017 2018 2019
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Candidates who did not answer enough questions to receive a score are reflected in pass

rate data as a fail but are not included in mean scaled score data.

Interpretation and Uses of Candidate Scores

At the candidate level, two sets of scores are produced: an overall, composite score and area scores. Only overall scores 

are used to make pass/fail decisions. Area scores are intended to provide insight into performances in each of the 

content area domains independent of one another.

There are a total of two area scores, one per main competency area. Area scores are reported on a scale of [6,18], where 

a score of 6 is the lowest possible score and a score of 18 is the highest possible score. This reporting scale does not have 

a number-correct interpretation. In other words, a score of 6 does not mean that the candidate answered 6 questions 

correctly. Instead, area scores are computed from ability estimates that are created for sets of items that map to each of 

the two content areas.

All Candidates 7 142

Scaled Score Range 0 150

1.22 12.46 1.50

Table 3 contains information on the range of scaled 

scores achieved by FT ACPE (First-Time, ACPE-

Accredited) candidates as well as the pool of all 

candidates. It also shows the boundaries of the Scaled 

Score Range.

Table 3 Total Scaled Score Min/Max

Min Max

FT ACPE 13 142

National 13573 85.71% 94.81 18.30 12.44

State 201 77.61% 89.27 18.53 12.08 1.19 12.15 1.55

School 94 76.60% 87.35 17.56 11.91 1.16 12.18 1.38

Table 2 All Candidates

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

Area 1 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

Area 2 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

National 12861 87.78% 95.90 17.49 12.51

1.39

State 187 78.07% 89.71 18.48 12.11 1.18 12.19 1.56

1.17 12.53 1.45

Table 1 First-Time Candidates, ACPE-Accredited Programs Only

Area 2 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

School 91 76.92% 87.62 17.58 11.93 1.15 12.20

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

Area 1 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

This NAPLEX score report consists of two levels of scores: aggregated school scores and individual candidate scores. 

Beginning November 1, 2015, individual (unidentified) scores are reported in the NAPLEX Roster excel file. Summary 

information is provided separately for first-time examinees from ACPE-accredited schools/colleges and for all examinees, 

regardless of repeater status and/or the educational institution.

Tables 1 and 2 contain school, state, and national pass rate information as well as total score means and area score 

means for each of the two main NAPLEX content domains:

              Area 1 - Ensure Safe and Effective Pharmacotherapy and Health Outcomes (67%)

              Area 2 - Safe and Accurate Preparation, Compounding, Dispensing and Administration of Medications

                              and Provision of Healthcare Products (33%)
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[0,4] 0

[5,9] 0

[10,14] 0

[15,19] 0

[20,24] 0

[25,29] 0

[30,34] 0

[35,39] 0

[40,44] 0

[45,49] 0

[50,54] 2

[55,59] 2

[60,64] 3

[65,69] 8

[70,74] 6

[75,79] 14

[80,84] 8

[85,89] 9

[90,94] 8

[95,99] 6

[100,104]5

[105,109]10

[110,114]3

[115,119]4

[120,124]2

[125,129]1

[130,134]0

[135,139]0

[140,144]0

[145,150]0[145,150] 0 100%

[135,139] 0 100%

[140,144] 0 100%

[125,129] 1 100%

[130,134] 0 100%

[115,119] 4 97%

[120,124] 2 99%

[105,109] 10 89%

[110,114] 3 92%

[95,99] 6 73%

[100,104] 5 78%

[85,89] 9 57%

[90,94] 8 66%

[75,79] 14 38%

[80,84] 8 47%

[65,69] 8 16%

[70,74] 6 23%

[55,59] 2 4%

[60,64] 3 8%

[45,49] 0 0%

[50,54] 2 2%

[35,39] 0 0%

[40,44] 0 0%

[25,29] 0 0%

[30,34] 0 0%

[15,19] 0 0%

[20,24] 0 0%

[5,9] 0 0%

[10,14] 0 0%

Scaled Score Range Frequency

Cumulative Percent of 

the Upper Limit of the 

Interval
[0,4] 0 0%

The following tables and graphs are scaled score frequency distributions for NAPLEX candidates. Candidates who did not 

answer enough questions to receive a score are not reflected in the frequency distributions.

Table 4 & Graph 1 School Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

Based on First-Time Candidates N = 91
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[0,4] 0

[5,9] 0

[10,14] 1

[15,19] 0

[20,24] 2

[25,29] 2

[30,34] 6

[35,39] 12

[40,44] 26

[45,49] 44

[50,54]111

[55,59]150

[60,64]242

[65,69]380

[70,74]532

[75,79]741

[80,84]955

[85,89]###

[90,94]###

[95,99]###

[100,104]###

[105,109]###

[110,114]###

[115,119]789

[120,124]597

[125,129]330

[130,134]109

[135,139]21

[140,144]1

[145,150]0[145,150] 0 100%

[135,139] 21 100%

[140,144] 1 100%

[125,129] 330 99%

[130,134] 109 100%

[115,119] 789 92%

[120,124] 597 96%

[105,109] 1270 77%

[110,114] 1150 86%

[95,99] 1418 56%

[100,104] 1406 67%

[85,89] 1156 34%

[90,94] 1347 45%

[75,79] 741 18%

[80,84] 955 25%

[65,69] 380 8%

[70,74] 532 12%

[55,59] 150 3%

[60,64] 242 5%

[45,49] 44 1%

[50,54] 111 2%

[35,39] 12 0%

[40,44] 26 0%

[25,29] 2 0%

[30,34] 6 0%

[15,19] 0 0%

[20,24] 2 0%

[5,9] 0 0%

[10,14] 1 0%

Scaled Score Range Frequency

Cumulative Percent of 

the Upper Limit of the 

Interval
[0,4] 0 0%

Table 5 & Graph 2 National Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

Based on First-Time Candidates from ACPE-Accredited Programs N = 12798
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North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 76 47 18 40 30 10 13 62 27 10 70 24
 

School Average Score: 96.51 91.62 88.61 88.93 87.30 87.00 82.85 100.24 89.56 78.40 101.44 92.50
 

State Average Score: 96.75 88.52 86.05 84.66 93.82 82.05 75.50 101.46 87.48 77.50 99.40 87.33

National Average Score: 91.78 99.86 91.21 90.25 101.70 90.50 90.81 101.21 90.02 91.50 101.40 89.40

School Pass Rate: 96.05 82.98 88.89 85.00 90.00 90.00 84.62 85.48 77.78 60.00 95.71 87.50

State Pass Rate: 92.50 78.57 77.27 75.86 89.29 70.00 50.00 85.90 70.37 62.50 94.90 80.00

National Pass Rate: 82.95 92.05 83.04 81.07 94.38 83.69 81.52 93.76 81.73 82.77 93.84 79.55

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 71 33 9 37 20 6 13 61 20 2 64 16

School Average Score: 97.13 96.00 94.00 88.32 86.90 90.67 82.85 100.44 92.80 73.50 102.69 98.56

State Average Score: 97.49 93.61 87.77 88.78 95.92 85.93 81.89 103.71 91.15 74.00 100.41 92.38

National Average Score: 96.51 101.85 96.48 94.54 103.35 94.22 95.13 103.00 94.62 97.39 103.38 95.88

School Pass Rate: 95.77 96.97 100.00 83.78 85.00 100.00 84.62 85.25 75.00 50.00 96.88 100.00

State Pass Rate: 94.59 93.18 84.62 83.33 91.84 73.33 77.78 90.28 70.00 66.67 95.65 90.48

National Pass Rate: 91.44 95.44 91.39 87.91 96.75 90.10 89.27 96.74 88.52 91.47 96.54 89.64

2000 2001 2002 2003



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 3 64 18 9 72 17 2 60 10 3 90 23

School Average Score: 85.67 105.30 94.83 82.67 104.17 101.65 98.00 113.17 95.80 107.67 117.27 101.57

State Average Score: 81.33 103.47 96.71 95.00 101.77 92.50 86.67 111.87 96.07 88.00 117.29 94.73

National Average Score: 92.13 102.16 91.70 91.32 104.85 87.72 86.89 107.02 93.18 89.95 113.33 94.18

School Pass Rate: 100.00 96.88 94.44 88.89 90.28 94.12 100.00 93.33 80.00 100.00 95.56 78.26

State Pass Rate: 83.33 96.12 100.00 100.00 87.83 78.57 77.78 89.17 79.31 63.64 95.52 74.51

National Pass Rate: 83.22 95.11 84.79 82.88 89.15 71.73 68.82 90.52 77.07 71.38 94.47 78.76

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 2 58 17 5 70 11 2 58 4 3 89 19

School Average Score: 87.00 107.34 93.47 81.40 105.09 110.09 98.00 114.59 125.00 107.67 117.66 103.05

State Average Score: 84.00 105.61 99.73 101.50 103.64 98.94 93.33 112.95 95.41 103.40 118.18 95.00

National Average Score: 100.14 104.14 96.60 98.84 107.67 95.89 97.18 110.34 99.96 102.16 116.00 102.19

School Pass Rate: 100.00 100.00 94.12 80.00 91.43 100.00 100.00 94.83 100.00 100.00 95.51 78.95

State Pass Rate: 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 90.09 88.89 100.00 90.38 70.59 100.00 96.69 76.74

National Pass Rate: 95.07 97.38 92.22 91.31 92.86 82.12 81.12 94.49 84.74 84.09 97.23 88.12

2006 20072004 2005



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 11 98 12 6 91 8 3 67 6 2 91 9

Mean Scaled Score - School 94.73 106.39 93.83 97.83 113.84 77.25 98.00 99.97 93.17 67.50 97.40 87.22

Mean Scaled Score - State 93.70 103.31 95.41 94.80 108.26 84.32 83.15 94.22 80.13 99.66 85.27

Mean Scaled Score - National 96.76 112.08 96.61 93.72 112.51 93.62 84.75 101.11 84.90 83.97 103.27 88.08

School Pass Rate: 90.91 92.86 83.33 83.33 95.60 50.00 100.00 95.52 100.00 0.00 89.01 77.78

State Pass Rate: 90.00 90.34 82.76 80.00 92.64 63.16 61.54 83.24 65.00 90.81 73.17

National Pass Rate: 83.11 95.48 81.96 76.40 95.03 78.20 65.07 92.39 72.20 67.85 94.16 76.57

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 3 97 5 3 88 3 0 67 2 1 87 3

Mean Scaled Score - School 110.33 106.76 95.80 93.00 115.34 78.33 0.00 99.97 97.00 62.00 99.39 84.67

Mean Scaled Score - State 96.00 104.42 95.82 86.00 108.80 84.10 92.00 94.46 90.75 100.88 83.70

Mean Scaled Score - National 106.63 114.11 103.62 106.27 114.65 102.87 100.12 103.06 94.26 96.99 105.03 96.71

School Pass Rate: 100.00 93.81 80.00 66.67 96.59 33.33 0.00 95.52 100.00 0.00 93.10 66.67

State Pass Rate: 83.33 92.35 82.35 57.14 93.04 60.00 66.67 84.15 83.33 93.18 74.07

National Pass Rate: 92.24 97.44 90.66 90.76 97.50 89.51 88.38 95.31 86.71 87.50 96.57 89.24

2008 2009 2010 2011



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

 Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

S+O/N+D
TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 6 80 17 3 40 7 1 68 11 4 79 9 / 3

Mean Scaled Score - School 75.33 97.14 85.41 92.00 100.45 88.43 101.00 95.10 82.27 82.00 94.93 83.89/89.67

Mean Scaled Score - State 81.25 98.42 86.95 77.25 98.66 86.88 73.85 96.45 80.88 82.15 95.51 85.60/73.62

Mean Scaled Score - National 83.15 102.81 88.15 80.17 102.78 87.03 80.22 101.71 89.22 83.84 100.46 88.25/73.84

School Pass Rate: 83.33 92.50 82.35 100.00 90.00 100.00 100.00 89.71 63.64 50.00 89.87 77.78/100

State Pass Rate: 68.75 93.82 76.19 55.56 92.95 81.82 53.85 90.75 70.59 69.23 88.24 76.00/46.15

National Pass Rate: 68.33 95.21 77.86 61.07 94.65 75.91 63.24 93.86 79.77 67.06 92.29 77.64/46.27

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 2 80 9 3 38 4 1 68 3 1 78 5 / 0

Mean Scaled Score - School 49.50 97.14 87.11 92.00 101.68 92.00 101.00 95.10 92.00 74.00 94.62 83.60 / 0

Mean Scaled Score - State 84.00 99.47 91.00 80.75 99.30 88.33 85.00 96.96 83.34 77.00 96.08 86.50 / 0

Mean Scaled Score - National 94.87 104.13 95.75 92.48 104.02 92.69 90.89 102.80 93.94 94.01 101.53 91.24 / 0

School Pass Rate: 50.00 92.50 77.78 100.00 92.11 100.00 100.00 89.71 66.67 0.00 89.74 80.00 / 0

State Pass Rate: 75.00 95.35 72.73 75.00 94.08 83.33 100.00 92.12 73.68 33.33 89.34 75.00 / 0

National Pass Rate: 87.69 97.19 90.14 85.14 96.57 84.46 83.15 95.61 85.36 84.96 93.86 81.88 / 0

2012 2013 2014 2015



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

University of Louisiana at Monroe

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 4 94

Mean Scaled Score - School 60.25 87.35

Mean Scaled Score - State 66.88 89.27

Mean Scaled Score - National 74.52 84.81

School Pass Rate: 0.00 76.6

State Pass Rate: 22.22 77.61

National Pass Rate: 48.80 85.71

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 1 91

Mean Scaled Score - School 31.00 87.62

Mean Scaled Score - State 47.33 89.71

Mean Scaled Score - National 78.95 95.9

School Pass Rate: 0.00 76.92

State Pass Rate: 0.00 78.07

National Pass Rate: 57.75 87.78

2016 2017 2018 2019
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Candidates who did not answer enough questions to receive a score are reflected in pass

rate data as a fail but are not included in mean scaled score data.

Interpretation and Uses of Candidate Scores

At the candidate level, two sets of scores are produced: an overall, composite score and area scores. Only overall scores 

are used to make pass/fail decisions. Area scores are intended to provide insight into performances in each of the 

content area domains independent of one another.

There are a total of two area scores, one per main competency area. Area scores are reported on a scale of [6,18], where 

a score of 6 is the lowest possible score and a score of 18 is the highest possible score. This reporting scale does not have 

a number-correct interpretation. In other words, a score of 6 does not mean that the candidate answered 6 questions 

correctly. Instead, area scores are computed from ability estimates that are created for sets of items that map to each of 

the two content areas.

All Candidates 7 142

Scaled Score Range 0 150

1.22 12.46 1.50

Table 3 contains information on the range of scaled 

scores achieved by FT ACPE (First-Time, ACPE-

Accredited) candidates as well as the pool of all 

candidates. It also shows the boundaries of the Scaled 

Score Range.

Table 3 Total Scaled Score Min/Max

Min Max

FT ACPE 13 142

National 13573 85.71% 94.81 18.30 12.44

State 201 77.61% 89.27 18.53 12.08 1.19 12.15 1.55

School 123 78.05% 89.84 18.97 12.12 1.17 12.16 1.62

Table 2 All Candidates

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

Area 1 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

Area 2 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

National 12861 87.78% 95.90 17.49 12.51

1.60

State 187 78.07% 89.71 18.48 12.11 1.18 12.19 1.56

1.17 12.53 1.45

Table 1 First-Time Candidates, ACPE-Accredited Programs Only

Area 2 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

School 114 80.70% 91.10 18.98 12.19 1.18 12.27

Candidates Pass Rate %
Total Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

Area 1 Scaled 

Score Mean

Standard 

Deviation

This NAPLEX score report consists of two levels of scores: aggregated school scores and individual candidate scores. 

Beginning November 1, 2015, individual (unidentified) scores are reported in the NAPLEX Roster excel file. Summary 

information is provided separately for first-time examinees from ACPE-accredited schools/colleges and for all examinees, 

regardless of repeater status and/or the educational institution.

Tables 1 and 2 contain school, state, and national pass rate information as well as total score means and area score 

means for each of the two main NAPLEX content domains:

              Area 1 - Ensure Safe and Effective Pharmacotherapy and Health Outcomes (67%)

              Area 2 - Safe and Accurate Preparation, Compounding, Dispensing and Administration of Medications

                              and Provision of Healthcare Products (33%)
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[0,4] 0

[5,9] 0

[10,14] 0

[15,19] 0

[20,24] 0

[25,29] 0

[30,34] 0

[35,39] 1

[40,44] 1

[45,49] 1

[50,54] 2

[55,59] 2

[60,64] 3

[65,69] 4

[70,74] 7

[75,79] 8

[80,84] 9

[85,89] 12

[90,94] 9

[95,99] 15

[100,104]11

[105,109]13

[110,114]5

[115,119]2

[120,124]4

[125,129]4

[130,134]0

[135,139]0

[140,144]0

[145,150]0[145,150] 0 100%

[135,139] 0 100%

[140,144] 0 100%

[125,129] 4 100%

[130,134] 0 100%

[115,119] 2 93%

[120,124] 4 96%

[105,109] 13 87%

[110,114] 5 91%

[95,99] 15 65%

[100,104] 11 75%

[85,89] 12 44%

[90,94] 9 52%

[75,79] 8 26%

[80,84] 9 34%

[65,69] 4 12%

[70,74] 7 19%

[55,59] 2 6%

[60,64] 3 9%

[45,49] 1 3%

[50,54] 2 4%

[35,39] 1 1%

[40,44] 1 2%

[25,29] 0 0%

[30,34] 0 0%

[15,19] 0 0%

[20,24] 0 0%

[5,9] 0 0%

[10,14] 0 0%

Scaled Score Range Frequency

Cumulative Percent of 

the Upper Limit of the 

Interval
[0,4] 0 0%

The following tables and graphs are scaled score frequency distributions for NAPLEX candidates. Candidates who did not 

answer enough questions to receive a score are not reflected in the frequency distributions.

Table 4 & Graph 1 School Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

Based on First-Time Candidates N = 113
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[0,4] 0

[5,9] 0

[10,14] 1

[15,19] 0

[20,24] 2

[25,29] 2

[30,34] 6

[35,39] 12

[40,44] 26

[45,49] 44

[50,54]111

[55,59]150

[60,64]242

[65,69]380

[70,74]532

[75,79]741

[80,84]955

[85,89]###

[90,94]###

[95,99]###

[100,104]###

[105,109]###

[110,114]###

[115,119]789

[120,124]597

[125,129]330

[130,134]109

[135,139]21

[140,144]1

[145,150]0[145,150] 0 100%

[135,139] 21 100%

[140,144] 1 100%

[125,129] 330 99%

[130,134] 109 100%

[115,119] 789 92%

[120,124] 597 96%

[105,109] 1270 77%

[110,114] 1150 86%

[95,99] 1418 56%

[100,104] 1406 67%

[85,89] 1156 34%

[90,94] 1347 45%

[75,79] 741 18%

[80,84] 955 25%

[65,69] 380 8%

[70,74] 532 12%

[55,59] 150 3%

[60,64] 242 5%

[45,49] 44 1%

[50,54] 111 2%

[35,39] 12 0%

[40,44] 26 0%

[25,29] 2 0%

[30,34] 6 0%

[15,19] 0 0%

[20,24] 2 0%

[5,9] 0 0%

[10,14] 1 0%

Scaled Score Range Frequency

Cumulative Percent of 

the Upper Limit of the 

Interval
[0,4] 0 0%

Table 5 & Graph 2 National Frequency Distribution of Scaled Scores

Based on First-Time Candidates from ACPE-Accredited Programs N = 12798
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North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP
 

No. of Candidates 10 80 43 28 85 40 22 69 48 19 90 40

School Average Score: 77.60 87.99 81.67 76.50 93.14 85.15 76.00 93.23 86.98 79.42 94.46 84.33

State Average Score: 96.75 88.52 86.05 84.66 93.82 82.05 75.50 101.46 87.48 77.50 99.40 87.33

National Average Score: 91.78 99.86 91.21 90.25 101.70 83.69 90.81 101.21 90.02 91.50 101.40 89.40

School Pass Rate: 60.00 77.50 62.79 57.14 85.88 82.50 54.55 79.71 85.42 68.42 90.00 75.00

State Pass Rate: 92.50 78.57 77.27 75.86 89.29 70.00 50.00 85.90 70.37 62.50 94.90 80.00

National Pass Rate: 82.95 92.05 83.04 81.07 94.38 83.69 81.52 93.76 81.73 82.77 93.84 79.55

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 1 77 23 10 74 29 8 63 40 8 83 26

School Average Score: 95.00 88.19 82.13 74.80 95.92 86.48 80.63 95.00 88.60 87.75 95.34 88.04

State Average Score: 97.49 93.61 87.77 88.78 95.92 85.93 81.89 103.71 91.15 74.00 100.41 92.38

National Average Score: 96.51 101.85 96.48 94.54 103.35 94.22 95.13 103.00 94.62 97.39 103.38 95.88

School Pass Rate: 100.00 77.92 65.22 50.00 90.54 82.76 75.00 84.13 90.00 87.50 90.36 80.77

State Pass Rate: 94.59 93.18 84.62 83.33 91.84 73.33 77.78 90.28 70.00 66.67 95.65 90.48

National Pass Rate: 91.44 95.44 91.39 87.91 96.75 90.10 89.27 96.74 88.52 91.47 96.54 89.64

2000 2001 2002 2003



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 10 82 19 6 95 30 20 94 48 17 81 56

School Average Score: 76.40 98.99 91.68 83.00 98.92 73.07 72.15 106.20 92.81 74.18 109.07 86.77

State Average Score: 81.33 103.47 96.71 95.00 101.77 92.50 86.67 111.87 96.07 88.00 117.29 94.73

National Average Score: 92.13 102.16 91.70 91.32 104.85 87.72 86.89 107.02 93.18 89.95 113.33 94.18

School Pass Rate: 70.00 96.34 84.21 83.33 86.32 56.67 50.00 82.98 77.08 52.94 83.95 64.29

State Pass Rate: 83.33 96.12 100.00 100.00 87.83 78.57 77.78 89.17 79.31 63.64 95.52 74.51

National Pass Rate: 83.22 95.11 84.79 82.88 89.15 71.73 68.82 90.52 77.07 71.38 94.47 78.76

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 2 79 10 3 90 19 5 87 31 3 68 46

School Average Score: 72.50 100.06 98.80 85.00 101.34 79.79 69.40 109.32 93.10 94.67 114.60 90.50

State Average Score: 84.00 105.61 99.73 101.50 103.64 98.94 93.33 112.95 95.41 103.40 118.18 95.00

National Average Score: 100.14 104.14 96.60 98.84 107.67 95.89 97.18 110.34 99.96 102.16 116.00 102.19

School Pass Rate: 50.00 98.73 100.00 66.67 88.89 68.42 40.00 86.21 77.42 100.00 92.65 71.74

State Pass Rate: 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 90.09 88.89 100.00 90.38 70.59 100.00 96.69 76.74
 

National Pass Rate: 95.07 97.38 92.22 91.31 92.86 82.12 81.12 94.49 84.74 84.09 97.23 88.12

2004 2005 2006 2007



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP
 

No. of Candidates 22 138 55 18 138 28 19 148 52 25 124 45

Mean Scaled Score - School 81.36 96.77 89.82 80.33 97.59 86.96 73.63 89.73 77.15 76.00 99.13 85.04

Mean Scaled Score - State 93.70 103.31 95.41 94.80 108.26 84.32 83.15 94.22 80.13 99.66 85.27

Mean Scaled Score - National 96.76 112.08 96.61 93.72 112.51 93.62 84.75 101.11 84.90 83.97 103.27 88.08

School Pass Rate: 68.18 81.88 76.36 61.11 83.33 71.43 42.11 75.00 59.62 64.00 87.10 75.56

State Pass Rate: 90.00 90.34 82.76 80.00 92.64 63.16 61.54 83.24 65.00 90.81 73.17

National Pass Rate: 83.11 95.48 81.96 76.40 95.03 78.20 65.07 92.39 72.20 67.85 94.16 76.57

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 5 124 36 6 127 12 6 143 16 6 115 33

Mean Scaled Score - School 85.40 98.77 92.47 81.00 99.77 83.33 79.83 90.78 84.00 61.00 101.95 85.45

Mean Scaled Score - State 96.00 104.42 95.82 86.00 108.80 84.10 92.00 94.46 90.75 100.88 83.70

Mean Scaled Score - National 106.63 114.11 103.62 106.27 114.65 102.87 100.12 103.06 94.26 96.99 105.03 96.71

School Pass Rate: 80.00 84.68 80.56 50.00 86.61 66.67 50.00 76.92 75.00 16.67 92.17 81.82

State Pass Rate: 83.33 92.35 82.35 57.14 93.04 60.00 66.67 84.15 83.33 93.18 74.07

National Pass Rate: 92.24 97.44 90.66 90.76 97.50 89.51 88.38 95.31 86.71 87.50 96.57 89.24

2008 2009 2010 2011



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec

S+O/N+D
TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

 
No. of Candidates 13 120 21 10 136 43 18 138 27 15 141 22 / 9

Mean Scaled Score - School 76.69 95.13 83.24 68.67 95.13 81.47 70.72 96.29 80.41 72.13 96.03 86.73/59.78

Mean Scaled Score - State 81.25 98.42 86.95 77.25 98.66 86.88 73.85 96.45 80.88 82.15 95.51 85.60/73.62

Mean Scaled Score - National 83.15 102.81 88.15 80.17 102.78 87.03 80.22 101.71 89.22 83.84 100.46 88.25/73.84

School Pass Rate: 46.15 90.00 61.90 40.00 86.03 65.12 50.00 92.75 70.37 53.33 85.11 86.36/22.22

State Pass Rate: 68.75 93.82 76.19 55.56 92.95 81.82 53.85 90.75 70.59 69.23 88.24 76.00/46.15

National Pass Rate: 68.33 95.21 77.86 61.07 94.65 75.91 63.24 93.86 79.77 67.06 92.29 77.64/46.27

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 3 111 12 1 131 29 3 131 18 4 137 10 / 1

Mean Scaled Score - School 84.67 97.71 95.58 47.00 96.65 82.76 61.00 97.15 82.33 84.75 97.31 89.60/27.00

Mean Scaled Score - State 84.00 99.47 91.00 80.75 99.30 88.33 85.00 96.96 83.84 77.00 96.08 86.50/73.67

Mean Scaled Score - National 94.87 104.13 95.75 92.48 104.02 92.69 90.89 102.80 93.94 94.01 101.53 91.24/81.00

School Pass Rate: 66.67 93.69 91.67 0.00 89.31 68.97 66.67 93.89 72.22 75.00 87.59 80.00 / 0

State Pass Rate: 75.00 95.35 72.73 75.00 94.08 83.33 100.00 92.12 73.68 33.33 89.34 75.00/33.33

National Pass Rate: 87.69 97.19 90.14 85.14 96.57 84.46 83.15 95.61 85.36 84.96 93.86 81.88/58.74

2012 2013 2014 2015



North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

Xavier College of Pharmacy

Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec Jan - Apr May - Aug Sept - Dec
 

TOTAL CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 16 123

Mean Scaled Score - School 61.87 89.84

Mean Scaled Score - State 66.88 89.27

Mean Scaled Score - National 74.52 94.81

School Pass Rate: 25.00 78.05

State Pass Rate: 22.22 77.61

National Pass Rate: 48.80 85.71

FIRST-TIME CANDIDATE GROUP

No. of Candidates 4 114

Mean Scaled Score - School 63.67 91.1

Mean Scaled Score - State 47.33 89.71

Mean Scaled Score - National 78.95 95.9

School Pass Rate: 25.00 80.7

State Pass Rate: 0.00 78.07

National Pass Rate: 57.75 87.78

2016 2017 2018 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana  
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
Louisiana Board of Pharmacy (Board), a component unit of the state of Louisiana, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
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statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the business-type activities of the Board as of June 30, 2016, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Schedule of the Board’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Board 
Contributions, and the Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits 
Plan on pages 24 through 25, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing 
information. 
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Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements.  The Schedule of Per Diem Paid to 
Board Members is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 
 
The Schedule of Per Diem Paid to Board Members is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the Schedule of Per Diem Paid to 
Board Members is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 20, 2016, on our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Daryl G. Purpera, CPA, CFE 
Legislative Auditor 

 
KDD:CR:BH:EFS:aa 
 
LBP 2016





5

Statement A

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash (note 2) $1,225,894
Accounts receivable 330
Prepaid expenses 29,900

     Total current assets 1,256,124

Noncurrent assets:
Investments (note 3) 3,351,888
Capital assets, net (note 4) 2,024,098

     Total noncurrent assets 5,375,986

          Total assets 6,632,110

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions (note 8) 598,982
          Total deferred outflows of resources 598,982

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 5,097
Salaries and benefits payable 27,169
Payroll taxes payable 4,889
Compensated absences - current portion (note 6) 43,997

     Total current liabilities 81,152

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences (note 6) 76,420
OPEB payable (note 9) 1,172,029
Pension liability (note 8) 4,545,653

     Total noncurrent liabilities 5,794,102

          Total liabilities 5,875,254

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement A

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions (note 8) $61,980
          Total deferred inflows of resources 61,980

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $2,024,098
Unrestricted (730,240)

          TOTAL NET POSITION $1,293,858

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement B

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
  Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
  Licenses, permits, and fees $3,473,372
     Total operating revenues 3,473,372

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personnel services and related benefits 1,914,888
  Operating services 244,500
  Materials and supplies 75,474
  Professional fees 151,040
  Travel 120,791
  Depreciation 64,639
     Total operating expenses 2,571,332

          OPERATING INCOME 902,040

NONOPERATING REVENUES (Expenses)
  Net investment income 39,318
  Interest expense (11,296)
     Total nonoperating revenues 28,022

     CHANGE IN NET POSITION 930,062

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 363,796

TOTAL NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $1,293,858

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement C

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Cash received from licenses $3,473,042
  Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (613,751)
  Cash payments to employees for services (1,963,580)
     Net cash provided by operating activities 895,711

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Principal paid on note (474,134)
  Interest paid on note (13,764)
  Purchase of capital assets (9,417)
     Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (497,315)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchase of securities (386,038)
  Interest income 39,318
     Net cash used by investing activities (346,720)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 51,676

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,174,218

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $1,225,894

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement C

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
STATE OF LOUISIANA
Statement of Cash Flows, June 30, 2016

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $902,040
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 64,639
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable (330)
Increase in prepaid expenses (26,900)
Decrease in deferred outflows related to pensions 45,914
Increase in accounts payable 2,872
Decrease in salaries and benefits payable (55,203)
Increase in payroll tax liability 1,467
Increase in compensated absences 2,082
Increase in net pension liability 428,562
Increase in OPEB payable 76,029
Decrease in deferred inflows related to pensions (545,461)

            Net cash provided by operating activities $895,711

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The Louisiana Board of Pharmacy (Board) is a component unit of the state of Louisiana created 
within the Louisiana Department of Health, as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
37:1171.  The Board is charged with the authority and responsibility of regulating the profession 
and practice of pharmacy in the interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the 
state of Louisiana.  
 
The Board is composed of 17 members, appointed by the governor, including two licensed 
pharmacists from each of the eight pharmacy districts and one representative of the consumers 
from the state at large.  Operations of the Board are funded through self-generated revenues 
primarily derived from fees for the issuance of licenses, permits, and examinations.  The Board 
has 17 employees.  During the year, the Board issued 45,951 permits and 6,694 new credentials. 
 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
A.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and reporting standards for 
state and local governments.  These principles are found in the Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards published by GASB.  The 
accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with such 
principles. 
 
B.  REPORTING ENTITY 
 
GASB Codification Section 2100 has defined the governmental reporting entity to be the 
state of Louisiana.  The Board is considered a component unit of the state of Louisiana 
because the state exercises oversight responsibility in that the governor appoints the 
Board members and public service is rendered within the state’s boundaries.  The 
accompanying financial statements present information only as to the transactions of the 
Board as authorized by Louisiana statutes and administrative regulations.   
 
Annually, the state of Louisiana issues basic financial statements, which include the 
activity contained in the accompanying financial statements.  The financial statements are 
audited by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. 
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C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
For financial reporting purposes, the Board is considered a special-purpose government 
engaged only in business-type activities.  All activities of the Board are accounted for 
within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. 
 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.  The transactions of 
the Board are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus.  With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations are 
included on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they are 
earned and expenses are recognized when the related liability is incurred. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and/or 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing 
operations.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
D. CASH AND INVESTMENTS  
 
Cash consists of demand deposits.  Under state law, the Board may deposit funds within a 
fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the state of Louisiana, the laws of any other 
state in the Union, or the laws of the United States. 
 
In accordance with R.S. 49:327(D), those funds determined by the Board to be in excess 
of immediate needs shall be available for investment.  The Board’s investments, which 
consist solely of U.S. Treasury Securities, are stated at fair value. 
 
E. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets purchased with an original cost of $1,000 or more are recorded at historical 
cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives (excluding salvage value).  
Estimated useful life is management’s estimate of how long the asset is estimated to meet 
service demands.  Straight-line depreciation is used based on the following estimated 
useful lives: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Years
Building 40
Building Improvements 10-20
Equipment 5-10
Software 5
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F. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATED ABSENCES  
 
Employees earn and accumulate vacation and sick leave at varying rates, depending on 
their years of service.  The amount of vacation and sick leave that may be accumulated 
by each employee is unlimited.  Upon termination, employees are compensated for up to 
300 hours of unused vacation leave at the employee’s hourly rate of pay at the time of 
termination.  Upon retirement, unused vacation leave in excess of 300 hours plus unused 
sick leave are used to compute retirement benefits.  The cost of current leave privileges 
are recognized as a current-year expense.  The cost of leave not requiring current 
resources is recorded as a long-term obligation. 
 
G. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES – PENSIONS 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Louisiana State Employees’ Retirement System (system), 
and additions to/deductions from the system’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the system.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
H. NET POSITION 
 
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operations, nonoperating revenues, 
and expenses.  Net position is classified in the following components: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets consists of all capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation. 

 Unrestricted net position consists of all other resources that are not 
included in the other category previously mentioned. 
 

I. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES  
 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Board implemented GASB Statement No. 72, Fair 
Value Measurement and Application.  This statement addresses accounting and financial 
reporting issues related to fair value measurements and provides guidance for 
determining fair value measurements for financial reporting and disclosures. 

 
J. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
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2. CASH  
 
At June 30, 2016, the Board has cash (book balances) of $1,225,894 in demand deposits.  
 
Deposits in bank accounts are stated at cost, which approximates market.  Under state law, these 
deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the 
fiscal agent bank.  The fair market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit 
insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent.  These pledged 
securities are held in the name of the Board or the pledging bank by a holding or custodial bank 
that is mutually acceptable to both parties.  
 
At June 30, 2016, the Board had collected bank balances totaling $1,274,312, which was secured 
from risk by federal deposit insurance plus pledged securities held in the Board’s name. 
 
3. INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments at June 30, 2016 consist of the following: 
 

Descriptions Cost Fair Value Interest Rates

Moody's 
Investors 

Service Credit 
Quality Rating

Maturity
Date

U.S. Treasury Security $3,287,000 $3,351,888 1.00% - 1.63% AAA 6/30/19 - 3/31/21

 
These investments are recorded at fair value as required by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application.  The Board categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair 
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based 
on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable 
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  The fair market values of the Board’s 
investments are obtained from an independent vendor service, which the Board believes to be 
reliable (Level 2 inputs).  
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The Board has adopted the state investment policy at R.S. 49:327.  The Board does 
not have any other policy that would further limit the investment choices.  The investments are 
government backed securities. 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s 
investment in a single issuer.  The Board places no limits on the amount the Board may invest in 
any one issuer. 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  The Board has a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities to five 
years as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS  
 
A summary of changes in capital assets and related depreciation for the fiscal year ended  
June 30, 2016, is as follows: 
 

  Balance           
June 30, 

2015 

 

Additions 

 

Retirement 

 Balance        
June 30, 

2016 
Capital Assets, not being depreciated         

  Land  $1,004,940  NONE  NONE  $1,004,940 
     Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated  1,004,940 

 
NONE  NONE  1,004,940 

 
 

 
     

 Capital Assets, being depreciated  
 

     
   Buildings and building improvements  1,057,861  NONE  NONE  1,057,861 

  Less accumulated depreciation  (110,022)  ($26,782)  NONE  (136,804) 
     Total buildings and buildings improvements  947,839 

 
(26,782)  NONE 

 
921,057 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   Office equipment  370,317  9,417   NONE  379,734 
  Less accumulated depreciation  (268,312)  (27,345)  NONE  (295,657) 
     Total office equipment  102,005  (17,928)  NONE  84,077 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   Software  408,560  NONE  NONE  408,560 
  Less accumulated depreciation  (384,024)  (10,512)  NONE  (394,536) 
     Total software  24,536  (10,512)  NONE  14,024 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

           Total Capital Assets, being depreciated  1,074,380  (55,222)  NONE  1,019,158 

 
     

 
  

Total Capital Assets, net  $2,079,320  ($55,222)  NONE  $2,024,098 
 
5. OPERATING LEASES 
 
The total payments for operating leases for office equipment during the fiscal year amounted to 
$15,218.  The following is a schedule by year of future minimum annual rental payments 
required under the leases: 
 

Fiscal Year Total
2017 $12,341
2018 11,694
2019 7,615
2020 4,226

$35,876
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities of the Board for the year ended 
June 30, 2016: 
 

Balance
June 30, 2015 Additions Reductions

Balance             
June 30, 2016

Amounts Due 
Within One Year

Notes Payable $474,134 NONE ($474,134) $0 $0

Compensated Absences 118,335 $22,458 (20,376) 120,417 43,997

     Total $592,469 $22,458 ($494,510) $120,417 $43,997

Changes in long-term liabilities for Pensions and Other-Post Employment Benefits Plan can be found in notes 8 and 9.

7. NOTES PAYABLE  
 
In January 2011, the Board purchased an office building and acquired a loan in the amount of 
$1,300,000 with an interest rate at 6.25% and a maturity date of January 16, 2016.  Iberia Bank 
held the lien to the building title and the vacant lot valued at $709,080 was pledged as collateral 
against the loan.  The loan was paid in full as of November 23, 2015.  
 
8. PENSIONS  
 
The Board is a participating employer in a statewide, public employee retirement system, the 
Louisiana State Employees’ Retirement System (LASERS).  LASERS has a separate board of 
trustees and administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, 
including classes of employees with different benefits and contribution rates (subplans).  Article 
X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to establish and 
amend benefit provisions of all sub-plans administered by LASERS to the State Legislature.  
LASERS issues a public report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information, and a copy of the report may be obtained at www.lasersonline.org.  
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Descriptions/Benefits Provided.  LASERS administers a plan to provide retirement, 
disability, and survivor benefits to eligible state employees and their beneficiaries as defined in 
R.S. 11:411-414.  The age and years of creditable service (service) required in order for a 
member to receive retirement benefits are established by R.S. 11:441 and vary depending on the 
member’s hire date, employer and job classification.  Act 992 of the 2010 Regular Legislative 
Session closed existing sub-plans for members hired before January 1, 2011, and created new 
subplans for regular members, hazardous duty members, and judges. 
 
The substantial majority of members may retire with full benefits at any age upon completing 30 
years of service and at age 60 upon completing 5-10 years of service.  Additionally, members 
may choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit.  
Eligibility for retirement benefits and the computation of retirement benefits are provided for in 

http://www.lasersonline.org/
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R.S. 11:444.  The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to a percentage (between 
2.5% and 3.5%) of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of service, generally 
not to exceed 100% of average compensation.  Average compensation is defined as the 
member’s average annual earned compensation for the highest 36 consecutive months of 
employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006, or highest 60 consecutive months of 
employment for members employed after that date.  A member leaving service before attaining 
minimum retirement but after completing certain minimum service requirements, generally 10 
years, becomes eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the minimum service 
retirement age and does not withdraw the accumulated contributions.  
 
Eligibility requirements and benefit computations for disability benefits are provided for in  
R.S. 11:461.  All members with 10 or more years of service or members aged 60 or older 
regardless of date of hire who become disabled may receive a maximum disability benefit 
equivalent to the regular retirement formula without reduction by reason of age.  Hazardous duty 
personnel who become disabled in the line of duty will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% 
of final average compensation. 
 
Provisions for survivor benefits are provided for in R.S. 11:471-478.  Under these statutes, the 
deceased member who was in state service at the time of death must have a minimum of five 
years of service, at least two of which were earned immediately prior to death, or who has a 
minimum of 20 years of service regardless of when earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a 
minor or handicapped child.  Benefits are payable to an unmarried child until age 18 or age 23 if 
the child remains a full-time student.  The minimum service requirement is 10 years for a 
surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid for life to the spouse or 
qualified handicapped child. 
 
LASERS has established a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP).  When members enter 
DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they continue to work 
and draw their salary for a period up to three years.  The election is irrevocable once 
participation begins.  During participation, benefits otherwise payable are fixed and deposited in 
an individual DROP account.  Upon leaving DROP, members must choose among available 
alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in their DROP accounts. 
 
Cost of Living Adjustments.  As fully described in Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, 
LASERS allows for the payment of cost of living adjustments, or COLAs, that are funded 
through investment earnings when recommended by the board of trustees and approved by the 
Legislature.  These ad hoc COLAs are not considered to be substantively automatic. 
 
Contributions.  Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the 
Legislature the authority to determine employee contributions.  Employer contributions are 
actuarially determined using statutorily established methods on an annual basis and are 
constitutionally required to cover the employer’s portion of the normal cost and provide for the 
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability.  Employer contributions are adopted by the 
Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems’ Actuarial 
Committee. 
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Employer contributions to LASERS for fiscal year 2016 were $455,545, with active member 
contributions ranging from 7.5% to 8%, and employer contributions of 37.2%.  
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
  Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2016, the Board reported a liability of $4,545,653 for its proportionate share of the 
LASERS Net Pension Liability (NPL).  The NPL for LASERS was measured as of June 30, 
2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date.  The Board’s proportion of the NPL was based on projections of the 
Board’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  As of June 30, 2015, the 
most recent measurement date, the Board’s proportion and the change in proportion from the 
prior measurement date was 0.06683%, or an increase of 0.00099%. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Board recognized a total pension expense of $384,560.  
The Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $6,077 ($37,232)
Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
  on pension plan investments (4,111)
Changes in proportion and differences between Employer  
  contributions and proportionate share of contributions 137,360 (20,637)
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 455,545

     Total $598,982 ($61,980)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Board’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the LASERS NPL in 
the year ended June 30, 2017.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year ended June 30
2017 $31,858
2018 ($14,431)
2019 ($34,070)
2020 $98,100
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Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability for LASERS in the June 30, 2015, actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurements: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Expected Remaining Service Lives 3 years
Investment Rate of Return 7.75% per annum
Inflation Rate 3% per annum
Mortality - Non-disabled RP-2000, improvement to 2015
Mortality - Disabled RP-2000
Termination, Disability, Retirement 2009-2013 experience study

Salary Increases
2009-2013 experience study, 
ranging from 3.0% to 14.5%

Cost of Living Adjustments Not substantively automatic  
 

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification.  The target allocation and best estimates 
of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 
 

Target Allocation
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

LASERS (geometric)
    Cash 0.00% 0.24%
    Domestic equity 27.00% 4.56%
    International equity 30.00% 5.67%
    Domestic fixed income 10.00% 2.24%
    International fixed income 2.00% 3.64%
    Alternative investments 24.00% 7.82%
    Global asset allocation 7.00% 3.70%
        Total 100.00% 5.66%

 
 
Discount Rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions from participating 
employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive plan members.  Therefore, the 
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long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the NPL to changes in the discount rate.  The following 
presents the Board’s proportionate share of the NPL using the current discount rate as well as 
what the Board’s proportionate share of the NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about LASERS fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued financial reports referenced above. 
 
Payables to the Pension Plan.  At June 30, 2016, the Board had $7,037 in payables to LASERS 
for the June 2016 employee and employer legally-required contributions. 
 
9. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN  
 
Plan Description.  The Board’s employees may participate in the state of Louisiana’s Other 
Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB 
Plan that provides medical, prescription drug, and life insurance benefits to eligible active 
employees, retirees, and their beneficiaries.  
 
The state administers the OPEB Plan through the Office of Group Benefits (OGB).  R.S. 42:801-
883 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the OPEB Plan.  OGB 
offers several standard healthcare plans for both active and retired employees.  OGB does not 
issue a publicly-available financial report of the OPEB Plan; however, it is included in the state 
of Louisiana's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The CAFR may be obtained 
from the Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy's website at 
www.doa.la.gov/osrap. 
 
Funding Policy.  The contribution requirements of OPEB Plan members and the Board are 
established and may be amended by R.S. 42:801-883.  The OPEB Plan is currently funded on a 
pay-as-you-go basis through a combination of retiree and Board contributions.  Employees do 
not contribute to their postemployment benefits costs until they become retirees and begin 
receiving those benefits.  The retirees contribute to the cost of retiree healthcare based on a 
service schedule.  Contribution amounts vary depending on what healthcare provider is selected 
from the OPEB Plan and if the member has Medicare coverage.  
 
Employer contributions are based on plan premiums and the employer contribution percentage.  
This percentage is based on the date of participation in an OGB plan (before or after January 1, 
2002) and employee years of service at retirement.  Employees who begin participation or rejoin 
the plan before January 1, 2002, pay approximately 25% of the cost of coverage (except single 

Current
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase

LASERS $5,737,595 $4,545,653 $3,533,403
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retirees under age 65 who pay approximately 25% of the active employee cost).  For those 
beginning participation or rejoining on or after January 1, 2002, the percentage of premiums 
contributed by the employer and employee is based on the following schedule:  
 

Service
Employer 

Percentage
Employee 
Percentage

Under 10 years 19% 81%
10-14 years 38% 62%
15-19 years 56% 44%
20+ years 75% 25%  

 
In addition to healthcare benefits, retirees may elect to receive life insurance benefits.  Basic and 
supplemental life insurance is available for the individual retiree and spouses of retirees subject 
to maximum values.  Employers pay approximately 50% of monthly premiums.  Participating 
retirees paid $0.54 each month for each $1,000 of life insurance and $0.98 each month for each 
$1,000 of spouse life insurance.  
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation.  The Board’s Annual Required Contribution 
(ARC) represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the 
normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to 
exceed 30 years.  The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the 
plan, and the net OPEB obligation at the end of the year for the Board were as follows:  
 

Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 2015 $1,096,000

ARC 125,368
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 43,840
ARC Adjustment (41,881)
Annual OPEB Cost 127,327
Contributions made (51,298)
Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 2016 $1,172,029

Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 40.29%  
 
The following table provides the Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB 
cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the last three fiscal years:  
 

Fiscal Year 
Ended

Annual 
OPEB Cost

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB 

Cost Contributed
Net OPEB 
Obligation

6/30/2014 $138,800 34.10% $1,016,868
6/30/2015 $122,841 35.58% $1,096,000
6/30/2016 $127,327 40.29% $1,172,029
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Funding Status and Funding Progress.  As of July 1, 2015 (the most recent actuarial valuation 
dated July 1, 2014, projected to July 1, 2015), the funded status of the plan was as follows:  
 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $1,800,374
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $1,800,374

Funded ratio (acutarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0.00%
Covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees) 1,255,700
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 143%  

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates 
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events 
far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and 
healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.   
 
The Schedule of Funding Progress presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and the plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial 
accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
In the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used.  
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses).  The UAAL is amortized over the maximum acceptable period of 30 years on an open 
basis. It is calculated using a level percentage of projected payroll.  Other critical assumptions 
used in the actuarial valuation are the health care cost trend rate and participation assumptions.  
The health care cost trend assumption is used to project the cost of health care to future years.  
The valuation uses a health care cost trend rate assumption of 7.5% (6.5% post Medicare) as of 
July 1, 2015, grading down by 0.5% each year until an ultimate health care cost trend rate of 
4.5% is reached.  The participation assumption is the assumed percentage of future retirees that 
participate and enroll in the health plan.  The participation breakouts are provided in the 
following table. 
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Years of Service
Participation 
Percentage

< 10 57%
10-14 72%
15-19 82%
20+ 100%  

 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
Losses arising from judgments, claims, and similar contingencies are paid through the state’s 
self-insurance fund operated by the Office of Risk Management, the agency responsible for the 
state’s risk management program, or by General Fund appropriation.  
 
There is no pending litigation or claims against the Board at June 30, 2016, which if asserted, in 
the opinion of the Board’s legal advisors, would have at least a reasonable probability of an 
unfavorable outcome or for which resolution would materially affect the financial statements.  
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Schedule of the Board’s Proportionate Share of  
the Net Pension Liability 

 
Schedule 1 presents the Board’s Net Pension Liability 
 

Schedule of Board Contributions 
 

Schedule 2 presents the amount of contributions the Board made to the pension system.  
 

Schedule of Funding Progress for the 
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 

 
Schedule 3 presents certain specific data regarding the funding progress for the Other 
Postemployment Benefits Plan, including the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. 
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LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Schedule of the Board's Proportionate Share Schedule 1
of the Net Pension Liability

Board's
proportionate share
of the net pension Plan fiduciary

Board's Board's liability (asset) as a net position
proportion of proportionate share Board's percentage of its as a percentage

Fiscal the net pension of the net pension covered-employee covered-employee of the total 
Year* liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll payroll pension liability

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System

2015 0.06584% $4,117,091 $1,193,177 345% 65.0%
2016 0.06683% $4,545,653 $1,258,895 361% 62.7%

*Amounts presented were determined as of the measurement date (previous fiscal year end).

Schedule of Board Contributions Schedule 2

(b)
(a) Contributions Contributions

Statutorily in relation to the (a-b) Board's as a percentage of
Fiscal Required statutorily Contribution covered-employee covered-employee
Year* Contribution required contribution Deficiency (Excess) payroll payroll

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System

2015 $464,626 $464,626 $1,258,895 36.9%
2016 $455,545 $455,545 $1,230,204 37.0%

*Amounts presented were determined as of the end of the fiscal year.

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  
Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Changes of Benefit Terms include:
1. A 1.5% COLA, effective July 1, 2014, provided by Act 102 of the 2014 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, and,
2. Improved benefits for certain members employed by the Office of Adult Probation and Parole within the Department

  of Public Safety and Corrections as established by Act 852 of 2014.

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  
Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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Schedule 3

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA

Schedule of Funding Progress for the
  Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Three Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability UAAL as a

Actuarial (AAL) - Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected AAL Fund Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Unit Cost (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/c]

July 1, 2013 NONE $1,619,300 $1,619,300 0.0% $960,400 169%
July 1, 2014 NONE $1,742,900 $1,742,900 0.0% $1,186,200 147%
July 1, 2015 NONE $1,800,374 $1,800,374 0.0% $1,255,700 143%
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Schedule of Per Diem Paid to Board Members 
 
This schedule presents the amounts paid to Board members. 
 





27

Schedule 4

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF LOUISIANA

Schedule of Per Diem Paid to Board Members
for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Board Member Amount

Carl W. Aron $3,525
Brian A. Bond 2,325                      
Clovis Burch 2,250                      
Ryan Dartez 825                         
Jacqueline Hall 750                         
Richard M. Indovina Jr. 1,200                      
Marty R. McKay 2,475                      
Chris B. Melancon 1,500                      
Diane G. Milano 1,125                      
Ronald E. Moore 825                         
Blake P. Pitre 2,175                      
T. Morris Rabb 2,700                      
Pamela G. Reed 1,725                      
Don L. Resweber 1,275                      
Deborah H. Simonson 1,200                      
Richard A. Soileau 2,475                      
Rhonny K. Valentine 1,500                      

     Total $29,850

The Schedule of Per Diem Paid to Board Members is presented in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature.





 

 

OTHER REPORT REQUIRED BY 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

Exhibit A 
 
 
The following pages contain a report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance with laws, regulations, and other matters required by Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  The report is based solely on 
the audit of the financial statements and includes, where appropriate, any significant deficiencies 
and/or material weaknesses in internal control or compliance and other matters that would be 
material to the presented financial statements. 
 
 





 
 

LOUISIANA LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR 
 

DARYL G. PURPERA, CPA, CFE 
 
 

1600 NORTH THIRD STREET  •  POST OFFICE BOX 94397  •  BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70804-9397 
 

WWW.LLA.LA.GOV  •  PHONE: 225-339-3800  •  FAX: 225-339-3870 

September 20, 2016 
 
 

Report on Internal Control over Financial  
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an  

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in  
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

LOUISIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the business-type activities of the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy (Board), a 
component unit of the state of Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 20, 2016.   
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
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combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations and contracts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of This Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this communication is distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor as a public document. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Daryl G. Purpera, CPA, CFE 
Legislative Auditor 
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Il FOR PROVIDERS.
BY PROVIDERS.August 24, 2016 ACHC

Mr. Malcolm Broussard
Louisiana State Board of Pharmacy

Dear Mr. Broussard,

As a leading accreditation organization, Accreditation Commission for Health Care (ACHC) is committed
to providing services that facilitate the highest quality of patient care and safety. In light of increased
scrutiny in the pharmacy compounding industry after the meningitis tragedy in 2012, ACHC has made
considerable efforts to offer compliance solutions that address the risks unique to compounding
medications, and that meet or exceed industry standards and state-specific requirements. In order to
meet the states’ varying needs, ACHC offers two distinct solutions: Pharmacy Compounding
Accreditation Board (PCAB) Accreditation and ACHC Inspection Services (AIS).

PCAB incorporates USP <797> and USP <795> guidelines and promotes policies for improving the quality
of pharmacy compounding. In addition, we are working on updates to include USP <800> requirements
scheduled to take effect in 2018. Distinct from an inspection, which represents a snapshot in time, PCAB
Accreditation requires a Plan of Correction (POC), supported by evidence that addresses survey findings.
As a result, PCAB Accreditation is widely considered the gold standard for compounding pharmacies,
and includes over 400 participating pharmacies in almost all 50 states. ACHC’s other solution, AIS was
recently developed at the request of states seeking a service that exhibits proof of USP <797> and USP
<795> compliance and that is administered by licensed pharmacists with a depth of compounding
pharmacy experience. Up until now, states relied on inspections performed by state inspectors whose
compounding experience was as widely varied as the inspection criteria in each different state. In
creating AIS, ACHC offers boards of pharmacy consistency that was previously lacking, while eliminating
the resource burden often associated with physically inspecting non-resident pharmacies.

ACHC respectfully requests the Louisiana State Board of Pharmacy join the growing number of states
accepting PCAB Accreditation and AIS as evidence of sterile compounding compliance for non-resident
pharmacies. These compliance solutions can help your board of pharmacy manage risk and compliance
by meeting or exceeding industry standards and state-specific requirements.

ACHC appreciates your time and attention to this matter and thanks you in advance for your
consideration. If you have any questions, please contact me directly at 855-937-2242.

::::eft,PharmD,RPh
Associate Director of Pharmacy I
Accreditation Commission for Health Care

ACCREDITATiON COMMISS ION fir H EALTH c:1\RE

139 Weston Oaks Ct., Cary, NC 27513 achc.org T (855) 937-2242 F (919) 785-3011
ISO 90012008 CERTIFIED. [MS APPROVED



September 12, 2016

Malcolm J.Broussard SEp 192016 I
Executive Director 14 BOA
Louisiana Board of Pharmacy RD OF H4RMACY
3388 Brentwood Drive
Baton Rouge, LA 70809-1700

Dear Malcolm J. Broussard,

Our organizations are writing today in regards to a new general chapter from the U.S. Pharmaeopeiai
Convention (USP). General Chapter <800>, Hazardous Drugs—Handling in Heafiheare Settings. The
purpose of the chapter. per USP. is “to describe practice and quality standards for handling hazardous
drugs in healthcore settings and help promote patient safety, worker safety, and environmental protection.”

Chapter <800> will apply to all healthcare personnel who handle hazardous drug preparations. including
members of our organizations. Also impacted will be nurses, physicians, physician assistants, home
healthcare workers, veterinarians, and veterinary technicians and the entities where they practice.

General Chapter <800> utilizes the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) list of
antineoplastic and other hazardous drugs to define a hazardous drug preparation. There are multiple
commonly dispensed drugs on this list, including estrogen and progestin containing drugs,
anticonvulsants, immunosuppressive agents, antifungal agents, atypical antipsychotics and warfarin. The
impact of’ General Chapter <800> on our members is substantial &om both an economic and operational
perspective and compliance with the new general chapter will require changes such as the use of Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE) and the potential for reconstruction of facilities.

General Chapter <800> was published on February 1, 2016. In recognizing that it will take facilities time
to conform to the new requirements. USP extended the official implementation date until July I, 2018.
However, given such highly complex, resource intensive, and time consuming compliance requirements,
we respectfully request that the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy carefully consider any actions related to
pharmacy compliance with the standards.

Employee safety must always be a top priority. Our members are currently held to and comply with
regulations and guidelines from entities such as the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (051-IA), and The Joint Commission (TJC). which detail
the handling of hazardous material that serve to protect employees. We appreciate the intent of the
proposed chapter <800>, however, the impact on our members and their patients in relation to a 2018
enforcement date is too great at this time and full compliance would be extremely difficult to the vast
majority of our members.

In order to give our members the opportunity to perform the proper analyses, including budget
implications and the impact upon the delivery of services to patients, and to fully integrate General Chapter
<800> into their practice settings, we feel that a delay in enforcement is warranted, similar to the phased
in approach that accompanied the introduction of USP General Chapter <797> Pharniaceufical
Compounding — Sterile.



A delay in enforcement of USP <800> allows healthcare organizations sufficient time to plan and
gradually implement changes. Budgeting capital expenses is a multistep. multi-year process that is not
under the control of many pharmacies. Some organizations may have to justify their <800> project
proposal to numerous organizational stakeholders, spread expenditures over more than one budget cycle,
and integrate their project into existing organizational project timelines.

If the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy agrees that a graduated approach to implementing General Chapter
<800> is consistent with its mission and goals, we respectfully request that the Louisiana Board of
Pharmacy grant a five year delay in enforcement of General Chapter <800> until July 1,2021. This
grace period allows state-licensed practitioners to assess and plan for the significant operational and
structural changes needed as well as budget and obtain the necessary resources in an already strained
financial environment.

We appreciate your thoughtful consideration of our comments regarding General Chapter <800>,
Hazardous Drugs—Handling in Healthcare Settings.

Sincerely,

American Pharmacists Association (APhA)
American Society of Consultant Pharmacists (ASCP)
College of Psychiatric and Neurologic Pharmacists (CPNP)
International Academy of Compounding Pharmacists (IACP)
National Alliance of State Pharmacy Associations (NASPA)
National Association of Chain Drug Stores (NACDS)
National Community Pharmacists Association (NCPA)
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University of South Carolina 
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Malcolm J. Broussard

Subject: RE: Out-of-State Institutional Approval - LA BOP

From: FIELDS, MEGHAN [mailto:FIELDSMB@ffi,ailbox.sc.eduj
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2016 1:43 PM
To: info
Cc: FINNIGAN, KRISTIA
Subject: Out-of-State Institutional Approval - LA BOP

Dear Mr. Broussard,

The University of South Carolina Columbia is an approved institutional member of the State Authorization
Reciprocity Agreement (see attached).The University of South Carolina Columbia has been recently
investigating the Iicensure requirements of your state in regards to out-of-state and resident students pursuing
USC education (both online and experiential) in your state. The University wishes to remain in compliance with
the laws of your state regarding licensure, and, as a result, we have a few questions after reviewing your laws
and statutes posted at http:llwww.pharmacy.la.gov. If you could, would you mind answering the following
questions?

Would licensure, Board approval or further documentation be required for the following scenarios? (Please
indicate “X” if yes):

1. On-site, USC faculty teaching coursework face-to-face:
2. Out-of-state, USC faculty teaching online coursework to residents of your state:
3. On-site, USC-paid faculty Supervising Experiential Learning Coursework:

4. On-site students engaged in Face-to-Face coursework with USC faculty:
5. On-site students engaged in online coursework remotely offered from USC Columbia:
6. On-site students involved in experiential learning (USC-paid supervisors):
7. On-site students involved in experiential learning (non-USC paid supervisors):

8. Program approval needed if USC Columbia offers online education/coursework to residents of your
state:

9. Program approval needed if USC Columbia conducts Experiential Learning coursework in your state:

Thank you for your time in responding to this email.

Best Regards,

Meghan Fields
Program Coordinator

tNI%IR%lI%’ 01

lit SOUII I C’\ROIJN&\
Otfa 414 41w

803-777-0300

Confidentiafty NoteS The information contained in this message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only far the use
of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution, or capy at this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please immediately notify
me by telephone and return the ariginal message to me at the address listed above. Thank you.
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November 16, 2016 
 
 
Agenda Item 14:  Announcements 
 
 
Nov. 24  Thanksgiving Day – Board office closed 
Nov. 25  Acadian Day – Board office closed 
 
Dec. 4-8  ASHP MidYear Meeting – Las Vegas, NV 
Dec. 6   Regulation Revision Committee 
Dec. 14-15  Violations Committee Preliminary Hearing 
Dec. 23  State Holiday – Board office closed 
Dec. 26  Christmas Day (obs.) – Board office closed 
 
Jan. 2   New Year’s Day (obs.) – Board office closed 
Jan. 11  La. Pharmacy Congress 
   Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) Advisory Council 
Jan. 12  Regulation Revision Committee 
Jan. 16  Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – Board office closed 
Jan. 24  Reinstatement, Impairment, & Executive Committees 
Jan. 25  Reciprocity Committee & Board Meeting 
Jan. 26  Administrative Hearing 
 
 
 
 
Tentative Board Meeting Sessions for Calendar Year 2017: 
 
January 24-26               May 9-11               August 22-24               November 14-16 

http://www.pharmacy.la.gov/
mailto:info@pharmacy.la.gov
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